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Meeting of the Board of
Trustees

November 19, 2012

CALL TO ORDER: 5:00 P.M.

1.0 PROCEDURAL MATTERS

1.1 Call to Order

1.2  Public Comments
Members of the public may address the Board on items listed to be
discussed in closed session. Speakers are limited to two minutes
each.

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION FOR DISCUSSION OF THE FOLLOWING:

A. Public Employee Employment/Evaluation (GC Section 54957) (13)
1. Public Employee Employment/Evaluation (12)
a.  Vice Chancellor for Technology and Learning Services (DS)
b.  Vice Chancellor for Human Resources and Employer/Employee
Relations (DS)
College President (SC)
Dean, Students and Counseling (IVC)
Dean, Enrollment Services (IVC)
Dean, Liberal Arts (IVC)
Vice Chancellor, Business Services (DS)
Director Student Health Center (SC)
Dean, Kinesiology & Athletics/Athletics Director (SC)
Associate Vice Chancellor, Economic Development (DS)
Dean, Health Science, Kinesiology & Athletics (IVC)
Dean, Math, Science & Engineering (IVC)
2. PUb|IC Employee Employment/Evaluation: Chancellor (1)
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B. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release (GC 54954.5)

C. Conference with Labor Negotiators (GC Section 54957.6)
1. Unrepresented Employee: Chancellor
Agency Designated Negotiators: Nancy Padberg, Esq. - Board
President, and Warren Kinsler, Esq. — General Counsel

D. Conference with Legal Counsel (GC Section 54956.9)
1. Initiation of Litigation (GC Section 54956.9[b][1] and [3][C] — Wassmann v.
SOCCCD
2. Anticipated Litigation (GC Section 54956.9(b)(1) and (3)(c) (1 case)

RECONVENE OPEN SESSION: 6:00 P.M.

2.0 PROCEDURAL MATTERS




2.1 Actions Taken in Closed Session

2.2 Invocation
Led by Trustee James Wright

2.3 Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Trustee Mike Meldau

2.4 Resolutions/Commendations
A. Resolutions:
SOCCCD: Frank M. Meldau — Member, Board of Trustees

B. Commendations:
SOCCCD: Frank M. Meldau — Member, Board of Trustees
Irvine Valley College: Frank M. Meldau — Member, Board of Trustees
Saddleback College: Frank M. Meldau — Member, Board of Trustees
Saddleback College: Phillis Kucharski — Nursing Professor
Saddleback College: Chris Wilkinson — Chief of Police

2.5 Public Comments
Members of the public may address the Board on any item on the agenda at
this time or during consideration of the item. Items not on the agenda that
are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may also be addressed
at this time. Speakers are limited to up to two minutes each.

3.0 REPORTS

3.1 Oral Reports: Speakers are limited to up to two minutes each.

A. Board Reports
B. Chancellor's Report
C. Board Request(s) for Reports

4.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS

4.1 Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Student Success
Task Force Recommendation 3 — “Incentivize Successful Student
Behaviors”

A presentation on Recommendation 3 of the California Community
Colleges Student Success Task Force.

4.2 Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Foundations
A presentation on the colleges’ foundation annual reports.

5.0 CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS




All matters on the consent calendar are routine items and are to be
approved in one motion unless a Board member requests separate action.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

SOCCCD: Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes
Approve minutes of a Regular Meeting held on October 29, 2012.

Irvine Valley College: 2013 International Debate Tour — People’s
Republic of China (PRC)

Approve the out-of-state travel request for IVC students and their advisors.
All costs for travel, food, lodging and incidentals will be paid through a
combination of fund raising, forensics foundation account, or directly by the
participants. Supplemental allocations from ASIVC and staff development
money for faculty members may be utilized for tournament expenses, which
may impact the general fund.

Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Spring 2013
Community Education Programs

Approve Community Education courses, presenters, and compensation for
Spring 2013.

Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Speakers

Approve general fund honoraria for speakers for events and/or classes at
Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College.

Saddleback College: Study Abroad Program to Santander, Spain
Approve the Saddleback College study abroad program to Santander,
Spain in the summer of 2013 and direct the administration to execute the
Educational Tour/Field Study Travel Contractor Agreement with the Travel
and Education travel vendor.

Saddleback College: Study Abroad Program to Peru

Approve the Saddleback College study abroad program to Peru in the
spring of 2013 and direct the administration to execute the Educational
Tour/Field Study Travel Contractor Agreement with the Travel and
Education travel vendor.

Saddleback College: Grant Acceptance, CTE Pathways Initiative,
Allied Health Expansion, Health Careers Readiness Project
Accept award of $250,000 from the California Community College
Chancellor’'s Office for the CTE Pathways Initiative Grant 12-129-001.

Saddleback College: Award of Bid 2006: Demolish Saddleback
College Classroom Cluster Building

Award bid and approve agreement with Cal United Construction Group in
the amount of $42,400.

Saddleback College: Donated Equipment
Approve the donation to Saddleback Valley Unified School District.



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

SOCCCD: Budget Amendment: Adopt Resolution No. 12-37 to Amend
FY 2012-2013 Adopted Budget
Adopt resolution to amendment adopted budget.

SOCCCD: Transfer of Budget Appropriations
Approve the transfer of budget appropriations.

SOCCCD: Purchase Order/Confirming Requisitions

Approve purchase orders processed in accordance with the general
priorities of the adopted budget and numbered P13-01952 through
P13-02187 amounting to $789,695.11. Approve confirming
requisitions dated October 10, 2012 through October 30, 2012
totaling $163,657.04.

SOCCCD: Payment of Bills

Approve check no. 163378 through 163929 processed through the Orange
County Department of Education, totaling $1,795,678.08; and check
no.010531 through 010553, processed through Saddleback College
Community Education, totaling $46,994.95; and check no. 009047 through
009054, processed through Irvine Valley College Community Education,
totaling $14,689.21.

SOCCCD: Gifts to the District and Foundations
Accept donations to the District and/or the Foundations as listed.

SOCCCD: October/November 2012 Contracts
Ratify contracts as listed.

6.0 GENERAL ACTION ITEMS

6.1

6.2

6.3

SOCCCD: Acceptance of District Annual Audit Report: 2011-12
Accept for review.

SOCCCD: Board Policy Revision: BP-3410: Nondiscrimination, BP-
5140: Disabled Students Programs and Services, BP-5505: Grade
Grievance Policy, BP-5150: Extended Opportunity Programs and
Services, BP-6110: Articulation of Courses and Programs, BP-1900-
Alcoholic Beverages, BP-3004: Public Records, BP-3005: Designation
of Authorized Signatures, BP-4073: Faculty Reassigned Time and
Stipends

Accept for review and study

SOCCCD: Board Policy Revision: BP-5300.5-Grade Changes, BP-
3517-Student Organizations at Off-Campus Location
Accept for discussion/approval.



7.0

8.0

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

SOCCCD: Contract with Neudesic LLC for Software Development
Approve the agreement with Neudesic, LLC in the amount not to exceed
$500,000.

SOCCCD: Academic Personnel Actions — Regular Items

Approve New Personnel Appointments, Additional Compensation: General
Fund, Additional Compensation: Categorical/Non-General Fund, Chancellor
Contract Extension, Resignation/Retirement/Conclusion of Employment.

SOCCCD: Classified Personnel Actions — Regular Items

Approve New Personnel Appointments, Authorization to Establish and
Announce a Classified Position, Out of Class Assignments, Request to
Rescind Layoff for Classified Positions, Leave of Absence,
Resignation/Retirement/Conclusion of Employment, Volunteers.

REPORTS

SOCCCD: List of Board Requested Reports
Status report of board requested reports of the South Orange County
Community College District Board of Trustees.

Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Speakers
A listing of speakers for events and/or classes at Saddleback
College and Irvine Valley College.

SOCCCD: Basic Aid Report
Report on projected receipts and approved projects.

SOCCCD: Facilities Plan Status Report
Status of current construction projects.

SOCCCD: Retiree (OPEB) Trust Fund
The annual report is for the period ending October 31, 2012.

SOCCCD: Quarterly Investment Report
This report is for the quarter ending on September 30, 2012.

SOCCCD: Monthly Financial Status Report
This report displays the adopted budget, revised budget and transactions
through October 31, 2012.

SOCCCD: Academic Year 2013-2014 Non-Resident Tuition Fees for
Foreign & Out-of-State Students

An estimate of the District non-resident related fees based on current
information.

WRITTEN REPORTS




Reports by the following individuals and groups should be written and
submitted through the docket process prior to distribution of the Board
agenda packet.

A. Saddleback College Academic Senate

Faculty Association

Irvine Valley College Academic Senate

Associate Vice Chancellor, Economic Development
President, Irvine Valley College

President, Saddleback College

Vice Chancellor, Technology and Learning Services
Vice Chancellor, Human Resources

Vice Chancellor, Business Services

Irvine Valley College Classified Senate

California School Employees Association

Saddleback College Classified Senate

Associated Student Government, Saddleback College
Associated Student Government, Irvine Valley College
Police Officers Association

OZZIrAC"IOMMUOW

9.0 ADDITIONAL ITEMS

ADJOURNMENT (or continuation of closed session if required):  9:00 P.M.



NOVEMBER 19, 2012

DR. FRANK M. MELDAU
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

k /P/eas Dr. Frank “Mike” Meldau has served on the Board of Trustees since January 2011, an
appo

ointment that he was honored to accept, having been a community college graduate, himself; and

k /P/eas Dr. Meldau joined the district during a time of great transition, contributing valuable leadership
and a calm, thoughtful and caring demeanor to the board’s role in accreditation issues, comprehensive
strategic planning, and resource allocation modeling; and

Was during Dr. Meldau’s service, he took great interest in learning about the district and colleges,

extensively touring and interacting with students, faculty, staff and administration, offering support,
understanding and valuable feedback to the board and community, thus enhancing the district-wide culture; and

mas Dr. Meldau demonstrated immense support to Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College

through his involvement in a myriad of college and district activities, including commencements,
foundations, student veterans, nursing and health sciences, Astounding Inventions, the IVC Life Sciences Bullding
groundbreaking, the Saddleback College Library and Learning Resource Center remodel, speech and debate, fine
arts events, and community forums; therefore,

B e it resolved that the Board of Trustees and the Chancellor of the South Orange County Community
College District do hereby express their deepest appreciation to Dr. Meldau for his dedication to faculty,
staff and administrators throughout our district and his enduring contributions to generations of students at
Saddleback College, Irvine Valley College, and the Advanced Technology & Education Park.

Nancy M. Padberg, President T.J. Prendergast III, Vice President
Marcia Milchiker, Clerk William O. Jay, Member
David B. Lang, Member James R. Wright, Member

Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor Heather Park, Student Member



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 4.1
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor

RE: Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Student Success Task
Force Recommendation 3 — “Incentivize Successful Student
Behaviors”

ACTION: Discussion

BACKGROUND

In 2010, Senate Bill 1143 called upon the California Community Colleges Board of
Governors to adopt a plan by 2012 for improving student success. The bill also
authorized the creation of a task force on student success, which was formed in
January 2011by California Community Colleges Chancellor Jack Scott. The charge
of the task force was to develop a strategic blueprint to increase student success. In
January 2012, their findings were submitted in the report, Advancing Student
Success in California Community Colleges: Recommendations of the California
Community Colleges Student Success Task Force, which was unanimously
endorsed by the Board of Governors. The final report was presented to the
Legislature in February 2012. Senate Bill 1456, the Student Success Act of 2012,
was approved by the state Senate in May 2012.

Recommendation 3 of the report is to “Incentivize Successful Student Behaviors”.
This recommendation includes the following:
e Adopt system-wide enrollment priorities reflecting the core mission of
community colleges
e Require students receiving Board of Governors Fee Waivers to meet
various conditions and requirements
e Provide students the opportunity to consider attending full time
e Require students to begin addressing basic skills deficiencies in their first
year

STATUS

Representatives from Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College will present
what the colleges are doing to incentivize successful student behaviors.

Iltem Submitted by: Dr. Tod A. Burnett and Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore, Presidents



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 4.2
DATE: 11/19/2012

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor

RE: Irvine Valley College and Saddleback College: Foundations’ Annual
Reports

ACTION: Discussion

BACKGROUND

The Foundations for Saddleback College, Irvine Valley College are auxiliary
organizations of the South Orange County Community College District and are
organized as nonprofit, public benefit corporations according to the laws and
regulations of the State of California. They operate under the Master Agreements
approved by the Foundations and the SOCCCD Board of Trustees, dated June 22,
2005, Exhibits A and B.

STATUS
The Master Agreement requires an annual report of revenues and expenses to the

Board of Trustees, Article 1l, and Section 2.3. That information is presented in the
Exhibits C and D, the annual reports of each of the foundations.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Tod A. Burnett and Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore, Presidents
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The Saddleback College
Foundation raises funds and
friends in support of Saddleback
College. By raising funds for
scholarships, programs, and
capital projects, the foundation
increases student success and
completion, and enhances the
excellent education offered by
Saddleback College. By raising
friends, the foundation helps
the college access community
support and assures that the
college is responding to the
business and cultural needs

of south Orange County.



MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
Saddleback College

| congratulate the Saddleback College Foundation for a great

year for 2011-2012. Donna Varner, President of the Foundation

for the past two years, has provided outstanding leadership. She

focused the board members’ efforts toward five major initiatives:
scholarships, completing funding for the Saddleback College Veterans
Memorial, the athletic stadium campaign, alumni development, and the
Saddleback College Arboretum Trail campaign. Donna Varner was also
the Chairperson of this year’s gala, our most successful ever with over
320 people in attendance, a 20 percent increase over the previous year.
Dr. Tod Burnett, President D ring her tenure, scholarship awards increased from $215,195 to $338,700.

Foundation contributions and revenue increased dramatically over the previous year, from $1.77 million
to $3.99 million. Major estate gifts from a former Emeritus Institute student, Dorothy Lowry, and
former Saddleback faculty member Linda Rice, accounted for nearly $2.5 million of the funds raised
this year. These gifts will provide invaluable support to our students in perpetuity.

Foundation assets have grown from $2.28 million three years ago to nearly $7 million and
endowments have increased from $497,000 to $4.9 million since 2008. This dramatic growth
has resulted from the major gifts noted above, and from Saddleback taking full advantage

of a matching gift campaign for scholarship funds made possible by a statewide gift to the
community colleges by the Bernard Osher Foundation. Osher scholarships at Saddleback
now total $1.59 million.

Thank you to the members of the Saddleback Foundation Board of Governors for giving so
generously of your time and treasure in support of Saddleback students and faculty.

Dr. Tod Burnett, President,
Saddleback College

2011-2012 ANNUAL REPORT 1



Jim Leach, President

Donna Varner,
Past President
2010-2012

MESSAGE FROM JIM LEACH, PRESIDENT
Saddleback College Foundation

As the newly appointed President of the Saddleback College Foundation, | will
be responsible for the general oversight and direction of the Board of Governors,
which raises funds for scholarships and develops friends in support of the college.

Currently CEO of South Orange County Regional Chamber of Commerce,

[ arrived in Orange County in 2001 and was instantly active in business and civic
affairs. From 2001-2012 | was the Vice President of Public Affairs at Cox Com-
munications. | am the Treasurer of OC Tax, and the Past President of The Orange
County Forum. | graduated from the University of Texas at Austin and live in Dove
Canyon with my wife, Dot.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my predecessor, Donna Varner.
During her tenure, the foundation’s assets grew dramatically, from approximately
$2.8 million to $6.7 million. Varner helped to focus the board on student scholar-
ship awards, which increased by approximately $124,000. She also developed an
active alumni organization that has resulted in the identification of over 500,000
alumni, completed the Saddleback College Veterans Memorial, the study of a
capital campaign for a new stadium, and the launch of the Saddleback Arboretum
Trail, a 2.6-mile walking, biking, exercise, and outdoor classroom.

I look forward to another great year in the foundation, especially funding more
scholarships, breaking ground on the Arboretum Trail project, further development
of the alumni association, the athletic stadium campaign, and developing further
support for the Emeritus Institute by continuing to raise funds and friends in
support of the mission of Saddleback College.

Jim Leach, President,
Saddleback College Foundation

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE FOUNDATION



FINANCIAL STATUS

2011-2012 Revenues

Ticket Sales
$149,117
4%

Special Events
$303,565
8%

Permanently
Restricted
Contributions
$264,655
7%

Donated

Services

$154,487
4%

Unrealized & Realized
Gain on Investments

Interest & Dividends

Contributions

2011-2012
Investments

Equities
$3,342,577
66%

Fixed

Income
$1,485,751
29%

Cash &
Equivalents
$237,569

5%

$61,790
1%
2008-2012 Endowments

$5,000,000

$4,000,000

$3,000,000
Bernard Osher
Scholarship

$2,000,000 Endowment
Dorothy
Lowry
Endowment

$1,000,000

2008 2012* unaudited numbers.

Other
Endowments

* Amounts represent
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FOUNDATION FUNDS

June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2009

Foundation Delegated Total
June 30, 2012 Management Management Managed
Total Unrestricted 254,897 254,897
Temporarily Restricted:
Program Accounts 1,390,241 1,390,241
Special Scholarships 150,104 150,104
Lowry Functional Endowment 2,339,251 2,339,251
Total Temporarily Restricted 2,489,355 1,390,241 3,879,596
Permanently Restricted:
Saddleback College
Endowments 951,482 951,482
Osher Endowments* 1,585,555 1,585,555
Total Permanently Restricted 2,537,037 2,537,037
Total Funds Available $5,281,289 $1,390,241  $6,671,530

*Osher has provided an initial gift of $335,588 and a match for funds raised of $397,281 in addition to
the $796,450 raised by the College adjusted to fair market value for a total of $1,585,555 for the benefit
of Saddleback College students. See page 6 for more information.

Foundation Delegated Total
June 30, 2009 Management Management Managed
Total Unrestricted 56,316 56,316
Temporarily Restricted:
Program Accounts 1,351,460 1,351,460
Special Scholarships 75,462 75,462
Board-Designated Endowment 106,361 106,361
Total Temporarily Restricted 181,823 1,351,460 1,533,283
Total Permanently Restricted 690,160 690,160
Total Funds Available $928,299 $1,351,460 $2,279,759

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE FOUNDATION



GIFTING HIGHLIGHTS

DOROTHY MARIE LOWRY
EMERITUS INSTITUTE GIFT

The Foundation Board of Governors has designated
this $2.3 million gift to be treated as an endowment
to provide on-going support for Emeritus Institute
student scholarships or other needs of the Emeritus
Institute.

LINDA RICHARDSON RICE
ENDOWED SCHOLARSHIP

Linda Richardson Rice was a member of Saddleback
College’s “first faculty” who started when the college
opened its doors in 1968. Her bequest of $223,471
provides annual scholarships in perpetuity for stu-
dents who are majoring in or planning a career in
education.

KIA MOTORS GIFT IN SUPPORT
OF AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGY

During the month of October the automotive tech-
nology department took delivery of a new 2011 Kia
Optima hybrid. This vehicle will be used to promote
the new hybrid technology program to the local high
schools and our local industry partners. The vehicle
will also be used in class for demonstration purposes
in many of our hybrid and alternative-fuel courses.

Kia Motors America also donated an in-kind gift of

a GDS global diagnostic system to the auto tech
department at Saddleback College. This software
will allow students to perform factory diagnostics and
reprogramming on all Kia vehicles. Also donated as
in-kind gifts were tool kits from Grainger and $2,000
scholarships to two students.

2011-2012 ANNUAL REPORT 5



MAJOR INITIATIVES

SCHOLARSHIPS

Bernard Osher Scholarship
Endowment

Osher contributions for the period of
July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2012
were $796,450. Per the agreement
with Osher, our initial gift and match-
ing funds total $732,869 for a total
endowment of $1,529,319, which has
a fair market value of $1,585,555 at
June 30, 2012, whose earnings from
such are available for scholarships to
Saddleback College students. A total
of $83,000 in earnings was made
available as scholarships to students
for the 2012-2013 academic year.

Scholarship Awards
Ceremony

A record-breaking $338,700 was
awarded through 394 scholarships
to 234 students at Saddleback
College’s 36th annual scholarship
ceremony on May 17, 2012. The
Associated Student Government
donated $63,000 in scholarships,
and Financial Aid underwrote the
expenses for the ceremony. Seventy-
eight scholarships worth $66,000
were funded by the Bernard Osher
Scholarship Fund.

Scholarship Awards 2008-2012
$350,000 $338,700
$300,000 |
$264,427
$250,000 $232,412 [
$215,195

$200,000 $198,650 |
$150,000 — — — — —
$100,000 — — — — —

$50,000 — — — — —

0 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

B Students Served 2008-2012

250

200

150

100

50

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
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ALUMNI

This year the foundation identified email addresses
for 130,000 of Saddleback College’s 500,000+
alums. The foundation developed and emailed

a survey to all 130,000 and has had a strong
response with 2,300 alums filling out and returning
the survey.

Nico Melendez
Saddleback College’s 2012
Alumnus of the Year, Nico
Melendez, was honored at
the annual gala (see page 9).
After completing his general
education at Saddleback
College from 1987 to 1990, Mr. Melendez trans-
ferred to Chaminade University, where he earned a
bachelor’s degree in historic and political studies.
He then earned a Master of Public Administration
degree from Troy State University in 2000. Mr.
Melendez served in the Navy for 10 years then joined
the Naval Reserve as a public affairs officer. His
military awards include a Defense Meritorious
Service Medal, three Navy Achievement Medals,
and several other unit and campaign awards.
Currently, Mr. Melendez is a professional broad-
caster/communicator working for the Transporta-
tion Security Administration. Mr. Melendez was
named the 66th Assembly District Veteran of the
Year in 2011. Nico is married and has five young
children.

2011-2012 ANNUAL REPORT

Student Success Spotlight
Alexis Petrovich
As a single mother and sole

! provider to her 3-year-old son,
' Alexis was grateful for the op-
. portunity to start classes at
Saddleback College in order to
further her education in reach-
ing her ultimate goal to become a psychiatrist. Her
dedication to her studies paid off when she received
two scholarships from Saddleback College. These
awards gave her the confidence and support she
needed to complete her associate degree and to
now continue her education at the University of
California, Irvine.

Ann Reeder

Ann is a proud veteran, a Saddleback College
alumna, and extremely active in several human
services organizations that support women
veterans. She is a motivator who is persistent
and compassionate in getting the job done.
Her desire is to instill hope in the veteran community
to achieve their career goals. The scholarships
that Ann received at Saddleback College gave
her the drive to continue on with her passion in
human services.

Samira Yaganeh

Samira’s career dream is in psychology and social
behavior, focusing on helping children with academic
studies. She has done volunteer work in middle and
high schools by counseling on a one-on-one level.
Samira felt at home attending Saddleback College
and grew close to her instructors and counselors.
She appreciated their inspiration and support.
With help from the scholarships she received at
Saddleback College, she was able to graduate
and transfer to the University of California, Irvine in
the fall.



SADDLEBACK ARBORETUM

TRAIL CAMPAIGN

The Saddleback Arboretum Trail will establish

and steward a permanent linear arboretum along
2.6 miles of permeable, parallel walking and biking
trails that surround the 200-acre Saddleback
campus. When completed, the trail will be shaded
and sheltered by 500 newly planted trees and
shrubs.

The Saddleback Arboretum Trail will provide
health and wellness benefits for the employees of
Saddleback, as well as the students who enroll
every year and thousands of visitors from the
community. The trail can be used for a full workout
on the parcourse exercise features, or as a way for
people to take a stroll.

The trail will be built in four phases. The foundation
has funded Phase 1 at a cost of $85,000. It will

be a little over a half mile in length, and construction
will begin in the fall of 2012. Recognition should be
given to Chris Harrington, VP Strategy & Business
Development, Toshiba America Information
Systems, Inc.

To donate, visit www.saddleback.edu/foundation
and click on Sustainability Efforts.

STADIUM CAMPAIGN

The Saddleback College Foundation is preparing
to conduct a major capital campaign to raise
external resources for renovation of the athletic
stadium. During the past year, the foundation
completed a feasibility study of the project. In the
coming year we will begin the President’s Advisory
Council, which will advise President Burnett on
the best ways to develop community support for
the project.

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE
VETERANS MEMORIAL

The foundation completed the funding for the
Saddleback College Veterans Memorial during the
2011-2012 fiscal year. The college and the founda-
tion leaders were recognized for the excellence of the
memorial by the George Washington Freedom Award
at a luncheon held in its honor on February 11, 2012
chaired and hosted by Joyce Van Schaack,
Foundation Board of Governors.

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

The Saddleback College Economic and Workforce
Development Initiative facilitates the more than 18,000
students who take Career Technical Education (CTE)
classes each year. Our college offers more than 100
CTE certificate and degree programs and over 1,000
CTE courses. We also have a vibrant community
education program that provides workplace prepara-
tion and training to hundreds of students each year at
locations throughout south Orange County.

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE FOUNDATION



ANNUAL GALA:
A GLAMOROUS NIGHT OF STARS

ach year the foundation sponsors a

gala in honor of Saddleback College.

The evening begins with a silent
auction and is followed by dinner and great
desserts prepared by the college’s culinary arts
students. Throughout the evening, gaming
and entertainment are available, and the fea-
tured speaker is a Saddleback College alum.

This year, 320 people attended, an increase
in attendance of over 20 percent. The gross
proceeds received were $80,239 for the
benefit of Saddleback College students.

The gala, which was made possible by the
outstanding work of the planning committee,
led by Foundation President Donna Varner,
included a beautifully decorated gym by the
Division of Fine Arts and Media Technology
and assistance from the culinary arts
program and facilities and maintenance
department.
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AT&T

Neudesic

Major Sponsors
Included the Following e
People and Companies:

Gold Sponsors: $5,000

Cox Communications

Mercedes Benz of Laguna Niguel
South County Bank

Dr. Tod Burnett

. silver Sponsors: $2,500

Capata and Company
Follett Higher Education Group
Schools First Federal Credit Union

Jackson, DeMarco, Tidus,
Peckenpaugh

Best Best and Krieger, LLP

TABLE SPONSORS:

Charlie Ware, Rancho
Mission Viejo Company

Donna Varner, Past President,
Foundation Board of Governors
Matt Gunderson, CEO

Infiniti of Mission Viejo

Matt Gunderson, CEO

Audi Mission Viejo

Sempra Energy/SoCal Gas Co.

Rick Goacher, RGP Planning
& Development Services

Tim McMahon, Foundation
Board of Governors

Diane Harkey
California State Assembly

Dr. Donald L. Rickner, Director,
Saddleback College Foundation

Gary Champlin, Executive
Team Insurance Services, LLC

Dr. Tod Burnett, President
Saddleback College

J. Leach & Company/
Rockcrest Seven Video
Productions

Brian Paul Dougherty, Partner
Dougherty & Dougherty
Architects

Judy Bethe, Foundation
Board of Governors

Saddleback College
Associated Student
Government

Dr. Joe Brown, Foundation
Board of Governors

Atkinson, Andelson
Loya, Ruud & Romo

Tony Lipold, Dean of
Kinesiology & Athletics

Bill Hewitt, SOCCCD
Faculty Association

Allen Gutierrez
The Latino Coalition

Hudson Capital




COLLEGE FUNDRAISING PARTNERS

FINE & PERFORMING ARTS: $140,553

Angels for the Arts

Angels for the Arts is a fundraising and support
organization for the performing and visual arts at
Saddleback College led by Kate Realista, Director,
Performing Arts/Operations. Angel members donate
their time and talent to raise funds and assist with

a variety of arts events on the campus.

KSBR Radio

KSBR 88.5-FM is a community service radio station,
focusing its attention on Orange County news, traffic,
weather, and entertainment. KSBR’s primary format is
contemporary jazz, but it also has weekend specialty
shows featuring other musical styles like reggae, folk,
ragtime, rock, Latin jazz, blues and hip-hop music.

Led by Terry Wedel, Director of College Radio
Station Operations, KSBR has received the
Associated Press “Instant News” citation, AP’s
Certificate of Excellence for overall coverage,

and is the only California station to be a three-time
winner of the American Heart Association’s

C. Everett Koop, M.D. Award.

KSBR held its annual Birthday Bash Jazz Festival
on May 27, 2012. Funds raised for the year were
$126,484. The funds support the operating budget
for KSBR, including music licensing, equipment re-
pair and acquisition, engineering costs, webcasting,
and staff. This year’s bash had an increase in paid
attendance of 24 percent to approximately 1,250
people.
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ATHLETICS: $70,625

The Saddleback College Athletics Department is
pleased to announce that 124 of the college’s 360
student-athletes were named to the Spring 2012
Athletic Honor Roll, including 16 student-athletes with
a perfect 4.00 grade point average.

Thirty members of the 2011 Saddleback football
team will be moving on to four-year colleges this
fall, accounting for more than $1.75 million in
scholarships. Six of the players moving on have
transferred to PAC-12 universities. Saddleback
College has led the Southern California Football
Association in scholar-athletes for the past two
years with an average of over 20 student-athletes.

The football team has appeared in a Southern
California record 11 straight post-season appear-
ances, 2001-2011. Two former Saddleback College
football players were drafted by NFL teams this past
spring: Aaron Brown, University of Hawaii, St. Louis
Rams; Richard Crawford, Texas Christian University,
Washington Redskins.

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE FOUNDATION



CAREER TECHNICAL
EDUCATION: $21,490

Automotive Technology

During the month of October the automotive
technology department took delivery of a new

2011 Kia Optima Hybrid. This vehicle will be used

to promote our new hybrid technology program to
the local high schools and our local industry partners.
Kia Motors America also donated an in-kind gift of

a GDS global diagnostic system to the auto tech
department, and Grainger donated tool kits and
$2,000 scholarships to two students.

Fashion & Merchandising

On Saturday, May 5th at McKinney Theatre, the
students and faculty of Fashion 147, Special

Events Coordination and Promotion, presented
Saddleback College’s annual fashion show, “Twisted.”
Hors d’'oeuvres were prepared by the culinary arts
department, hair and makeup styled by Athena
College of Beauty, and the production was taped

by communication arts students.

Horticulture & Landscape Design

The horticulture and landscape design department
held two fundraisers in 2011-2012, the Spring and
Fall Plant Sales, which generated $16,000 to be
used for student scholarships and projects in its
department, as well as in environmental science
and architecture.

ASSOCIATED STUDENT

GOVERNMENT: $82,551

Summary of Funds Raised 2011-2012: Various clubs
within the Associated Student Government collected
$10,571 during fundraising events in 2011-2012 and
the Associated Student Body collected $71,981
from the ASG Stamp Fundraiser alone, bringing the
total of funds raised by the ASG to over $82,000 for
the fiscal year.
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STATE AND DISTRICT

IDENTITY - STATS

California Community Colleges educate
and train 80 percent of firefighters, law
enforcement personnel, and emergency
medical technicians.

Nearly 50 percent of all California veterans
receiving Gl educational benefits attend a
California community college for workforce
training or to get a degree.

Twenty-eight percent of University of
California and 55 percent of California State
University graduates started at a California
community college.

Transfer students from the California
Community Colleges to the University of
California system currently account for
48 percent of UC’s bachelor’s degrees in
science, technology, engineering and
mathematics.

The California community college system
is the largest workforce training provider in
the U.S., serving more than 2.8 million
students annually.

Seventy percent of nurses in California
received their education from community
colleges.

Almost two-thirds of graduates of the
California State University system and one-
third of the University of California system
transferred from a California community college.

A student who graduates with an associate
degree earns an average of $1.6 million in his/
her lifetime which is $400,000 more than a
student with only a high school diploma.
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SADDLEBACK COLLEGE
FOUNDATION

Jim Leach Gary Capata, CPA Tim McMahon

President 1st Vice President 2nd Vice President
J. Leach & Company Capata & Co., CPAs Sr. Vice President

CB Richard Ellis

% h
Kent Falk John Hefferman Donna Varner Dr. Tod A. Burnett Dr. Donald L. Rickner
Treasurer Secretary Past President President Director
Chief Lending Officer Director, External Affairs Perception Public Saddleback College Saddleback College
Partners Bank of California AT&T Services, Inc. Relations/Special Events Foundation

BOARD OF GOVERNORS ADVISORY COUNCIL

Patricia C. Bates John Ben Judy Bethe Duane Cave Barry McCarthy

Orange County Supervisor President RN, MSN External Relations Business Consultant
5th District Aqgua Ben Hoag Hospital — Retiree Manager
John Bates Associates San Diego Gas & Electric

. i,
Brian S. Probolsky Marty Samuel Penny Spellens Charlie Ware
Director Broker Associate Mercedes Benz of Director
Moulton Niguel Realty One Group Laguna Niguel Governmental Relations
Water District Rancho Mission Viejo
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GOVERNORS

Dr. Joe Brown
City of Laguna Niguel
Council Member
Midland Mgmt. Corp.

Michelle Brough, Esq.
Brandes Investment
Partners, L.P.

Anthony Ferry
VP, Marketing Partner
Neudesic, Inc.

Matthew Gunderson Allen Gutierrez Christopher Harrington Trish Kelley
President Executive Director VP, Strategy & Business City of Mission Viejo
GSM Auto Group, GM, The Latino Coalition Development Council Member

Infiniti of Mission Viejo Toshiba America

Information Systems, Inc.

F .
Matthew “Mal”

Dr. Michael Foudy
Foudy Chiropractic

John Gibson
President

United Intelligence Corp.

Nancy Padberg
President
SOCCCD

Board of Trustees

Ralph Selway Col. (Retired) Joyce Van Schaack Rev. Mark E. Whitlock Il
Richardson, Esqg. VP, Private Client Joseph D. Snyder Board of Directors Senior Pastor
Best Best & Krieger, LLP Services uUsMmcC Christopher Columbus Christ Our Redeemer
Wells Fargo Bank Snyder Consultants Fellowship Foundation Church

COLLEGE REPRESENTATIVES

Chelsea Goossens
Associated Student
Body Representative
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Russell D. Hamilton Sr.

College Classified Staff
Representative
Past President

Classified Senate

Blake Stephens
College Faculty
Representative
Architecture/Drafting
Instructor
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WAYS TO GIVE

Gifts of Cash: Cash gifts may be made
by currency, check, money order, or credit
card. We accept Visa and MasterCard.

Gifts of Personal Property: \We welcome
gifts of items which may be used by the
college (computers, office equipment,
books, instruments, automobiles, etc.) Gifts
must be approved by the foundation and
South Orange County Community College
District as appropriate.

Scholarships: Saddleback College
Foundation scholarships enable you to
provide the gift of education to our stu-
dents. Many of our recipients would not be
able to continue their education without the
help they receive from donors like you. You
can be assured that 100 percent of your
gift will go directly to students.

Gifts can be made to the general scholar-
ship fund or to an existing fund, or you can
create a scholarship that will benefit a spe-
cific type of student. Whether you want to
assist a student who is majoring in a certain
area, transferring to your favorite university,
or comes from a background similar to
yours, we can match you to a student in
need.

Corporate Matching Funds: Many
companies have matching gift programs
and will match the employee’s charitable
contribution. Check with your employer
to learn if this program is available to
maximize your donation.

Gifts of Stocks: Gifts of marketable securi-
ties or stocks listed on an exchange can be
donated. There is no taxation on the gain of
appreciated stock given directly to the
Saddleback College Foundation. The fair
market value on the date of the stock gift is
tax-deductible for income tax purposes.

Memorial and Honorarium Gifts: These
provide a special opportunity to honor the
memory of a family member or friend, or to
recognize an individual for a life occasion.

Gifts of Real Estate: These gifts have
the following benefits to the donor:

1. No taxation on the appreciation of real
property;

2. An income tax deduction of 100 percent
of the fair market value of property as of
the gift date;

3. A reduction of your taxable estate by
the value of the gift less any income tax
savings retained or reinvested.

Planned Gifts: A bequest through a will
or trust is the most common form of a
planned gift. A bequest can be accom-
plished simply by including a statement in
your will or trust that names Saddleback
College to be the recipient of a certain
percentage or a specific amount upon your
death. A planned gift can allow you to
make a substantial contribution to support
Saddleback without diminishing the assets
available to you during your lifetime. Estate
tax savings can also be an important
benefit since a bequest is tax-deductible
for federal estate tax purposes.

Saddleback College Foundation Tax Identification No. 33-0390547

To discuss your interest in making a gift,
contact the Saddleback College
Foundation Director,

Dr. Donald L. Rickner at
949.582.4968 or
scfound@saddleback.edu

To donate or for more information, go
to www.saddleback.edu/foundation

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE FOUNDATION



addleback College has been the first choice

for higher education and training in south

Orange County since 1968. Our more than
500,000 alumni can attest to the quality of our
academic and career training programs that enable
students to successfully achieve their educational,
professional, and personal goals. Our rich academic
traditions and strong reputation make Saddleback
College an ideal place for students seeking associate
degrees and certificates, transferring to four-year
colleges and universities, preparing for the work-
force, or pursuing lifelong learning opportunities.

Saddleback College is fully accredited, offering over
300 associate degrees, certificates, and occupa-
tional skills awards in 190 program areas taught by
a faculty renowned for its expertise, experience,
and commitment to student success. Study abroad,
cooperative work experience, online learning, and
honors are just some of the additional programs we
offer for a well-rounded educational experience.
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WHY WE SUPPORT
SADDLEBACK COLLEGE

e Saddleback College is one of the top transfer
institutions in California; of the state’s 112
community colleges, Saddleback College ranks
11th in transfers to the University of California
system and 12th in transfers to the California
State University system.

e The college has a nursing program that is ranked
number one in the nation in licensure exam rates.
Our students rank first of the entire 972 nursing
programs across the nation (associate and
bachelor’s degree combined).

e |t has winning men’s and women’s athletic teams
with the Gauchos capturing 155 conference titles,
44 Southern California regional titles, 24 state
championships, and 3 national championships.

e Saddleback College is dedicated to lifelong learn-
ing, with our renowned Emeritus Institute providing
challenging and rewarding programs to more
than 26,504 enrollments each year.

e |t offers award-winning theatrical productions,
concerts, and gallery showings each year to
showcase student work in theatre and musicals,
painting, drawing, photography, and sculpting.

e |t has a perennially award-winning forensics team,
which this past year placed fourth in the nation.

e The college offers career technical education
programs that combine classroom instruction
with real-world experience to prepare students
for the job market. Areas of study include, but are
not limited to, architectural design, automotive
technology, fashion design and merchandising,
horticulture, and many others. For a complete
list visit www.saddleback.edu/cte.

15



COLLEGE FACULTY AND STAFF AWARDS

FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME
PROFESSORS OF THE YEAR

David DiLeo

History instructor David DiLeo won the award for
full-time Professor of the Year. DiLeo has been
teaching at Saddleback since 1993. “| like the
energy students give me,” DiLeo said. “Even on
a bad day they give me the extra push.”

Ken Lee

Ken Lee, a landscape design instructor, won the
part-time Professor of the Year award. Lee has
been teaching at Saddleback since 2000. “In my
professional career | have received many awards
and recognitions, but this one is more personal and
meaningful because it came from the students. It is
the best confirmation that what | am doing is good.”

Rob Henry

Rob Henry won the Emeritus Institute’s Professor of
the Year award. Henry has been teaching consumer
health issues courses for the Emeritus Institute since
2005. Henry has been nominated for Teacher of the
Year 40 times in his teaching career. In addition to
teaching for the Emeritus Institute, Henry has taught
in the Division of Health Sciences and Human
Services since 1987.
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CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE
OUTSTANDING SERVICE AWARD

Valerie Senior

Valerie Senior, an Application Specialist Il in our
acclaimed Center for Instructional Design and
Distance Education (CIDDE), was selected as this
year’s recipient of the Saddleback College Classified
Employee Outstanding Service Award. We at
Saddleback College commend her for her excellent
work for our students, employees, and college.

PRESIDENT’S LEADERSHIP

AND INNOVATION AWARDS

Faculty: ....cooovveeeennne, Claire Cesareo-Silva
Associate Faculty: ..... Joe Tinervia, Posthumously
Classified Staff: ......... Janet Jacob
Administrator:............. Don Busché

Classified Manager:... Jennie McCue

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE FOUNDATION



2011-2012'DONORS

COLLEGE PARTNER: DEPARTMENTAL PARTNER: PROFESSOR'’S PARTNER:
$1,000,000+ $10,000+ $5,000+
Dorothy Marie Lowry Trust AAUW Mission Viejo — Saddleback Ben’s Professional Electrical
PRESIDENT’S PARTNER: V‘a”ey. | _ Dr. Tod Burnett
Li:;:gig](;(r)dz e California Community Foundation Calwest Designs
Gary Capata City of Mission Viejo

Bernard Osher Kaiser Permanente Orange County Cox Communications

Dgé(r)q(’)s(,) (I;’ARTNER: William Lycette Gary Damsker
Associated gtudent Government M321'ﬁfgﬁf}g?Srrsa’ngzsé’g?;{o&t?és Macmillan
PROGRAM PARTNER: Saddleback Kiwanis Foundation Mercedes Benz of Laguna Niguel
$25,000+ San Diego Gas & Electric South County Bank
Toshiba America Information Systems, Inc.
Volunteers at Irvine Medical Center
STUDENT'S PARTNER: California-Hawaii Elks The Glick Family Foundation James Leisy
$1,000+ Association Hennings-Fischer Howard Long
3D Rapid Prototyping, Inc. Casey Family Foundation Foundation Kathleen Lynch
AAUW Laguna Beach Duane Cave Bill Hewitt Yash Manchanda
Stephen Abdo Tammy Descoteaux Leslie Humphrey Maria Mayenzet
AT & T California Stephen Dixon Matthew Hunt Brad McReynolds
Walter Babchuk Donovan Brothers Golf Inc. Anthony Huntley Mission Viejo Nadadores
Alda Babusek EMS Management Infiniti of Mission Viejo My Sports Dreams
Ball Park Pizza Team RSM Estate of Samuel Leibowitz Jackson, DeMarco, Tidus, & National Charity League, Inc.,
Barbara Belyea Rod Everett Peckenpaugh Saddleback Valley Chapter

Keenan & Associates

Best Best and Krieger, LLP Follett Higher Education Group National Charity League, Inc.,

Michael Bower Jennifer Forouzesh Christopher Kelly Capistrano Coast Chapter
Donald Bowman Four Seasons Youth Ladera Ranch Community John Negus-Hogan Family
Services Foundation
Richard Boyer Symphony
; Laguna Beach Garden Club Terence Nelson
Dennis Freed

Dr. Joe Brown , , .

Laguna Niguel Lions Club Neudesic, L.L.C.
Dane Bullock Ralph Gang

David Lang New Beginnings, Inc.

Linda Gleason
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Kevin O'Connor

OCTA

ORCO Block Company

Pacific Symphony Orchestra
Palmia Women's Issues Group
Parker Aerospace

Angela Plunkett

Scott Pollack

Rancho Mission Viejo, LLC

RGP Planning and
Development Services

James Richardson
Donald & Sandy Rickner

Rose Society of Saddleback
Mountain

San Clemente Garden Club

San Clemente Men's
Golf Club

Schools First Federal
Credit Union

Gregory Smith

Victoria Stephenson
Stratasys

Brian & Jean Thompson
Anthony Tinervia

Len Todisco

Toyota Motor Sales,
U.S.A., Inc.

University Sports
Publications

Veterans of Foreign Wars,
Post 9934

David & Jacquelynn Walker

Women's Club of San Juan
Capistrano

Andrea Workman
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Cadence Wynter
Jacqueline Zimbalist

FRIENDS OF THE
COLLEGE: $500+

Air Conditioning Services of
California, Inc.

Janet Anderson
Arroyo Trabuco Golf Club

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya,
Ruud & Romo

Audi Mission Viejo

Baja Fresh Mexican Grill
Capistrano Beach

Renee Bangerter
Doug Barr

Douglas Bates
Camelia Bauer
Robyn Belz

Mike Bennett

Judy Bethe

Regina Brown
Teresa Camacho
Camera Club of Laguna Hills
Canyon Crest Garden Club
Capistrano Toyota
Edward Cardona
Eva Carpenter

Gary Champlin
Chapman University
Bobbi Clow
Coastline Collision
College Donors

Bob Cosgrove
Edwin (Bud) Davis

DCP Services, LLC
Dealersocket, Inc.
Mary De Moss
Marisa Diaz-Waian

Dougherty & Dougherty

Architects LLP
Bruce Dunbridge
Dynacast, Inc.
Laura Espinoza
Thomas Evans
Linda Ferrari
David Ferret
Terry Fisher
Michael Graham
Ann Hagerty
John Hambuch
Diane Harkey
HCTD, LLC
Robert Henderson
Rosa Heredia
Merton Hill
Donald Howren
Seniye Huang
10C
Jerry Jacobson
James Jones

Cleone Justesen TTE

Steven Keener
Bryan Krueger
Kirk Langs
Yvonne Lee
Donald Lorack
John Ludwig
Walt Mahaffa

Edward Martin

Duane McDonald

Tim McMahon
Metronom Health Inc.
Robert Meyer, II TTE
Miki Mikolajczak
Mission Viejo Glass, Inc.
David Murtaugh

National League of
American Pen Women

Sophie Nyles

Curt O'Brien

Orange County Fine Arts
Tom Padberg

Michael Peak

Pofahl Memorial Scholarship
Michael Reynolds

Rush Limbaugh Club of
South Orange County

Philip Sacks

Saddleback Area Historical
Society

Saddleback Driving Range

Sea View Orthopaedic
Medical Group

Nancy Skelley

Debra Somers-Closs
Robert & Janet Spidell
Jill & Mark Spitzer
Kevin Stephan

Susan Strong

Nancy Tallman

Lise Telson

Terrific Tint Inc.

C.A. Trahan
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University of California,
Berkeley

University of California, Irvine
Donna Varner

Rhonda Villines

Patricia Walker

Wayne Ward

FRIENDS OF THE
COLLEGE: $100+

AAUW San Clemente/Capo
Bay Branch Endowment

Debbi Abalos
Doug Abramson
Hortencia Adams
John Adams

Advanced Exercise
Equipment

Cheryl Ahern
Helen Akesson
Roy Alamon
David Alewine
Toni Alexander

Alicia Air Conditioning
& Heating, Inc.

Mark Almaraz
Christian Alvarado
Thomas Amen

American Legion Saddleback
Valley Post 862

Joanne Anderson
Kathryn Anderson
Wanda Andreas
Eugene Anson
Annamaria Antoni
Brigitte Archer

Philip Archer

Jack Askelson

Jamil Atcha

Gail Austin

Juan Avalos

Avery Parkway Liquor
Bianca Babchuk
Wayne Babchuk
Raymond Baca

Bob Baekes

Janet Bagwell

Jana Baichtal
Charlene Bailey Crowe
Juanita Baltierra

John Bare

Gary Barnak

James Barnes

Ernie Barney

Bryon Baron

Pamela Barr

Sharon Barrett
Michael Barth

Ted Bascue

Cathy Bass

Bauer Physical Therapy
Don Baughman
Stephanie Becker
Beckwith Print Sales
Bruce Beekley

H.L. Belz

Catherine Beres

Berg Insurance Agency, Inc.
Nancy Bessette

Best Western Capistrano Inn
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Tom Bistline
Construction, Inc.

Steven H. Blackwell
Mark Blethen

Jack Bloodworth
Bluedoor

Mary Blum

Nancy & Harry Blum
Laura Booher

Edna Boulton

Karen Bousquet
Shirley Bower
Bradley Bowlin
Doreen Boxer

Julia Brady-Jenner
Erik Brandi

Robert Breech
Elizabeth Brewington
Brad Bridges

Lyn Britt

Derance Broadnax, Jr.
Beth Brokaw
Brenda Brook
William Broomfield
Beverly Brown

Jan Brown

Randy Brown
Johanna Browne
Wayne Brule

Louis Bryant

Mary Lou Bubany
James Budke
Zenida Bufton
Susan Buist

Barbara Bullard

Chuck & Bambi Burnes
Don Busché

Bymar Tire, Inc.

Rachel Cabrera
Joseph Caggiano
Albert Calfe

California Pharmacy
Jeannine Camarillo
D'Leo Cameron

Bob Caniglia

David Carlile

Jason Caro

Jerry & Debi Carpenter
Richard Carr

Fred Carrera

Brenda Carroll

Diane Casey

Lurdes Casillas
Patricia Cassidy

Lori Cassriel

Estella Castillo-Garrison
Williams Cates
Deborah Chambers
Deidre Cavazzi

Henry Chambers
Phillip Chandler

Channel H
dba Harrison Greetings

Ann Chapman

Jerilyn Chuman Maremont
Rocky Cifone

Theresa Gimmarrusti
James Clark



Jack Clingan
James Coates
Ana Maria Cobos
Jack Cohen
John Colclough
Percy Cole

Stan Collins
Thomas Colt

Cookie Lee Jewelry/
Joni Anderson

Cookie Lee/Lisa Espinoza
Karin Cooper

Mary McGill Cordes
Kevin Cormack
Anthony Correia
Kerry Crabb

Steve Crapo

CSEA Chapter 586
Barbara Culverhouse
Robert Cummings
Dennis Curran

Jay Dabba

Tracy Daly

Mary Danenhauer
Dave's Clock Shop
Judy Davis

Melinda Davis
Natalie & James Day
Kirby Dean

David Deberry

DEFA Prana Center
Anne Deffebach
Dorothy & Bernard Dehlin
Sandi De Ladurantey
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Bert De La Sanchez
Deli Case

Audra DiPadova

David Dole

Berniece Donahue
Deborah Donoghue
Joshua Doyle
Christopher Dragomanovich
Sharon Dudley

Robert Duginger
Laura Duvall

Philip Eddins

Norman Edwards
Thomas Egan

Joanne Egner

Carolyn Ehrlich
Randall Eller

El Toro Gourmet Meats
Andria Emde

Elisia Emel

Emercon Construction Inc.
Erinee Marketing
Manuel Estrada

Brent Evans

Craig Evans

Nancy Guelff Evans
Patricia Evans-Wallin
Danette Ewoldt
Anthony Fahr

Kent Falk

Bruce Fawcett
Marylou Ferguson
Scott Ferguson-Greene
Mary Fetter

John Fildes

Paul Firth

Bob Fisher

Krista Fisher
Schorre Fisher
Edward Fitch

Robert Fitzgerald
Fletcher Jones Motorcars
Theresa Flores-Gibb
Gary Forkel

Richard Forkel

Brad Forrester
Michael Forster
Travis Fort

Forte Designs

Dr. Michael Foudy
George Fowler
Loraine Franklin
Kellie Freeman
Harvey Friedberg
Marc Gabel

Michael Gadigian
Christopher Gaisford
Gary Galiger

Art & Barbara Galyean
Roger Gartland
Jessica Garza
Kenneth Gebert
GeoKinetics

Brian George

Larry Gersten

Mike Getto

Abdol Ghassemian
Neusha Ghassemian

Timothy Gibbons
John Gibson
Paul Gillane
Carolyn Gillay
Gene Giordano
Regina Glenn
Jim Glubka
Ruben Gomez
Ray Gonzales
Frank Gonzalez
Francis Goodwin
Mark Graves
Pat Grazer

Doug Green
Andrew Gruber
Cynthia Guerra
James Guilfoil
Matthew Gunderson
Stephen Guthrie
Lynnae Guzman
Barry Haberman
Hector Haget
Lee Haggerty
Haigh Builders
Mabel Hall
Milton Hall

John Ham

Harry Hansen
Centhy Hansford
Joan Hanson
Wendy Harder
C.A. Hardgrove
Jeanne Hardwegg
Chinta Hari
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Daniel Harney

Laura Harper
Christopher Harrington
Jeanne Harris-Caldwell
Kevin Hart

Regina Hartley

James Haslem

Ron Hastings

J.R. Hawkins

Hawks Baseball Club
Heart Rate, Inc.

Luann Hedbany
Corinne Heidemann
Steven Heidemann
Cindy Heil

Hector Hershberger
Daniel Hile

Carol Hilton

Dennis Hlozek

Hobson Roofing Company
Vern Hodge

Mary Hodges

Tom Hoey

Hoffman Fabrics

L. Holdings

Kirk Hollingsworth
M.C. Hollingsworth
Diane Holt

Loma Hopkins Webber
Keith Hornos

Seniye Huang

Diane Huntzinger
Richard Hurley
Elizabeth Ininns

Lisa Inlow
In-N-Qut Burger
Robert Inouye
Chris & Craig lwami
Tony Jabs
Genevieve Jackson
Kym Jackson
Laurie Jacobs
Holly Jaenichen
Junius Jaubert
William Jay
Joseph Jean
Marsha Jenkins
Mario Jennings
Zachary Jenson
Pam Jimenez
JMac Performance
Qiana Johnson
Tom Johnson
Victor Johnston
Gabriella Jones
Susan Jones

J. T. Restaurant, L.P.
K Apollo Inc.
Mychal Kabeary
Suzanne Kahler
Herbert Kaichi
Kent Kaluf

Katnik & Katnik
Brenda Katsandris
Roxanne Kaufman
Michael & Kerry Keen
Maureen Kelley
Robert Kelley
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Trish Kelley
Roberta Kelly
Debra Kerr
Norma Kershaw
Connie Kihyet-Findiesen
Bruce Kinghorn
Joan Kirkman
Dona Kirsten
John Klink

Brian Klinker
Donna Knauer
Linda & Robert Knoth
Curtis Knox
David Koffs
Joseph Kollock
Olivia Komp
Hiromasa Konishi
Michael Kootsouradis
Lorraine Kramer
Christina Kreditor
Girish Kripalani
Mark Kruhmin
Larry Kuehn

Ruth Kurisu
Thomas Lamar
David Landreth
Mike Landry
Robert Lapin
Philip Larson

Las Golondrinas
Carrie Laster

Law Offices of
Mark W. Fredrick

Jim Leach

Daniel Le Fluer
Sheila Leon

David Leslie

Wendy & Stan Levin
Joe Lo Basso
Sharon Long
Michael Looney
Juanita Losaria
Cynthia Lovato

Lorie Lowery

Judith Lucchesi
Roland Luck

Maria Lupo

Ellen Lus

David Lush

David Lutch

Kenneth Lynn
Jennifer Lyons

Milo Lystne

Patricia & Robert MacDonald
James MacEwan
Michael Macey
MacGillivray Freeman Films
Noel Maleady

David Mallis

Sarah Mallon

Perry Maloney
James Manarino
Manarino Realty LLC
M&M Physical Therapy
James Marcus
Marine Room
Nicholas Markiw
Ray Martin
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Judith Martinson
Susan Marty
Sandy Marzilli

Stan Masterson
Robert Matush
Rachel Maytorena
James Mazzarella
Michael McCabe
Patricia McCalla
Mary Ann McCarthy
Marcia McCormack
Jennie McCue
Diana McCullough
Colleen McCune
Katie McEwen
Terrance McGovern
Patricia McIntosh
Linda McKenzie
Jim McLaughlin
Patricia McRae
Felipe Medina
Frank Meldau
Wilkins Melian
James Mellor
David Mercadante
John Merlino
Robert Mesa

Sarah Metherell
Robert Meyer
Mighty Oak Entertainment

Hon. Marcia & Dr. Ben
Milchiker

Doug Miller
Douglas Miller
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Michael Miller

Sherry Miller-White
Andrew Milligan
Matthew Miner

Milan Miner

Junko Miners

Michelle Miranda
Mission Tire Center
Mission Viejo Chevron Service
Mission Viejo Lions Club
Mission Viejo Rotary Club

Mission Viejo Saddleback
Valley Elks Lodge #2444

Laura Montana
Karla Moore
Patricia Moore
Ruth Moos
Susan Morgan
Richard Morley
Judith Morton
Loretta Mosher
Larry Mount

Pat Moy

Ray Mullen

Paul Munoz
Colleen Murphy
Donna Murray
Phyllis Murray
Christine Murtha
Charlie Myers
Patricia Naegely
Karen Jaker Napack
Nabil Nasre
Susan Nawa-Raridon

James Needham

Nellie Gail Ranch Tennis and
Swim Club

Sally Nelson

Scott Nelson
Network for Good
Gwendolyth North
Ronald North
Howard Norton
Michael Norton
Jerry Nunnally
Mike O'Brien
Jennifer Ohl

Gary Okamoto
Shirley Olson

T.F. O'Malley
Genevieve Ortegon
Enrique Ortiz, Jr.
Ethel Otchis

Glen Otis

Pacific Coast Tool & Supply
Carol Padilla

Dee Ann Page
Palmia Garden Club

Paradise Automotive
Group Inc.

Lori Parra
Colleen Patterson
Gregory Pautsch
Niels Pearson
Willie Penalosa
Robert Perez
Troy Perry
Ronald Peterson

Stephen Petilli

Jo Ann Petrick
Andrew Phillips
Kathleen Phillips-Stucki
Jill Picone

Ginger Pierson

Tom Pigeon

Robert Pimentel
Claire Pocock

Gary Poertner
Ponchillow LLC
Kevin Potts

Phil Prado

Premier Sales Group
Prep Sportswear

Prestige Worldwide
Lacrosse Inc.

Richard Primmer
William Puryear
James Pyle

Quality Motors

R.J. Noble Company
Charles Ramirez
Lauren Ramirez

The Ranch Sports Grill
Karen Randall
Donna Rane-Szostak
Kevin Rans

Paul & Linda Reagan
Cecil Reames
Dennis Reed

Michael Reed
Joanne Reid

Jodi Reitman
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Relax and Tan Suntanning

Gabriel Renga
Robert Rennie
Margaret Rhoads
Sam & Connie Ricchio
Tamera Rice

Chris Richardson
Dan Richlin

Marilyn Richman
Rosann Rios

Debra Ritchie

Patti Rocklin
Patricia Roess
Antonio Romero
Tracey Rose

John Roselli
Alannah Rosenberg
Eileen Rosenberg
Jane Rosenkrans
Mary Rosenthal
Stuart Ross

R2A Architecture
Robert & Audrey Ruben
Pamela Rumi

Brian Runner

Gary Sabella

David Sage

John Salazar Jr.
William Salesky
Marty Samuel

San Clemente Orthopaedic

Rehabilitation
Sandpiper Lounge
Linda Sandusky

Santora's Restaurant
Darrel Sarrazin

Steve Sawicz

Joan Scarantino
Clifton Schermerhorn
Gordon Schick

Jean Schlesinger
Lawrence Schmidt
Betsy Schmitz
Stanley Schneider
William Schobert
Joseph Schreiber
Phillip & Susan Schreiber
Charles Schultz
Robert Schwenck
SEl Giving Fund
Joyce Semanik

Luis Serrano

James & Frances Shanks
Lynn Shardlow
Patricia Shaughnessy
Robert Shawler

Matt Sherman

Linda Shield

Nancy Shield

Tom Shigemoto
Robin Sickles

Lisa Silveira

Robert Simon

Lindel Smith

Peter T. Smrecek, Jr. D.D.S.,

Inc., M.A.G.D.
James Snyder
Paula Snyder
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Robert Snyder

SOCCCD Faculty Association

Esther Sokolick

Julie Sommer

Tori Songer

Judith Soroudi

Steve Soter

Rex Souders

South Coast Distributing
Von Spitzer

Sports Clinic Orthopedic
Medical Associates Inc.

Victor Stegman
Melvin Steinkamp
Blake Stephens
Lois Stevens

Ken Stokesberry
John Stoland
Karah Street
Fred Strong

Lee Strother
Chris Stubbs
Garne Stubbs
Studio Savvy Inc.
The Sturges Family
Alex Suarez
Michael Sullivan
Thomas Sumner
Surfin Souvlaki
Robert Swanson
Jack Swerngin
Kathryn Takach
Audrey Takitani
Fawn Tanriverdi

Don Taylor

Pete Tereschuk
Maryanne Thomas
Floyd Thompson
Russell Thompson
Sean Thompson
William Thompson
James Thor

Eleanor Todd

Michael Todd

Peter Tolson

James Tomac

Touch of Class Coiffers
Claire Tracey
Kieu-Trang Tiffany Tran

Transtar Property
Management

Paul Traum

David Trombley
Steven Trotter

Greg Tucker

Tucker Tire Company
Nancy Turner

J. Edward Tuttle
W.D. Tuttle
Lawrence Twicken
USA Premier Baseball
Sharon Valdez

Mike Van Guilder
Margie Van Lierop
James Van Schaack
Bruce Van Vranken
Angel Vargas

Rose Veldhuizen, TR



Samantha Venable Terry Wedel Kolin Williams Linda Wright
Theresa Vinegar Patti Weekes Luther Williams Monica Wright
James Von Tungeln Rita Weiler Dawn Wilsey Jesse Yancosek
Jacqueline Wade Tyler Weinstein Charles Wilson Amina Yassine
Ronald Wade Wendy Wetzel-Harder Joan Wilson Cindy Yasui
Russell Wade Daniel Whelan Russell Winninghoff Melody Yen
Dennis Walker Bruce White Nancy Wisniewski Gary Yench
Harriett Walther Scott White Michael Witt Lawrence Zadan
Calvin James Waters Terri Whitt Peter Woodfill Michael Zeffiro
Skip & RuAnn Watson Jon Williams William N. Woods Mike Zinniker
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

outh Orange County Community College
S District (SOCCCD), founded in 1967, is

one of 72 community college districts in
California. It is a multi-campus district comprised of
Saddleback College in Mission Viejo, Irvine Valley
College (IVC) in Irvine, and the Advanced Technol-
: ogy and Education Park (ATEP) in Tustin. We serve
Nancy M. Padberg EHRends s il MarcialIc Sy over 43,000 students each year and employ more

than 3,247 faculty and staff. Saddleback College

and Irvine Valley College are accredited institutions,
preparing students for associate degrees, transfer
to four-year colleges and universities, workforce
development, and basic skills training.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 2011-2012

= The board is comprised of eight trustees: seven

R R David B, Lang LT members are elected at-large to four-year terms by

the voters in south Orange County, and the student

trustee is elected by the students of Saddleback

and Irvine Valley colleges and serves a one-year

advisory term of office from May through the

following April. The board is responsible for over-

seeing all academic programs and educational

services by establishing policies to assure the

e quality, integrity and effectiveness of the student

Dr. James R. ;Vright Heather Park Gary L P.oertner learning programs and Services, and the financial
e Rhs e Nl stability of Saddleback College, Irvine Valley College

and the Advanced Technology and Education Park.

CHANCELLOR

Gary L. Poertner was appointed Chancellor of the
South Orange County Community College District
beginning December 1, 2010. Under his leader-
ship, SOCCCD was one of the first districts in the
state to fully fund its retiree liability. The chancellor
oversees 3,247 employees and 43,000 students at
Saddleback College in Mission Viejo, Irvine Valley
College in Irvine, and the Advanced Technology &
Education Park in Tustin. He supervises an annual
budget of more than $486 million.



“There is nothing
more satisfying
than helping
others realize
their potential
and celebrate
their dreams.”

—Bernard Osher,
Philanthropist

The Saddleback College Foundation is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization. Tax ID # 33-0390547

Saddleback Colleg
28000 Marguerite Parkway ® Mis
Phone: 949.582.4479 e Fax: 949.364.93
Email: scfound@saddleback.edu

www.saddleback.edu/foundation




IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE

ADVANCING
STUDENT
SUCCESS

Report
to the
Community
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FOR OVER 27 YEARS IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE
has been advancing success for our students and our
community. Today, over 15,000 students attend IVC
each year, many transferring to a four-year college, many
moving into successful careers, and many experiencing
the “community” in community colleges—enriching
their lives through IVC’s distinguished arts, sports,

Emeritus and other community programs.

IVC offers an exceptional value for the highest quality
education. IVC is ranked #1 in Orange County and #3
among all California community colleges for its transfer
rates. Students transfer successfully not only to UC and
CSU campuses but also to prestigious universities across the
nation—USC, Stanford, Caltech, Chapman, Columbia,
Johns Hopkins, Cornell, and Brown, to name just a few.
IVC transfers have historically outperformed students who

started their education at four-year universities.

As we look to the future, we welcome entrepreneurial
community partners to bring together the resources to
make a difference in the quality of higher education at
Irvine Valley College. Whether your interest is in promoting
programs such as STEM (science, technology, engineering
and math) to advance economic growth, or in assisting
students who are just entering college, mid-life learners
returning to college to retrain in a new skill or profession, or
veterans recently back from Iraq and Afghanistan, we
welcome your support and investment. Please join us in

advancing student success at Irvine Valley College.

pilvasp % /EJ?MM

Glenn R. Roquemore, PhD
President, Irvine Valley College






IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE (IVC) IS A PUBLIC,
comprehensive and diverse community college with over
15,000 students, including over 400 international
students from over 35 countries. Known as a leader
among California community colleges, the 27-year-old
institution is dedicated to student success and to providing
high-quality, accessible and affordable education for all.
Located on 100 acres of beautifully landscaped, park-like
property in the heart of Irvine, the IVC campus offers
students exceptional educational opportunities in
state-of-the-art facilities. The college takes pride in its
multi-talented faculty and staff.



Did you know?

@ IVC currently offers over 60 Associate in Arts (AA)
and Associate in Science (AS) degree majors and over 50

career technical certificate programs.

@ IVCis ranked #1 in Orange County and #3 among all
California community colleges in transfer rates to four-

year institutions.

@ New Career Technical Education (CTE) programs at
IVC encourage transfer and/or immediate employment
opportunities in areas such as electronics, recycling and
resource management, paralegal studies, applied museum

studies and entrepreneurship.

@ 1VC has a strong and active Honors Program and
over 20 honors classes each semester for academically
talented and motivated students. Our award-winning
chapters of the honor societies Phi Theta Kappa and Psi

Beta make us proud.

@ IVC’s 13 outstanding men’s and women’s athletic
teams include state champions—most recently the 2010-
2011 women’s golf team, men’s volleyball team and

women’s badminton team.

@ Each year, IVC offers a spectrum of classes for
approximately 12,000 emeritus students at convenient

off-campus sites.

@ Over 400 students from three area high schools are
enrolled in IVC’s Early College Program and will receive
both high school and college credit for completing
approved CSU- and UC-transferable IVC courses.

Our Campus:

Advancing Student Success

IVC offers students an exceptional value for outstanding
undergraduate preparation. By completing their first 60
units of lower-division general education and major
coursework at IVC and then transferring to complete
their upper-division work at a UC or CSU campus or
private/independent college, students can save thousands

of dollars in tuition and fees.

"WE OFFER A SMALL-COLLEGE ATMOSPHERE
WITH OUTSTANDING STUDENT SERVICES
AND QUALITY INSTRUCTION. OUR MISSION
IS TO PROVIDE AN INCREASINGLY RELEVANT
CURRICULUM AND THE LATEST TECHNOLOGY
TO PREPARE OUR STUDENTS FOR THE
FUTURE.”

—Glenn R. Rogquemore, PhD, President,
Irvine Valley College




Value to the Community

VALLEY COLLEGE HAS A DRAMATIC,
h year '_;jl'id_'é'ints leave IVC and either go on to seck an
nced degree at a four-year college or university, or
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e community as a whole.
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27 FULL-TIME
ADMINISTRATORS/
CLASSIFIED MANAGERS

120
FULL-TIME
FACULTY

188
CLASSIFIED
STAFF

Our Campus:

Advancing Student Success

The academic and career achievements of IVC students
are inspired by the exemplary accomplishments of IVC’s
faculty and staff. College employees have been repeatedly
selected by their professional peers to serve at the regional,
state and national level. IVC faculty members have been
named the countywide Community College Teacher of
the Year eight times. Excellence in their fields translates
into excellence in their classrooms. Between 2010-12

alone, IVC employees received the following recognition:

Orange County Community College Teacher of the Year

Honors Program Director of the Year
(California/Nevada)

Pacific Southwest Speech and Forensics Coach
of the Year

UC Irvine Educator Recognition Awards (eight IVC
award winners)

Statewide Classified Employee of the Year/
Vision Award
Distinguished Chair Fullbright Scholar 2012-13

Two national titles: 2012 National Parliamentary
Debate Association National Championships

2012 CLERC Award for Outstanding Chinese

Teaching

Acknowledgment in 7he Princeton Review (2012) as
one of “The 300 Best Professors”




IVC HAS EXPERIENCED OVER 27 YEARS OF
steady growth and development. Thanks to our passionate
students, strong community support and dedicated faculty
and staff, we continue to see exceptional results with our
students in spite of national economic uncertainty and an

unprecedented fiscal crisis at the state level.

Opver the next couple of decades, our college looks forward
to continuing to provide students with the finest education
possible. Looking ahead, the future at IVC is filled with a
busy schedule of arts, athletics, increased outreach to the
community and new and innovative academic and career

programs to meet the changing needs of a global economy.

As our academic and career programs grow, we will also
need to expand our campus, repurposing some buildings,
constructing new classrooms and labs, adding parking
structures, more resource centers, and a new entrance,
among other projects. We recently opened a beautifully
landscaped outdoor venue, and plans are in the works to
create community gardens, to dedicate a wildlife
conservation area, and to support more sustainable and
drought-resistant landscaping. Our innovative public art
program, the biannual outdoor sculpture invitational

(BOSI), also continues to go strong.



The IVC Foundation

THE IVC FOUNDATION BOARD OF GOVERNORS,
its benefactors and supporters believe that advancing
education, advancing our community and advancing the
economic growth of our region are among the greatest
investments we can make in our community. Without the
support of the IVC Foundation and its donors, the quality
of the educational experience that IVC provides to
thousands of students each year would be at risk. Private
fundraising, gifts and bequests are increasingly significant
factors that help the college deliver the first-rate education

that is the underlying foundation of our students’ success.

The Foundation is dedicated to ensuring that IVC has
the resources it needs to provide a high-quality, affordable
and accessible college education to the residents of the

city of Irvine and its neighboring communities.

Join us today and help us advance to a brighter, more
prosperous future for our region and our state. The Irvine
Valley College Foundation is a non-profit 501(c)(3)
charitable organization (Tax ID#77-0239916).

Find out more by calling 949/451-5472 or going to the

Foundation website at www.ivc.edu/foundation.

The IVC Foundation
Board of Governors

Chair
William M. Crosby, Esq., Barnes, Crosby, FitzGerald & Zeman

First Vice Chair
Eric Johnson, Profit Recovery Partners, LLC

Second Vice Chair
Candace M. Huie, CPA, White Nelson Diehl Evans LLP

Secretary
Robert Chow, M.D.

Treasurer
William Hewitt, Community Representative

Past Chairman
Julie Davis, Coast to Coast Business Equipment

Foundation Executive Director
Richard H. Morley, CFRE, CSPG, Irvine Valley College

Board Members

Lisa Davis Allen, PhD, Irvine Valley College
George Brogan, Irvine Valley College
Chip Corso, Edwards Lifesciences, LLC
Ernest Hackmon, Topgallant Energy, LLC
Diane Oaks, Irvine Valley College

Gary Poertner, South Orange County
Community College District

Stephen Rochford, DMA, Irvine Valley College
Glenn R. Roquemore, PhD, Irvine Valley College
Susan Sweet, Irvine Valley College

Fawn Tanriverdi, Irvine Valley College

Thomas Thien, Irvine Valley College

William Woollett, Jr., Irvine City Manager Emeritus




THE FOUNDATION REACHED A MILESTONE
with a second consecutive year of over $1 million in
revenue, at $1,045,418. The charts on the right show
2011-2012 income, as well as the distribution of the
revenue in expenses including scholarships, PRO IVC
project funding and other programs that the Foundation
funds back to Irvine Valley College. Fundraising expenses
were below the nonprofit sector average at 13%, as were

general overhead and operating costs at 16%.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

@ A record number of 650 IVC students submitted
applications for scholarships. Over $164,000 in scholarships
was awarded at our annual scholarship ceremony and a
total of $299,000 was awarded for the year.

@ The IVC 2012 PRO IVC campaign exceeded our goal,
receiving $351,150 in pledges. This includes 14 new
accounts and an outstanding track record of philanthropic
support by our IVC faculty, staff and administration, as

well as our community supporters.

@ A $10,000 anonymous gift was received for student
scholarships and for projects that enhance teaching and
learning. Six “Learning Excellence” scholarships were
awarded and a competition designed and carried out by
writing, math, and physics professors, in conjunction with
the Foundation, will award “Teaching Excellence” projects
in the fall of 2012.

@ 'The 25th Anniversary Astounding Inventions, sponsored
by Greenberg Traurig, LLP in January 2012, saw a record
attendance of over 2,600 people with 465 inventions created
by K-8 Tustin Unified and Irvine Public School Districts on
display in IVC’s Hart Gymnasium. Judges included execu-
tives, entrepreneurs, scientists and engineers from local
corporations, such as Raytheon, Edwards Lifesciences,
Boeing, SRS Labs and the Capital Group. The event

contributed over $23,000 in revenue to the Foundation.



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

July 1, 2011

Beginning Balance
ASSETS
Cash at Wells Fargo Bank $132,016
Temp. Restricted - Wells Fargo $486,264
Endowed Funds - Wells Fargo $559,581
Investments at CCCSE Endowment Fund A $370,735
Accounts Receivable $5,614
Prepaid Expenses $4,621
Total Current Assets $1,558,831
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $5,629
Total Liabilities $5,629
Net Assets
Discretionary Funds' $86,910
Temp. Restricted - Wells Fargo? $535,708
Endowed Funds - Wells Fargo Endowment? $537,113
Endowed Funds - Osher $370,735
Endowment Funds - Scholarships* $22,468

Scholarships* $267
Total Net Assets $1,553,202
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $1,558,831

EXPENSES 2012
To College
Overhead
Fundraising

Total

$753,655
$197,110
$79,309
$1,030,074

June 30, 2012
Balance

$153,195
$481,918
$560,642
$385,334
$2,716
$2,633
$1,586,438

$6,405
$6,405

$21,529
$570,728
$555,893
$385,334
$4,750
$41,799
$1,580,033
$1,586,438

2011-2012 INCOME
Contributions

Events

Revenue

District support

Total

A Investments on deposit with
the CCCSE (Osher)
Endowment Fund

" Includes Development
Fund, Astounding Inventions,
Foundation Awards Dinner
and Golf Tournament
accounts.

2 Temporary Restricted Funds
are established and
maintained with
contributions that have
donor-imposed restrictions
or are contributions solicited
for a restricted purpose.

3 All accounts set up as
endowments earn interest
and require a minimum
balance of $5,000.

4 Accounts set up to be used
strictly for scholarships.
Money is deposited and
disbursed for student
scholarships only
(non-endowment, non-trust
accounts).

$388,104
$54,195
$208,332
$394,787
$1,045,418

Contributions
District 37%
Support
38%

Revenue
20%




Donor Guide to Giving

THE IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE FOUNDATION
provides several ways for you to support our educational

programs and our students.

@ General College Support: Unrestricted gifts provide
the greatest benefit to the college by allowing the IVC
Foundation to address the greatest needs that the college
has identified for funding. These gifts allow the most
general support of all campus projects and student
scholarships and enable the Foundation to grow the
capability to generate more revenue to support our

students and faculty.

@ Student Support: Scholarships can be awarded based
on academic merit and/or financial need. Scholarship
awards assist [IVC students with fees, books, and the general
cost of attending IVC. Contact the IVC Foundation at
949/451-5472 to discuss specific scholarship criteria that
you are interested in funding. For more information on

scholarships, see www.ivcscholarships.org.

CONTACT THE
IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE
FOUNDATION:

RICHARD H. MORLEY, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
RMORLEY@IVC.EDU
949/451-5290



@ Support for Excellence in Teaching and Learning;
These gifts provide direct support to enrich student
learning and student success. The IVC Foundation seeks to
support faculty excellence and innovation in teaching and

learning excellence.

@ Equipment and Facilities: IVC continues to lead the
way in our students transferring to four-year institutions.
It is crucial that our equipment and facilities, especially in
the highly competitive, rapidly changing world of science,
technology, engineering and math (STEM), provide state-

of-the-art learning experiences for IVC students.

@ PRO IVC: The “Promote IVC” program provides
faculty and staff a means to generate funds to support
their specific programs and entities. The PRO IVC
campaign kicks off each fall and culminates on or about
April 1 each year.

@ President’s Leaders Circle: The President’s Circle is an
elite group of donors who have access and input to the

college through IVC President Glenn Roquemore, PhD.

Current Gifts. Current gifts can be made by mail or by
visiting the IVC Foundation on campus. Current gifts may
include cash or gifts of stocks or securities. Gifts of stocks or
securities may afford you, the donor, significant savings in
capital gains taxes. A gift of highly appreciated but
nonperforming stocks is an excellent way to consider

supporting IVC students, faculty and staff.

Gifts of Personal Property. For current gifts of securities

or in-kind gifts, please call the Foundation at 949/451-5290.

Scholarships. A full list of IVC scholarships can be found online
at www.give2ivc.org. You may give online to an established
scholarship. For setting up a new scholarship, see www.ivc-

scholarships.org, or call the Foundation at 949/451-5290.

Corporate Matching Gifts. Many local and national
corporations match individual gifts. Check with your
company’s human resources department to see if your

donation can be matched by your employer.

Online. You can access the IVC online giving page at

www.give2ivc.org. There you will find many ways to

support IVC students, faculty and staff and IVC
programs. You may use your credit card on our secure

online giving page.

Gifts of Real Estate. Real estate gifts can provide significant
current and lifetime benefits, including significant tax savings
upon wealth transfer. For more information on gifts of real

estate, g0 to Www.ivcgiving.org.

Gift Planning: Bequests and Trusts. For information on
gift planning, including a wealth of information about
charitable trusts that may provide significant tax savings
while maximizing your wealth transfer, see the IVC Gift

Planning website at www.ivclegacygiving.org.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.1
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting

ACTION: Approval

Minutes from:

October 29, 2012 Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees (Exhibit A)
are submitted to the Board for review and approval.

Item Submitted by: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor



























SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.2
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: 2013 International Debate Tour — People’s Republic of China (PRC)

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

Over the past 12 years, the forensics team of Irvine Valley College has taken over
80 students and coaches to the PRC for debate demonstrations and competitions.
The 2013 debate program will take students and coaches from Irvine Valley College
to China in May-June, 2013. The program would focus on training Chinese debaters
and competing in international tournaments held in China. The sponsoring
organization is the International Debate Education Association (IDEA). In addition to
the debating activities, a wide variety of cross-cultural opportunities will be available
for student growth. Students will enhance communication skills through involvement
with Chinese students as debate partners.

STATUS
PROGRAM ENROLLMENT:

A target of 18 students has been established with three coaches to accompany the
team. All costs for travel, food, lodging, and incidentals will be paid through a
combination of fund raising, forensics foundation account, or directly by the
participants. Supplemental allocations from ASIVC and staff development money for
faculty members may be utilized for tournament expenses as depicted in Exhibit B.

PROGRAM DURATION:

May 25 to June 10, 2013 (17 days) — Travel and competition would take place
immediately after the spring semester and commencement ceremonies as depicted
in Exhibit A.

VENUES:

Xi'an International Studies University and Beijing Foreign Studies University — IVC
has conducted several training sessions and debate tournaments at these
universities (2000, 2002, 2005, 2006, and 2010).

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the 2013
International Debate Tour to the People’s Republic of China.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore, President



Exhibit A

Summary and lItinerary

ACTIVITY: International Debate Education Association (IDEA) Debate
Tournament

WHEN: May 25-June 10, 2013 (17 days)

WHERE: Shanghai, Suzhou, Hangzhou, Beijing and Xi'an, PRC

IVC CONTACT: Professor Gary Rybold, Co-Director of Forensics
Irvine Valley College
5500 Irvine Center Dr. Irvine, CA 92618
(949) 451-5417 email: grybold@ivc.edu

Estimated maximum participants: 21
Application deadline: February 1, 2013 — Balance due March 15, 2013
Funding sources:
1. Student/coach individual contributions — International airfare would be
directly paid by participants to travel agency (estimate = $1,000 per

person, visa required $160) No IVC requisition required.

2. Fund raising by forensics team — Touring funds paid out of forensics IVC
foundation account (estimate = $1,165 per person)

3. Insurance (medical and evacuation) — Funds paid out of forensics IVC
foundation account (estimate = $50 per person)

4. In-country expenses — tournament hotel/meals in Xi'an and Beijing—
Funds paid out of ASIVC forensics account and/or Foundation account
(estimate = $250)

Estimated maximum cost - $2,625 per person

Travel specifics:

5/25/13 Depart LAX

5/26-28/13 Shanghai — Touring, training/mentoring Chinese debaters

5/28/13 Shanghai to Suzhou — Touring

5/29/13 Suzhou to Hangzhou - Touring

5/30/13 Transport to Xi'an — Xi'an International Studies University
5/31-6/2/13 IDEA International Debate Tournament — XISU

6/03/13 Transport to Beijing — Touring, training/mentoring Chinese debaters
6/8 & 9/13 Debate Tournament at Beijing Foreign Studies University

6/10/13 Depart Beijing — Arrive LAX


mailto:grybold@ivc.edu

Irvine Valley College

May 25, 2013 - June 10, 2013

Participant Cost Breakdown

Approximate Costs from Various Accounts

Package Tour 17 days $ 1,165.00
Meals & Hotels included
Tour Admissions included
Domestic Air/Airport Transfers included
Tour Bus included
Accommodations at tournament | $ 200.00
Insurance (Medical/Evacuation) $ 50.00
TOTAL | $ 1,415.00

Approximate Costs Not Included in Requisitions

Visa $ 160.00
International Airfare $ 1,000.00
Meals in Beijing $ 50.00
TOTAL | $ 1,210.00

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL | $ 2,625.00

Estimated Funding Breakdown:

Fund-raising & Individual 80%
Contributions:
Staff Development/Dept 10%
Accounts:

10%

Supplemental Allocations from
Student Government Accounts
from IVC:

Exhibit B

Forensics Team Travel to Compete in International Tournaments in China



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.3
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor

RE: Saddleback College and IVC: Spring 2013 Community Education
Programs

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

The South Orange County Community College District is known for offering high-
qguality Community Education programs for its residents. By providing non-credit
programs and fee-based classes, Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College
perform an important community service and fulfill a vital part of their missions.
Community Education programs, presenters, and accompanying compensation
require the approval of the Board of Trustees.

STATUS

A variety of educational and recreational events have been planned by the
Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College Community Education departments
for the Spring Semester 2013. Expenses for conducting these courses will be paid
by income from participant fees. The Saddleback College course offerings,
presenters, and compensation are outlined in Exhibit A. The Irvine Valley College
course offerings, presenters, and compensation are outlined in Exhibit B.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Community
Education courses, presenters, and compensation as presented in Exhibits A and B.

Iltem Submitted By: Dr. Tod A. Burnett and Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore, Presidents
























SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.4
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Speakers

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

Outside speakers may be invited by administrators, faculty members, or recognized
student groups to speak at events open to the public.

STATUS

Administrative Regulation 6140 requires that the Board of Trustees be notified, at
each board meeting, of speakers who have been invited to speak and/or who have
spoken at the colleges and/or ATEP since the last board meeting. Travel expenses
and/or honorarium for speakers must be recommended by the Chancellor or college
president and submitted to the Board prior to reimbursement of travel expenses or
payment of honorarium.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the general fund
honoraria as shown in Exhibit A.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Tod A. Burnett and Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore, Presidents



SPEAKERS APPROVED BY CHANCELLOR/COLLEGE PRESIDENT

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE

Exhibit A

Presentation

Faculty Member

General Fund

Date Course Title/Activity Speaker Name Topic Honorarium/Travel
11/28/12 April Cubbage-Vega - Kjerstin Gruys Body Image Awareness: To Educate $800
6:00pm Women’s & Gender Studies Students, Faculty and Staff on Eating ASG
SSC 212 Advisory Committee Speaker’s Disorders, Body Image and the Media

Series
12/3/12 April Cubbage-Vega - Adina Knack Beyond STD Stigma — To Educate $550
6:00pm Women’s & Gender Studies Students, Faculty and Staff on Healthy ASG
SSC 212 Advisory Committee Speaker’s Sexuality in the 21% Century

Series

IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE

Presentation
Date

Faculty Member
Course Title/Activity

Speaker Name

Topic

General Fund
Honorarium/Travel




SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.5
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College: Study Abroad Program to Santander, Spain

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

Saddleback College is committed to providing high quality education and a full range
of cultural activities for students. In the past, the College has offered similar
courses, which have been conducted in many countries of the world by expert
faculty who provide academic course work in conjunction with cultural travel
experiences. The college has conducted very successful study abroad programs
during the summer semesters in Santander, Spain since 1994. Study abroad
programs are authorized under Education Code 72640.

STATUS

The Liberal Arts and Learning Resources Division at Saddleback College proposes
to offer the study abroad program: Spanish Language Studies in Santander, Spain
during the summer 2013 semester from June 29 to July 30, 2013. The program will
be organized and arranged by Travel and Education for a fee of $5,850 per student
at a cost of $183 per day for 20-24 students, $5,550 per student at a cost of $173
per day for 25-29 students, or $5,460 at a cost of $171 per day for 30 or more
students. Saddleback College solicited three bids for this program: AIFS, Spanish
Studies Abroad, and Travel and Education. Travel and Education is the only travel
vendor able to provide the services that meet our criteria. The details of the program
are summarized in the Narrative in Exhibit A and the Study Abroad Program
Information Summary in Exhibit B. The required Educational Tour/Field Study
Contractor Agreement is provided in Exhibit C, which includes evidence of liability
insurance of not less than $5,000,000. The proposal from T&E is included in Exhibit
D. Financial Aid opportunities will be provided through the Office of Financial Aid for
those students who qualify. There is no impact to the General Fund. The current
travel warnings issued by the U.S. Department of State in Exhibit E does not include
Spain.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Saddleback
College study abroad program to Santander, Spain in the summer of 2013 as
summarized in Exhibit B, and directs the administration to execute the Educational
Tour/Field Study Travel Contractor Agreement with the Travel and Education for
coordinating all travel agreements in Exhibit C.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Tod A. Burnett, President

























































SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.6
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College: Study Abroad Program to Peru

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

Saddleback College is committed to providing high quality education and a full range
of cultural activities for students. In the past, the College has offered similar
courses, which have been conducted in many countries of the world by expert
faculty who provide academic course work in conjunction with cultural travel
experiences. Study abroad programs are authorized under Education Code 72640.

STATUS

The Liberal Arts and Learning Resources Division at Saddleback College proposes
to offer the study abroad program in Peru from March 14 to March 24, 2013. The
program will be organized and arranged by Travel and Education for a fee of $3,950
per student at a cost of $359 per day for 15 or more students. Saddleback College
solicited three bids for this program: AIFS, International Studies Abroad, Spanish
Studies Abroad, and Travel and Education. Travel and Education is the only travel
vendor able to provide the services that meet our criteria. The details of the program
are summarized in the Narrative in Exhibit A and the Study Abroad Program
Information Summary in Exhibit B. The required Educational Tour/Field Study
Contractor Agreement is provided in Exhibit C, which includes evidence of liability
insurance of not less than $5,000,000. The proposal from T&E is included in Exhibit
D. Financial Aid opportunities will be provided through the Office of Financial Aid for
those students who qualify. There is no impact to the General Fund. The current
travel warnings issued by the U.S. Department of State in Exhibit E does not include
Peru.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Saddleback
College study abroad program to Peru in the spring of 2013 as summarized in
Exhibit B, and directs the administration to execute the Educational Tour/Field Study
Travel Contractor Agreement with the Travel and Education for coordinating all
travel agreements in Exhibit C.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Tod A. Burnett, President
































































































SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.7
DATE: 11/19/2012

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College: Grant Acceptance, CTE Pathways Initiative, Allied

Health Expansion, Health Careers Readiness Project

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

In October 2012, Saddleback College was notified of the California Community Colleges
Chancellor's Office (CCCCO), intent to renew grant award 12-129-001. The program
supports the development and implementation of the Allied Health Expansion, Health
Careers Readiness for Basic Skills project at Saddleback. This student Success
oriented Health Careers Readiness program is housed within the Division of Health
Sciences and Human Services and offered as a not for credit career exploration and
basic skills preparation for health career education through Saddleback Community
Education. The Health Sciences Division, in collaboration with faculty from Math and
Reading, will: continue program refinement; offer a session this summer for incoming
Freshmen; and disseminate this Student Success program throughout Orange County
to Veterans interested in Healthcare Careers as well as ROP students wanting to
prepare for programs in Allied Health.

STATUS

On October 22, 2012, the CCCCO notified the College of its intent to award $250,000
for the period November 15, 2012 through January 31, 2014 to fund the project efforts
as presented in Exhibit A. In order to accomplish the goals identified in Exhibit A,
Saddleback will continue program refinement; offer a session this summer for incoming
Freshmen; and disseminate this Student Success program throughout Orange County
to Veterans interested in Healthcare Careers as well as ROP students wanting to
prepare for programs in Allied Health. Part-time faculty will teach the course and a
program specialist will be utilized to assist in program implementation and
administrative support.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees accept this award of $250,000
from the California Community College Chancellor's Office for the CTE Pathways
Initiative Grant 12-129-001.

Item Submitted By: Tod A. Burnett. Ed.D., President









SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.8
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College: Award of Bid 2006: Demolish Saddleback

College Classroom Cluster Building

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

The Learning Resource Center Renovation project (LRC) included demolition and
removal of the Classroom Cluster (CC) modular building located on the opposite
side of the quad. Due to scheduling issues, this demolition project was eliminated
from the LRC contract to be bid as a separate project.

STATUS

On October 25, 2012, sixteen bidders attended a mandatory job walk held at
Saddleback College for Bid No. 2006, Demolish CC Building. Six bids were received
on November 1, 2012. Staff reviewed the bids and recommends award to the lowest
bid meeting all specifications submitted by Cal United Construction Group, Santa
Ana, CA in the amount of $42,400.00. (Exhibit A).

Funds are available in the approved James B. Utt Memorial Learning Resource
Center Renovation budget which is $21,124,000.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees award Bid No. 2006 to
demolish and remove the CC building at Saddleback College and approve the
Agreement (Exhibit B) to Cal United Construction Group, Santa Ana, CA in the
amount of $42,400.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services





















SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.9
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College: Donated Equipment

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND
Saddleback College has identified two hundred and fifty Dell Computers with 17in
LCD Monitors for surplus. These computers are a minimum of six years old.

Education Code 81450.5 allows for the provision of donating property if three criteria
are met:

(a) District determines that the property is not required for school purposes, that it
should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or that it is unsatisfactory or
not suitable for school use.

(b) The property is exchanged with, or sold or donated to, a school district,
community college district, or other public entity that has had an opportunity to
examine the property proposed to be exchanged, sold, or donated.

(c) The receipt of the property by a school district or community college district
would not be inconsistent with any applicable district wide or school site technology
plan of the recipient district.

Education Code 81452 states: (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs
of arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization
deemed appropriate by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump
on order of any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board.

Board Policy 3600 authorizes the disposal of surplus or obsolete supplies and
equipment in conformance with the law and district procedures which are no longer
required or suitable for District purposes. The value of these computers is estimated
at a maximum of $11,500.

STATUS
Saddleback Valley Unified School District has expressed a desire for these two
hundred and fifty Dell Computers and Monitors.

All criteria for the donation have been met and staff recommends the donation of this
equipment.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the donation of two
hundred and fifty Dell Computers and Monitors to Saddleback Valley Unified School
District.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.10
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Budget Amendment: Adopt Resolution No. 12-37 to

Amend FY 2012-2013 Adopted Budget

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 58308 provides that the
Board of Trustees by resolution may amend the District budget to provide for the
expenditure of funds, the amount of which was unknown at the time of the
adoption of the final budget.

STATUS

In order to properly account for the revenues and expenditures of these funds, it
is necessary to amend the FY 2012-2013 Adopted Budget.

The District is updating the adopted budget with current information as follows:

General Fund

RapidTech Summer Engineering Academy at Saddleback College $316,600
Perkins Title I-C at Irvine Valley College $735
Board Financial Assistance Program (BFAP) at Irvine Valley College $51,190
Contract Education at Saddleback College $4,800
Total Increase to the General Fund $373,325
Total Budget Amendment $373,325

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees adopt Resolution No.
12-37 to amend the FY 2012-2013 Adopted Budget as indicated in Exhibit A.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 2

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND
RESOLUTION 12-37

November 19, 2012

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Orange County Community College
District has determined that income in the amount of $373,325 is assured to said District
in excess of the amounts required to finance the total proposed budget expenditures
and transfers for the current fiscal year from sources listed in Title 5 of the California
Code of Regulations, Section 58308;

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the South Orange County Community College
District can show just cause for the expenditure of such funds;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code
of Regulations, Section 58308, such excess funds are to be appropriated according to

the following schedule:

General Fund
Account
8100
8600
8800

Account
1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000
7000

Income Source
Federal Revenue
State Revenue
Local Revenue

Expenditure Description

Academic Salaries

Classified Salaries

Fringe Benefits

Books and Supplies

Other Operating Expenses and Services
Capital Outlay

Other Outgo

Amount
$735
$51,190
$321,400

$373,325

Amount
$191,437
$51,190
$24,121
$62,862
$15,335
$27,000
$1,380

$373,325




EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 2

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

BUDGET AMENDMENT
GENERAL FUND
RESOLUTION 12-37
November 19, 2012

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

)
COUNTY OF ORANGE )

I, Gary L. Poertner, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of South Orange County
Community College District of Orange County, California, hereby certify that the Budget
Amendment and foregoing Resolution in the amount of $373,325 was duly and regularly
adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on November 19, 2012.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and seal this 20th day of
November 2012.

Gary L. Poertner
Secretary to the Board of Trustees



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.11
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Transfer of Budget Appropriations

ACTION: Ratify

BACKGROUND

Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 58199 requires the Board of
Trustees to approve, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of its members, all transfers of
funds from its contingency reserve to any expenditure classification, and ratify, by
a majority vote, all transfers of funds between expenditure classifications other
than that originating from the Contingency Reserve.

STATUS
For the current reporting period ending October 31, 2012, and in accordance with

Administrative Regulation 3101, the Transfer of Budget Appropriations are
summarized on EXHIBIT A and presented for ratification.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees ratify the Transfer of
Budget Appropriations as detailed in EXHIBIT A.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



EXHIBIT A

Page 1 of 1
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
TRANSFER OF BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS SUMMARY
For the period 10-01-12 to 10-31-12
General Fund
Account Description From To
1000 Academic Salaries $7,676
2000 Classified Salaries $23,854
3000 Fringe Benefits $40,209
4000 Books and Supplies $3,207
5000 Other Operating Expenses & Services $54,793
6000 Capital Outlay $9,572
7000  Other Outgo $4,167
Total Transfers - General Fund $71,739 $71,739
Capital Outlay Fund
Account Description From To
4000 Books and Supplies $500
5000 Other Operating Expenses & Services $36,800
6000 Capital Outlay $5,500
7000  Other Outgo $31,800
Total Transfers - Capital Outlay Fund $37,300 $37,300
Total Transfers $109,039 $109,039




SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.12
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Purchase Orders/Confirming Requisitions

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

In accordance with the provisions of Article 4 of Chapter 8 of the California
Education Code, commencing with Sections 85230, purchase orders/confirming
requisitions, and purchase change listings are submitted for approval of the
Board of Trustees.

STATUS

Purchase orders processed in accordance with the general priorities of the
adopted budget and numbered P13-01952 through P13-02187 amounting to
$789,695.11 are submitted to the Board of Trustees for approval. Confirming
requisitions dated October 10, 2012 through October 30, 2012 totaling
$163,657.04 are also submitted.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the purchase
orders/confirming requisitions listed in EXHIBIT A.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.13
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Payment of Bills

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

In accordance with the provisions of Article 4 of Chapter 8 of the California
Education Code, Sections 85230-36, inclusive, vendor check listings are
submitted at each meeting for the approval of the Board of Trustees.

STATUS

Checks No. 163378 through 163929 processed through the Orange County
Department of Education, totaling $1,795,678.08; and Checks No. 010531
through 010553, processed through Saddleback College Community Education,
totaling $46,994.95; and Checks No. 009047 through 009054, processed
through Irvine Valley College Community Education, totaling $14,689.21 are
submitted for the approval of the Board of Trustees.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the payment of
bills as listed in EXHIBIT A.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.14
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Gifts to the District and Foundations

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

Pursuant to the California Education Code Section 72241 and Board Policy 3300,
the Board of Trustees “receives and administers gifts to the District.” The
division/school or office within the college receiving the donated item reviews all
gifts.

STATUS

The gifts listed on EXHIBIT A have been reviewed by the appropriate district and
college officials and have been determined to be of benefit to the receiving location.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees accept the donation(s) to
the District and/or the Foundations listed on EXHIBIT A and further direct that its
appreciation be appropriately conveyed to the donor(s).

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



DONATIONS

November 19, 2012

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE

EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 1

Gift

Donated By:

1 Large Bolt of Fabric

7 Boxes of Fabric

Kay Neal

25045 Acacia Lane
Laguna Hills, California




SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 5.15
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: October/November 2012 Contracts

ACTION: Ratification

BACKGROUND

On January 16, 2007, the board authorized the Chancellor/designee to approve
individual business contracts up to a maximum limit of $100,000, with the following
exceptions: contracts involving bid limits, the Chancellor/designee shall be limited to
less than $15,000 for public works projects and $81,000 for equipment, supplies and
maintenance projects. During October/November 2012, the following contracts were
reviewed and approved by the Vice Chancellor of Business Services, following
review by legal counsel, when appropriate.

CONTRACTOR NAME CONTRACT AMOUNT

Vault Logix, LLC (U.S. Data Trust) $72,000.00
Agreement — To provide internet vault live services of 2,000
GB @ $3.00 per GB per month ($6,000 per month).

District Services

Amtech Reliable Elevator Co. $65,050.00
Agreement — To modernize the Saddleback College LRC
elevator by installing the following: new microprocessor
controller, new pushbuttons and fixtures that meet ADA
guidelines, and new power door operator at Building LRC.
District Services

The College Board $54,936.30
College Board Enrollment Agreement — For financial aid
software licensing / maintenance and support.

Irvine Valley College

I3 Solutions $50,400.00
Consultant Agreement — To perform analysis, design, and
project management for the Awards Management,
Predictive Analytics and Matriculation SEP systems.
Additional work will be performed assisting with SIS and
performing project management for infrastructure and
network projects. Participate in design teams for FY
2012/2013 projects.

District Services

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services




Page 2 of 12

Dell Marketing $45,000.00
Statement of Work Agreement — To implement a VMware

View environment, demonstrate application virtualization

with  VMware ThinApp, Integrate Symantec endpoint

protection into the virtual desktop solution utilizing Dell

M620 blade servers and Dell Equal Logic storage.

Irvine Valley College

Insley Construction, Inc. $40,700.00
Agreement — To replace store front at BSTIC Resource

Center entrance (MRC).

Irvine Valley College

Presidio Network Solutions $33,842.20
Agreement — To provide Cisco products: Chassis(2), AC

Power Supply(4), Power Cord(4), Fan Tray(2), and Service

Catalyst(2).

District Services

Team Dynamix Solutions $30,357.00
Service Agreement — To provide IT governance and project

management software.

District Services

Perceptive Software $26,910.00
Order Form — To obtain additional licenses for the

Enterprize Content Management Project.

District Services

Cox Communications California, LLC. $25,200.00
Ethernet Service Agreement — To provide Cox ethernet

service for IVC and ATEP, 12 month term.

Irvine Valley College

Cox Communications California, LLC. $21,600.00
Internet Service Agreement — To provide Cox optical

internet 50 Mbps service for IVC and ATEP, 12 month term.

Irvine Valley College

Foundation for California Community Colleges $18,000.00
Agreement — Site visit and modeling. To provide accurate

dimensions for all buildings, all spaces and is necessary for

fusion & scheduled maintenance efforts.

Irvine Valley College

In-N-Out Burger $17,680.00

Mobile Unit Agreement — To provide an In-N-Out mobile
unit truck to serve hamburgers, cheeseburgers, double-
doubles, grilled cheese, fountain drinks and chips at IVC on

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Tuesday, March 5, 2013 from 11:30 AM — 1:30 PM.
Irvine Valley College

Agusoft $16,000.00
Contract Order — For Lumens standard (STD) license fee

and Lumens STD subscription fee.

Saddleback College

Charlene B. Reed $15,000.00
Consultant Agreement — To set up, customize, update,

seek out new followers and reply to Twitter and Facebook

accounts. Upload up to 10 photos or icons per month

provided by TEAM. Manage all aspects of social media

marketing of the CaCareerCafe.

Irvine Valley College

Pacific National Group $14,977.00
Agreement — To remodel HS-141 Observation Room which

include: 2 walls up to 8’ tall, 2 fixed glass windows, 1 hallow

metal door frame and plastic laminate door, glazing to be

one-way vision glass, cylindrical office lock with IC core, 1

plastic laminate countertop with undercounter knee braces,

1 new hvac supply grille, 1 new hvac return grille, relocate

one hvac return grille, provide ceiling tiles, and paint new

walls, doors and windows.

Saddleback College

C.E.M. Lab Corp. $14,700.00
Consultant Agreement — To provide engineering services

for the Irvine Valley College A400 project.

District Services

CORE Support Systems $13,189.76
Service Agreement — To renew maintenance contract for

cooling system in server room from 11/18/12-11/17/13.

District Services

Total Compensation Systems, Inc. $12,500.00

Consulting Services Agreement — To provide the retiree
health valuation report and analysis of retirement
experience study.

District Services

Gresham Savage Nolan & Tilden, PC

Amendment No. 2 to Agreement — To revise the contract by
an additional $12,000.00 for a consultant to act as
investigator.

District Services

$12,000.00 increase

Total contract amount
$32,000.00

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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DB Mechanical

Agreement — To remodel IVC SSC Rm. 130 & new
Financial Aid Offices

Irvine Valley College

$10,615.00

Insley Construction, Inc.

Agreement — To rebuild area for International Student
Office.

Irvine Valley College

$10,050.00

Sonic Foundry, Inc.

Agreement — To renew the Mediasite software license
contract.

Irvine Valley College

$9,600.00

BFK Engineers, Surveyors, Planners

Consultant Agreement — To provide design services for
Irvine Valley College A400 project.

District Services

$9,500.00

American Air Balance Co.

Agreement — To complete the project known as Saddleback
Science Math Exhaust Fume Additional Cleaning.
Saddleback College

$9,450.00

Trane Building Services

Agreement — To repair the leak and chemically clean the
physical education building.

Irvine Valley College

$9,005.00

The RP Group

Agreement — To be funded through IVC's Perkins
allocation. 1VC’s responsibilities include providing current
contact information for the student list supplied by the RP
Group and IVC logo artwork to be used on envelopes for
mailing the survey.

Irvine Valley College

$9,000.00

Judge Netting

Agreement — To replace bulbs and ballast at the
Saddleback College football field.

Saddleback College

$8,800.00

3D Rapid Prototyping Inc.

Maintenance Agreement — To renew 2 Annual Service
Contracts (P/N Z0030-E and P/N Z0050-E). To provide
maintenance for equipment.

Saddleback College

$8,321.25

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Kate Brooks $8,000.00
Consultant Agreement — To develop and present 4

webinars, for the state leadership project connected to the

Career Technical Education areas, on Social Media and

Job Search. Agreement effective 10/10/12 — 06/30/13.

Irvine Valley College

Harland Technology Services $7,782.00
Agreement Renewal — To renew the optical mark reader

maintenance service agreement.

Saddleback College

Yosemite CCD $7,500.00
Agreement — To continue participation in the Child (Revenue)
Development Training Consortium for the academic year

2012-2013. Approval of this agreement will provide

services to students, including reimbursement of tuition,

tutoring, childcare expenses, and textbooks.

Irvine Valley College

Emcor Services $7,149.00
Agreement — To provide scheduled maintenance services

on HVAC centrals at Student Services Center.

Irvine Valley College

Hansen Auctions & Realty Estimate
Consultant Contract — For services of auctioneer at surplus $7,000.00 -

sale.
Saddleback College

$16,000.00 Revenue
(less fee of 10%)

American Geotechnical

Consultant Agreement — To provide Geotechnical
consultant services for T.A.S. Renovation projects.
Saddleback College

$6,900.00

Emcor Services Mesa Energy

Service Maintenance Agreement — To build automation
equipment and software support service program for
guarterly services.

Irvine Valley College

$5,980.00

Christopher Z. Dierl

Agreement — For service in the production of the
“Saddleback College Symphony Orchestra” in the
McKinney Theater on 10/12/12. To perform duties of
coordinating all professional musicians and their
appearances with the Saddleback Ensembles. Coordinates
over 500 services for performances per year for the Music
Dept.

Saddleback College

$5,730.00

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Haitbrink Asphalt Paving Inc. $5,450.00
Agreement — To upgrade the storm drain system at B200.

Irvine Valley College

Campus Concerts $5,000.00
Consultant Agreement — To provide extra musicians for

performances and rehearsals for two upcoming IVC

concerts effective from 10/05/12-12/08/12

Irvine Valley College

Main Graphics $5,000.00
Contractor Agreement — To establish site for imprinting of

business cards and imprint masters.

Irvine Valley College

Singlewire Software $5,000.00
Agreement / Quote — To renew the emergency broadcast

system through telephones.

District Services

Julia Torgovitskaya Cadenza Artists LLC $4,500.00
Consultant Agreement — To perform as a guest artist

harpiscord for the following performances: 12/9/12, 2/22/13,

and 2/23/13.

Irvine Valley College

Fernando Vasquez $3,000.00
Contractor Agreement — To perform duties of the sound

designer and sound operator for Saddleback College

student production of “Legally Blonde” from February 4,

2013 — April 21, 2013. Will attend all tech rehearsals and

performances and be available to consult as needed in all

pre-production activities.

Saddleback College

Q Plus $2,498.00
Software End User License Agreement — For academic

suite annual maintenance and floating license.

Saddleback College

Penn Corporate Relocation Services $2,354.00
Agreement — To deliver 162 student desks from off-site

storage in Anaheim, CA to Village 3 and 4.

Saddleback College

Computer Protection Technology, Inc. $2,320.00

Agreement — For a one year renewal agreement to service
and maintain Battery and UPS for District Server Room.
District Services

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Christopher Z. Dierl $1,960.00
Agreement — For service in the production of “Winds of

October” in the McKinney Theater on 10/05/12. To perform

duties of coordinating all professional musicians and their

appearances with the Saddleback Ensembles. Coordinates

over 500 services for performances per year for the Music

Dept.

Saddleback College

Williams Recordings $1,600.00
Agreement — To provide audio recordings for the IVC

Master Chorale Concerts for the 2012/2013 year effective

from 10/05/12 — 05/18/13.

Irvine Valley College

AG Construction $1,600.00
Change Order — To increase original contract $1,600.00 to

paint walls in B 101, 102, 103, alcove, corridor and door

jam. New total contract price is $17,649.18.

Irvine Valley College

H2 Environmental Consulting Services, Inc. $1,530.00
Agreement — To provide testing services.

ATEP

Nate Hodges dba Rhetoracle Dance, Co. $1,500.00
Agreement — To choreograph dances for the 2012

presentation of Perspectives, effective from 10/01/12 -

11/16/12.

Irvine Valley College

Christopher Z. Dierl $1,455.00
Agreement — For service in the production of “Carmina

Burana” in the McKinney Theater on 10/14/12. To perform

duties of coordinating all professional musicians and their

appearances with the Saddleback Ensembles. Coordinates

over 500 services for performances per year for the Music

Dept.

Saddleback College

Materialise $1,410.00
Academic Software License Agreement — Renewal of

MIMICS maintenance for the period of 10/15/12 — 10/15/13.

Saddleback College

Scantron $1,403.00
Agreement — Renewal for onsite maintenance from

11/13/12 —11/12/13.
Irvine Valley College

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Toni Helms $1,105.00
Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease” at IVC

effective from 10/15/12 — 11/01/12.

Irvine Valley College

McMurray & Stern $1,040.00
Agreement — To provide additional shelving installed;

includes labor to pull from inventory, delivery and install.

Saddleback College

Jesse William Green $1,040.00
Contractor Agreement — To provide musician guitar

services for 4 technical rehearsals and 9 performances of

student production of “Spring Awakening” at $80 per

service, effective from 10/15/12 — 10/28/12.

Saddleback College

Kellan Miller $1,040.00
Agreement (Revised) — To provide musician guitar services

for 4 technical rehearsals and 9 performances of student

production of “Spring Awakening” at $80 per service,

effective from 10/15/12 — 10/28/12.

Saddleback College

Jeffrey Segal $1,020.00
Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease” at

Irvine Valley College effective from 10/15/12 — 11/01/12.

Irvine Valley College

Tony Bernetich $1,020.00
Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease” at IVC

effective from 10/15/12 — 11/01/12.

Irvine Valley College

Hayan Charlston $1,020.00
Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease” at

Irvine Valley College effective from 10/15/15 — 11/01/12.

Irvine Valley College

Colin Wenhardt $1,020.00
Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease”

between 10/15/12 — 11/01/12.

Irvine Valley College

Chris Brooke $1,020.00

Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease”
between 10/15/12 — 11/01/12.
Irvine Valley College

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Andre Rossignol

Agreement — To assist in the production of “Grease”
between 10/15/12 — 11/1/12.

Irvine Valley College

$1,020.00

Chad Berlinghieri

Consultant Agreement — To perform as the soloist for
“Carmina Burana” on October 14, 2012 at 4:00 PM in the
McKinney Theatre.

Saddleback College

$1,000.00

Anthony Tuason

Consultant Agreement — To provide choreography services
for production of “A Christmas Carol” between 10/8/12 —
12/09/12.

Saddleback College

$1,000.00

Monjaras & Wismeyer Group, Inc.

Agreement — To perform essential functions and job
analysis at a rate of $110/hour not to exceed $1,000.00
effective from 8/28/12 — 10/02/12.

District Services

$1,000.00

Mitchell 1

License Agreement — For a subscription renewal for the
automotive department.

Saddleback College

$999.00

Biometrics4ALL, Inc.

Agreement — To provide service of Annual Maintenance
9:00 a.m. — 5:00 p.m. Telephone support & hardware cross
ship support (7/1/12 — 6/30/12).

Irvine Valley College

$960.00

H2 Environmental Consulting Services, Inc.

Agreement — Proposal #1576612 AS — To provide testing
services, prepare report and analyze 12 samples in Village
9-3 and 9-4.

Saddleback College

$655.00

San Francisco CCD

Agreement — California Early Childhood Mentor Program
allocation to Irvine Valley College 2012-2013 for
coordinators and printing/copying.

Irvine Valley College

$650.00
(Revenue)

Lisa Kapchinske
Agreement — To research music and assist choreographer
in the IVC Perspectives performance Nov. 2012, effective

$540.00

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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from 10/01/12 — 11/16/12.
Irvine Valley College

Ohlone College Academy Support Center $500.00
Affiliation Agreement - To provide administrative, technical,

and instructional support to IVC faculty in the Cisco

program.

Irvine Valley College

Valley Clinical & Consulting Services $450.00
Agreement — To perform pre-employment evaluation

effective from 10/10/12 — 10/30/12.

District Services

Contract Décor Inc. $299.00
Agreement — Proposal # 90-101 — To provide blinds in

Village 8 Matriculation.

Saddleback College

Medieval Times Dinner & Tournament $275.00
Consignment Ticket Agreement — To sell tickets on

consignment at a discounted price valid from 10/1/12 —

09/30/13.

Irvine Valley College

Fernando Vasquez $250.00
Agreement — To perform duties of the sound operator for

Saddleback College Performing Arts Guest Artist

presentation of “An Evening of Comedy and Magic” on

January 12, 2013 at 7:00 pm in the McKinney Theatre.

Saddleback College

Fernando Vasquez $250.00
Agreement — To perform duties of the sound operator for

the “Shangri-La Chinese Acrobats” on November 18, 2012

at 2 pm in the McKinney Theatre.

Saddleback College

Schwab Apiaries $85.00
Agreement — To provide service of emergency bee removal

at ATEP.

ATEP

Phoenix Group Information Systems $0.00

Agreement — To demo a mobile handheld ticket writer for
parking services.
Saddleback College
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Swinerton Builders

Agreement — To provide entry to property for RFP Project
No. 307, Irvine Valley College A400 building.

District Services

$0.00

Denise Sonnenberg

Amendment to Agreement — To extend the term of the
contract to September 10, 2012. Original contract amount
of NTE $21,000 remains in effect. Therefore, there is no
fiscal impact.

Irvine Valley College

$0.00 Amendment

Total contract amount
is $21,000.00

Charles Pankow Builders, Ltd.

Entry To Property Agreement — To provide entry to project
property for RFP Project No. 307, Irvine Valley College
A400 building.

District Services

$0.00

Card Meter Systems

Amendment to Agreement — To increase quantity of print
stations.

Irvine Valley College

$0.00

MD Medical Billing

Affiliation Agreement — To provide clinical/internship
experience to enhance student experiences in the Health
Sciences program.

Saddleback College

$0.00

Community Orthopedics

Affiliation Agreement — To provide clinical/internship
experience to enhance student experiences in the Health
Sciences program.

Saddleback College

$0.00

Western Medical Center — Santa Ana

Affiliation Agreement — To provide clinical/internship
experience to enhance student experiences in the Health
Sciences program.

Saddleback College

$0.00

Palm Terrace Healthcare & Rehab Center

Affiliation Agreement — To provide clinical/internship
experience to enhance student experiences in the Health
Sciences program.

Saddleback College

$0.00
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Turning Point Treatment Center $0.00
Affiliation Agreement — To provide clinical/internship
experience to enhance student experiences in the Health
Sciences program

Saddleback College

RECOMMENDATION
The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees ratify the contracts as
shown above.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services




SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 6.1
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Acceptance of District Annual Audit Report: 2011-2012

ACTION: Review

BACKGROUND

California Education Code Section 84040 requires that an annual audit of all District
funds be made by a Certified Public Accountant or a Public Accountant licensed by
the State Board of Accounting. Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section
59104, further requires that the governing board of each community college district
review the annual audit at a regularly scheduled public meeting.

STATUS

The Board of Trustees employed the firm of Macias Gini & O’Connell, Certified
Public Accountants, to conduct the audit of all District funds for FY 2011-2012. The
general purpose financial statements with accompanying audit report have been
completed and are being submitted to all agencies the law requires, as well as to the
members of the Board of Trustees.

The auditors issued an unqualified opinion for the FY 2011-2012 financial
statements with no financial findings. The FY 2011-2012 audit report includes one
federal award finding related to student financial aid and three state award findings
for residency determination, student material fees, and EOPS & CARE advisory
committees. Details of the findings and the District’'s response can be found in the
audit report under Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

A Board sub-committee on the audit, consisting of Trustees Milchiker, Padberg, and
Lang, had an opportunity to meet with the auditors before the final version was
printed. The audit committee was able to question the auditors in depth about the
findings and recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees accept the FY 2011-2012
audit report in Exhibit A for review and acceptance.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Walnut Creek

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Oakland
Board of Trustees Newport Beach
South Orange County Community College District San Diego

Mission Viejo, California

Seattle
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the business-type activity, the aggregate
discretely presented component units and the fiduciary funds of the South Orange County Community
College District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, as listed in the table of contents.
These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activity, the aggregate discretely presented component units and the
fiduciary funds of the South Orange County Community College District as of June 30, 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Subsequent to the issuance of the District’s basic financial statements as of June 30, 2011, a material error
was discovered by management whereby construction in progress in the statement of net assets was
understated. The beginning net asset balance at July 1, 2011 has been restated and the effect of the correction
is described in Note 2.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 9, 2012
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedule of postemployment healthcare funding progress and the schedule of

www.mgocpa.com



employer contributions as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s financial statements as a whole. The supplementary information as listed in the table
of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, which is required by the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required part of the financial
statements. The supplementary information was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting or other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

We also have previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States, the District’s basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011, which are not presented with
the accompanying basic financial statements. In our report dated November 23, 2011, we expressed
ungualified opinions on the respective financial statements of the business-type activity, the aggregate
discretely presented component units and the fiduciary funds. The audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District’s financial statements as a
whole. The Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis on page 53, related to the 2011 financial statements is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the 2011 financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the 2011 information presented in the Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 2011 financial statements as a whole. The Schedule of
History and Organization, and the budgetary section and 2010 financial information shown of the Schedule of
Financial Trends and Analysis under the supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

cians (Jni SO Connel) ccr

Los Angeles, California
November 9, 2012



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

This section of the Financial Report of the South Orange County Community
College District (the “District”) presents a narrative overview and analysis of
the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2012.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the District’s basic financial statements. The information in
the Management Discussion and Analysis is related to the primary government
only; separate financial information for the Foundations may be obtained
through the District.

Introduction to the Basic Financial Statements

The South Orange County Community College District serves over 40,000 students who attend
Saddleback College in Mission Viejo, Irvine Valley College in Irvine and the Advanced Technology &
Education Park (ATEP) in Tustin. Because of prudent management and conservative fiscal policies, our
District has prepared for the challenging budget times by creating reserves, retiring debt, fully funding the
retiree liability, and implementing efficiencies throughout all operations. Strategic planning, investments
in technology and increasing online services to students ensure we can meet the current and growing
demands of transfer to four-year colleges, workforce training, career technical preparation, and basic
skills. Over 2,500 employees in the South Orange County Community College District are committed to
providing the best educational foundation possible for our students with respect for taxpayers. We invite
you to learn more about us and our services to students and the community at www.socccd.edu.

Accounting Standards

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards’ Board (GASB) released Statement No. 34, “Basic
Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments,”
which changed the reporting format for annual financial statements. In November 1999, GASB released
Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial Statement and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public
Colleges and Universities,” which applies these reporting standards to public colleges and universities.
The South Orange County Community College District continues to present its financial statements in
this reporting format.

The following management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and
activities of the South Orange County Community College District’s Financial Report for the fiscal year
that ended June 30, 2012. The previous year’s financial information is also provided for comparison.
The annual report consists of three basic financial statements that provide information on the District as a
whole:

The Statement of Net Assets
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
The Statement of Cash Flows

Each of these statements will be reviewed and significant events discussed.



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Financial and Enrollment Highlights

The District ended the year with a strong fund balance. The ability to maintain a prudent reserve of 7.5%
affords cash flow stability for the District without external borrowing. Property taxes continue to provide
a reliable revenue source that allows the District some protection from state budget cuts and forced

workload reductions.

Enrollments at the colleges decreased in FY 2011-12 by 2.4% from the prior year to reduce unfunded

FTES (full-time equivalent students). A history of student enrollments is provided below.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Statement of Net Assets
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on the District’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may

serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

(in thousands)

2012 2011 % Change

Current and other assets $ 250,099 $ 221,769 13%
Capital assets, net 247,951 244,114 2%

Total Assets $ 498,050 $ 465,883 7%
Current and other liabilities $ 19,458 $ 20,135 -3%
Long-term liabilities 9,427 9,222 2%

Total Liabilities 28,885 29,357 -2%
Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt 245,458 241,315 2%

Restricted 21,723 178,245 -88%

Unrestricted 201,984 16,966 1091%

Total Net Assets 469,165 436,526 7%

Total liabilities and net assets $ 498,050 $ 465,883 7%

Assets

Total assets increased approximately $32.2 million, a percentage increase of 7%. The major changes
affecting total assets are listed below:

e Current and other assets increased $28 million over the prior year primarily due to a $29 million
cash increase of excess property taxes to be used to fund capital outlay projects.

e Net capital assets increased by approximately $3.8 million primarily due to the renovation of the
Saddleback College Library and initial construction costs for the Irvine Valley College (IVC)
Sciences building.

Liabilities

Total liabilities decreased by approximately $472 thousand; a decrease of 2%. The major changes
affecting total liabilities are listed below:

e Current and other liabilities decreased approximately $677 thousand. This was a combination of a
decrease in accounts payables of approximately $970 thousand due to the timing of payments in
2012 and an increase in deferred revenues of $390 thousand.



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

e Long term liabilities increased $205 thousand. While the financing agreements and early
retirement incentives were paid down by $200 thousand and $1.1 million, respectively, the other
post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation increased by $1.5 million as a result of the new
actuarial valuation being completed. Changes in actuarial tables, increased medical costs, and
retirement incentives all contributed to the unexpected increase in the OPEB obligation.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents information showing how the
District’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported
when the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining to receivables and expenses pertaining to earned, but
unused, compensated balances.



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(in thousands)

2012 2011 % Change
Operating revenues
Net tuition and fees $ 27,594 $ 24,903 11%
Grants and contracts, noncapital 12,815 11,172 15%
Sales 947 966 -2%
Total operating revenues 41,356 37,041 12%
Operating expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 139,368 150,011 -7%
Supplies, materials and other operating
expenses and services 22,980 24,270 -5%
Financial aid 24,614 18,987 30%
Utilities 3,005 2,836 6%
Depreciation 11,268 10,653 6%
Total operating expenses 201,235 206,757 -3%
Operating loss (159,879) (169,716) -6%
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
State apportionments, noncapital 1,893 4,315 -56%
Local property taxes 149,105 148,109 1%
Federal grants and contracts, noncapital 23,890 18,452 29%
State taxes and other revenues 7,360 6,770 9%
Interest and investment income 961 1,202 -20%
Loss on disposal of capital assets (6,447) (166) 3784%
Interest expense (118) (130) -9%
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 176,644 178,552 -1%
Income before capital contributions 16,765 8,836 90%
State apportionments, local revenues,
grants and gifts 15,874 13,513 17%
Change in net assets 32,639 22,349 46%
Net assets, as restated - beginning of year 436,526 414,177 5%
Net assets - end of year $ 469,165 $ 436,526 %




SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Operating Revenues

Total Operating Revenues increased approximately $4.3 million, a percentage increase of 12%.

Net tuition and fees experienced an increase of $2.7 million, approximately 11%. Fee revenue
increased by $5.9 million due to the state legislature increasing enrollment fees to $36 per unit
from $26 per unit. This revenue was offset by a $3.2 million increase in scholarship discounts and
allowances from the increased demand for student financial aid with the BOGG waivers.

Non capital grants and contracts increased $1.7 million, an increase of 15%. Factors contributing
to this include an increase in state economic development grants of $970 thousand (13%), state
financial aid awards of $160 thousand (30%) and the Federal National Science Foundation grant
of $310 thousand (35%).

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses decreased by 3%, approximately $5.5 million. Items of significance affecting
the changes include:

Salaries and benefits decreased by approximately $10 million, a percentage decrease of 7%. This
reflects the salary and benefit savings from the faculty retirement incentive offered in FY 2010-
2011. Most of the positions are being replaced for FY 2012-2013 and FY 2013-2014. The cost
of the incentive ($5.4 million) also caused an unusual spike in benefit expenses for FY 2010-
2011.

Financial aid expenses increased $5.6 million, a 30% increase, due to increased student demand
and increases in student fees, which qualifies students for higher amounts of financial aid.

Non-Operating Revenues

Non-operating revenues decreased by $2 million, a 1% decrease, mainly due to the following:

Non-capital state apportionments decreased by $2.4 million from the decision by the state to no
longer fund Partnership for Excellence for basic aid districts. Half of the funds ($1.8 million)
were taken in FY 2011-2012 and the remainder will be taken in FY 2012-2013. State
apportionments were also cut for many categorical programs due to state budget difficulties.

The increase of $5.4 million in federal grants reflects the additional Financial Aid receipts due to
the increases in student financial aid demand and higher student fees.

State taxes and other revenues increased by 9% due to improved Lottery revenues.

Interest and investment income decreased $241 thousand, a 20% decrease. This decrease is a
result of reduced interest earnings at both Orange County Schools Pool and the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). This is reflective of the current economy which has lower yields than
prior years.
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e The loss on disposal of capital assets relates to the demolition of existing structures at the ATEP
site to make room for new education facilities that will be built in the near future.

Capital contributions
Capital contributions increased by 17%, approximately $2.4 million.

e State capital apportionments increased $1.3 million. This revenue is received from the state as a
match for capital projects. These funds were for the Saddleback College Library renovation and
the new I\VVC Sciences building. Both projects will be completed in FY 2012-2013.

e Local revenues increased $1.1 million, a 32% increase. The majority of this increase pertains to
the additional redevelopment funds received due to the elimination of redevelopment agencies
imposed by the state.



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues
For the year ended June 30, 2012

State Taxes &

Local Property Other Revenues
Taxes 62.0% \ 3.1%

Interest &

__Investment Income
0.4%

Capital
Contributions 6.6%

\_ Net Tuition & Fees

11.5%
Sales 0.4%
State \_ Grants & Contracts
Apportionments 15.3%

.8%

EXxpenses
For the year ended June 30, 2012

Salaries & Benefits
67.1%

Loss on Disposal
of Assets 3.1%
"~

Depreciation 5.4%
Utilities 1.4%

Financial Aid Supplies & Other
11.8% Interest Expenses Operating

0.1% Expenses 11.1%

District’s Fiduciary Responsibility

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain amounts held on behalf of students, clubs, and donors
for student loans and scholarships. The District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement
of fiduciary net assets. These activities are excluded from the District’s other financial statements
because these assets cannot be used to finance operations. The District is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2012, the District had approximately $248 million invested in net capital assets. Total
capital assets of $368 million consist of land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements,
vehicles, data processing equipment, and other office equipment. These assets have accumulated
depreciation of $120 million. In FY 2011-2012, there were capital asset additions in the amount of $39.9
million which includes $1.6 million in equipment, $18.4 million of buildings and improvements and
$19.9 million in construction in progress. Deletions of $24.8 million include $18.4 million of completed
construction in progress moved to building assets and $6.4 million of disposals. Depreciation expense of
$11.3 million was recorded for FY 2011-2012.

Note 5 to the financial statements provides additional information on capital assets. A comparison of
capital assets net of depreciation is summarized below:

(in thousands)

2012 2011
Land $ 41762 $ 41,762
Buildings and improvements 143,577 140,987
Equipment 5,785 6,065
Construction in progress 56,827 55,299
Net capital assets $ 247951 $ 244,113

Debt

At June 30, 2012, the District had $12.3 million in debt. While debt for lease agreements and the early
retirement incentive decreased, a debt for other post-employment benefits was realized with the
completion of a new actuarial valuation. Funding for this debt will be addressed in FY 2012-2013. Notes
6, 7, 9, 10 and 12 provide additional information on long-term liabilities. A comparison is summarized
below:

(in thousands)

2012 2011

Long-term debt

Financing lease agreements $ 2,493 $ 2,799

Early retirement incentive 4,330 5,413

Compensated absences 3,687 3,635

Claims liability 325 364

Net OPEB obligation 1,489 -
Total long-term debt 12,324 12,211
Less current portion (2,897) (2,989)
Long-term portion $ 9,427 $ 9,222

11



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Economic Outlook and Factors Affecting Next Year’s Budget

The FY 2012-2013 state budget for community colleges included no cost of living adjustment (COLA) on
general purpose apportionments and 1% for growth funding statewide. The colleges are prepared to earn
the additional growth funds while containing enrollments to available funding levels. The state legislature
increased enrollment fees $10/unit beginning the summer 2012 term. The new rate is now $46/unit.
Although enrollment fees have increased over 75% in the last 2 years, they are still among the lowest in
the nation.

The District has been identified as a “basic aid” district since 1999-2000, meaning its primary source of
revenue comes from property taxes rather than state apportionment. The FY 2012-2013 adopted budget
assumes no change in property tax revenue from FY 2011-2012. This assumption is based on prior years’
history and estimations provided by the county auditor/controller’s office. Although property tax receipts
have fluctuated in recent years, the District continues to experience sufficient revenue to maintain funding
of the colleges and allow for future capital projects. Excess funds over what would be received from the
state funding formula are used to pay for long-term debt, one time expenditures, and capital outlay needs.

The most recent actuarial study completed for the OPEB liability reflects a higher than anticipated
liability due to accelerated retirements and changes to the retirement and mortality tables used by the
actuary. The District has evaluated the study and made recommendations to the Board of Trustees at its
September 24, 2012 meeting to fully fund the liability before June 30, 2013. The Board approved this
recommendation as well as the recommendation to have an experience study completed to determine local
rates of retirement. The results will be used for a new actuarial study.

As in the past several years, the state did not provide funding for scheduled maintenance in its FY 2012-
2013 budget. To address the maintenance and capital needs of the colleges, the District is preparing a
twenty year capital outlay and scheduled maintenance plan. The goal of the plan is to address most of the
needs of the District through existing funding sources. Additional funding sources are being explored for
the development of the Advanced Technology and Education Park located in Tustin.

The District has completed negotiations with all bargaining groups. The final three-year contract with the
Police Officer’s Association (POA) was approved by the Board of Trustees at the September 24, 2012
meeting.

Requests for Information
The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances. Questions
concerning this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the South

Orange County Community College District, Office of the Executive Director of Fiscal Services, 28000
Marguerite Parkway, Mission Viejo, CA 92692-3635.

12
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Business-Type Activity
Assets Primary Government Component Units
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 210,140,647 $ 620,263
Investments 25,801,287 6,032,252
Investments with the Foundation for California
Community Colleges (FCCC) - 1,203,492
Accounts receivable:
Federal and State 1,282,833 -
Local 10,903,430 93,233
Due from fiduciary funds 1,272,750 -
Due from component units 41,355
Inventory 71,770 -
Prepaid expenses 526,844 4,635
Total current assets 250,040,916 7,953,875
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 24,245 -
Restricted student loan receivable 33,950 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 247,951,012 -
Total noncurrent assets 248,009,207 -
Total Assets S 498,050,123 $ 7,953,875
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,125,750 $ 340,469
Accrued liabilities 8,358,589 -
Deferred revenue 7,076,092 -
Due to primary government - 41,355
Trust account liabilities - 67,376
Financing agreements 236,214 -
Early retirement incentive 1,082,544 -
Compensated absences 1,253,488 -
Claims liability 325,043 -
Total current liabilities $ 19,457,720 $ 449,200
Noncurrent liabilities:
Financing agreements 2,256,550 -
Early retirement incentive 3,247,631 -
Compensated absences 2,433,242 -
Net OPEB obligation 1,489,523 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 9,426,946 -
Total Liabilities 28,884,666 449,200
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 245,458,248 -
Restricted for:
Capital projects 11,354,526 -
Scholarships 39,764 289,831
Other special purposes 10,328,852 4,239,977
Restricted non-expendable - 2,576,444
Unrestricted 201,984,067 398,423
Total Net Assets 469,165,457 7,504,675
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 498,050,123 $ 7,953,875

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Operating Revenues

Tuition and fees (gross)

Less: Scholarship discounts and allowances
Net tuition and fees

Grants and contracts, noncapital:
Federal
State
Local

Sales
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies, materials and other operating expenses and services
Financial aid
Utilities
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State apportionments, noncapital
Local property taxes
Federal grants and contracts, noncapital
State taxes and other revenues
Interest and investment income
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income before capital contributions
Capital Contributions:
State apportionments
Local revenues, grants and gifts
Total capital contributions
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - beginning of year, restated

Net Assets - end of year

Business-Type Activity

Primary Government

Component Units

$ 35,768,165 $ ]
(8,173,999) -
27,594,166 -
2,600,741 -
7,872,785
2,340,823 4,014,164
947,141 247,670
41,355,656 4,261,834
101,242,953 94,021
38,124,899 14,033
22,980,151 1,063,992
24,614,477 572,213
3,004,635 5,516
11,268,095 -
201,235,210 1,749,775
(159,879,554) 2,512,059
1,892,604 -
149,104,716 -
23,890,444 -
7,359,820 7,100
961,579 89,341
(6,446,728) -
(117,829) -
176,644,606 96,441
16,765,052 2,608,500
11,097,021 ;
4,776,899 -
15,873,920 :
32,638,972 2,608,500
436,526,485 4,896,175
$ 469,165,457  $ 7,504,675

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type

Activity
Primary Component
Government Units
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and fees $ 27,982,406 $ -
Federal grants and contracts 2,600,741 -
State grants and contracts 7,872,785 -
Local grants and contracts 2,340,823 3,985,920
Sales 947,141 247,670
Payments to suppliers (25,952,229) (1,088,274)
Payments to employees (139,820,729) (108,054)
Payments on-behalf of students (22,518,254) (572,213)
Net amounts due from component unit (13,744) -
Net amounts due to primary government - 13,744
Trust account liabilities - 15,821
Net amounts due from fiduciary funds (1,047,624) -
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (147,608,684) 2,494,614
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
State apportionments and receipts 1,892,604 -
Property taxes 145,650,734 -
State taxes and other revenues 7,359,820 7,100
Federal grants and contracts 23,890,444 -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 178,793,602 7,100
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
State apportionments for capital purposes 11,097,021 -
Local revenues, grants and gifts for capital purposes 4,776,899 -
Purchase of capital assets (21,552,102) -
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (424,096) -
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (6,102,278) -
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments 961,579 89,341
Purchase of investments (96,442) (2,427,333)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 865,137 (2,337,992)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 25,947,777 163,722
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 184,217,115 456,541
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 210,164,892 S 620,263

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) By Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivables

Due from fiduciary funds

Due from component units
Due to primary government
Inventory

Prepaid expense

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Trust account liabilities
Compensated balances

Early retirement incentive

Net OPEB obligation

Claims liability

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Business-Type

Activity
Primary Component
Government Units
(159,879,554) 2,512,059
11,268,095 -
2,096,223 (28,244)
(1,047,624) -
(13,744) -
- 13,744
7,373 -
126,551 4,785
(973,098) (23,551)
388,240 -
- 15,821
51,248 -
(1,082,544) -
1,489,523 -
(39,373) -
(147,608,684) 2,494,614

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Associated Student Retiree (OPEB)
Government Funds Trust Agency Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 185,509 $ - $ 2,637,375
Investments:
Common stock - 31,097,970 -
Equity mutual funds - 33,582,931 -
Other investments 124,283 - -
Accounts receivable 148,046 - -
Accrued interest receivable - 108,083 -
Prepaid expenses 11,250 - -
Total Assets $ 469,088 $ 64,788,984 $ 2,637,375
Liabilities
Agency obligations $ - $ - S 2,637,375
Accounts payable 556 - -
Accrued liabilities 58,150 - -
Deferred revenue 5,087 - -
Due to other funds - 1,231,967 -
Funds held in trust 69,643 - -
Total Liabilities 133,436 1,231,967 $ 2,637,375
Net Assets Held in Trust for
Associated student government 335,652 -
Other postemployment benefits - 63,557,017
Total Net Assets 335,652 63,557,017
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 469,088 $ 64,788,984

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Associated Student Retiree (OPEB)
Government Funds Trust
Additions
Contributions $ - $ 2,582,983
Investment earnings:
Interest and dividend income 623 2,183,621
Net appreciation in fair value of investments - (2,245,193)
Less: Investment operating expenses - (253,185)
Local sources 721
Sales 1,211,096 -
Other income - -
Total Additions 1,212,440 2,268,226
Deductions
Benefit payments - 3,586,567
Salaries 123,471 -
Employee benefits 27,396 -
Supplies, material, and other operating
expenses and services 1,011,119 -
Financial aid 84,432 -
Total Deductions 1,246,418 3,586,567
Change in net assets (33,978) (1,318,341)
Net assets - beginning of year 369,630 64,875,358
Net assets - end of year $ 335,652 S 63,557,017

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

The South Orange County Community College District (District) is the level of government
primarily accountable for activities related to higher education. The governing authority consists of
elected officials who, together, constitute the Board of Trustees.

The District considered its financial and operational relationships with potential component units
under the reporting entity definition of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity.
The basic, but not the only, criterion for including another organization in the District's reporting
entity for financial reports is the ability of the District's elected officials to exercise oversight
responsibility over such agencies. Oversight responsibility implies that one entity is dependent on
another and that the dependent unit should be reported as part of the other.

Oversight responsibility is derived from the District's power and includes, but is not limited to:
financial interdependency; selection of governing authority; designation of management; ability to
significantly influence operations; and accountability for fiscal matters.

Based upon the requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, and as amended by GASB Statement No.
39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, certain organizations
warrant inclusion as part of the financial reporting entity because of the nature and significance of
their relationship with the District, including their ongoing financial support of the District or its
other component units. A legally separate, tax-exempt organization should be reported as a
component unit of the District if all of the following criteria are met:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost
entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units, or its constituents.

2. The District, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a
majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the District, or its
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the
District.

Based upon the application of the criteria listed above, the Facilities Corporation 2011 of the South
Orange County Community College District (Corporation) has been included in the District’s
reporting entity as a blended component unit. Separate financial information may be obtained
through the District.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Reporting Entity (continued)

Based upon the application of the criteria listed above, the following component units have been
included through discrete presentation:

The Foundation for the South Orange County Community College District, the Foundation for
Advanced Technology and Education Park (ATEP), Saddleback College Foundation and Irvine
Valley College Foundation - Each Foundation is a separate not-for-profit corporation. The Board
of Directors of the foundations are elected independent of any District Board of Trustee's
appointments. The Boards are responsible for approving their own budgets and accounting and
finance related activities; however, the District's governing board has fiscal responsibility over each
Foundation.

Separate financial information for the Foundations may be obtained through the District.

In addition, the District maintains fiduciary funds which are composed of two trust funds and one
agency fund as follows:

Associated Student Government Funds — These funds are held on behalf of students of the District
under a formal trust agreement between the associated student government and the District.

South Orange County CCD Retiree (OPEB) Trust - The Trust is an irrevocable governmental trust
pursuant to Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code for the purpose of funding certain post-
employment benefits. The Trust Board of Authority, comprised of the Vice Chancellor of Business
Services; Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employer/Employee Relations, District;
Executive Director of Fiscal Services/Comptroller; Vice President of Administrative Services,
Saddleback College; and Director of Fiscal Services, Irvine Valley College provide oversight over
Trust investments and plan administration. As such, the District acts as the fiduciary of the Trust.

Agency Fund — Funds are held by the District on behalf of students, clubs and donors for student
loans and scholarships.

Separate financial statements are not prepared for trust and agency funds.
Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management Discussion and Analysis - for State
and Local Governments and including Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and
Management Discussion and Analysis of Public College and Universities, issued in June and
November 1999 and Audits of State and Local Governmental Units issued by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The financial statement presentation required by GASB
No. 34 and No. 35 provides a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of the District's financial
activities. The entity-wide perspective replaces the fund-group perspective previously required.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.

Financial Statement Presentation (continued)
Fiduciary activities are excluded from the basic financial statements.
Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

For financial reporting purposes, the District is considered a special-purpose government engaged
in business-type activities. Accordingly, the District's basic financial statements have been
presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an
obligation has been incurred. All significant intra-agency transactions have been eliminated.

For internal accounting purposes, the budgetary and financial accounts of the District have been
recorded and maintained in accordance with the Chancellor's Office of the California Community
College's Budget and Accounting Manual.

To ensure compliance with the California Education Code, the financial resources of the District are
divided into separate funds for which separate accounts are maintained for recording cash, other
resources and all related liabilities, obligations and equities.

By state law, the District's Governing Board must approve a budget no later than September 15. A
public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's Governing
Board satisfied these requirements. Budgets were adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

These budgets are revised by the District's Governing Board during the year to give consideration
to unanticipated income and expenditures. Formal budgetary integration was employed as a
management control device during the year for all budgeted funds. Expenditures cannot legally
exceed appropriations by major object account.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the District follows
all GASB statements issued prior to November 30, 1989 until subsequently amended, superseded or
rescinded. The District has the option to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989 unless FASB conflicts with GASB. The District
has elected to not apply FASB pronouncements issued after the applicable date.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Cash in the Orange County Treasury and investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund are
recorded at fair value in accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from the federal government, state and local
governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenses made
pursuant to the District's grants and contracts.

Inventory

Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market using the average cost method and are
expensed when used. Inventory consists of expendable instructional, custodial, health and other
supplies held for consumption.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for goods or services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012, are
recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid amount is
recorded at the time of the purchase and an expense is reported in the year in which goods or
services are consumed.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are those amounts externally restricted as to use pursuant to
the requirements of the District's grants, contracts, and debt service requirements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Donated capital assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of donation. For equipment, the District's capitalization policy
includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of greater than one
year. Buildings as well as renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and land improvements that
significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that does not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the asset's life is recorded in operating expense in the year in which the expense was
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, generally 50 years for buildings, 10 years for site improvements, 8 years for equipment
and vehicles and 3 years for technology.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J.

Accounts Payable
Accounts payable consists of amounts due to vendors.
Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of salaries and benefits payable, deferred summer pay and load banking.
Load banking hours consist of hours worked by instructors in excess of a full-time load which they
may carryover for future paid time off.

Deferred Revenue

Tuition and fees received prior to June 30 for classes and programs offered in the subsequent fiscal
year are reported as deferred revenue.

Cash received for federal and state special projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the
extent that qualified expenses have been incurred. Deferred revenue is recorded to the extent cash
received on specific projects and programs exceed qualified expenses.

Compensated Absences

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, accumulated
unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as a liability of the District as compensated
absences in the Statement of Net Assets.

Sick leave benefits are accumulated without limit for each employee. Accumulated employee sick
leave benefits are not recognized as a liability of the District. The District's policy is to record sick
leave as an operating expense in the period taken; however, unused sick leave is added to the
creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires and within
the constraints of the appropriate retirement systems.

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: This represents the District's total investment in capital
assets, net of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of
invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted net assets for: capital projects, scholarships, and other special purposes: Restricted
expendable net assets include resources in which the District is legally or contractually obligated to
spend resources in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties or by enabling
legislation adopted by the District. The District first applies restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

N.

Net Assets (continued)

Restricted net assets - nonexpendable: Nonexpendable restricted net assets consist of endowment
and similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the
gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the
purpose of producing present and future income, which may either be expended or added to
principal. The District had no restricted net assets - nonexpendable. However, the component units
do have nonexpendable restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets: Unrestricted net assets represent resources available to be used for
transactions relating to the general operations of the District, and may be used at the discretion of the
governing board, as designated, to meet current expenses for specific future purposes. The Board of
Trustees have designated $10,345,556 of the unrestricted net assets balance as a reserve for
contingencies.

State Apportionments

The District does not receive state apportionment for the base calculation because it receives more
than sufficient revenues from enrollment fees and property taxes. The excess property taxes above
the base revenue calculation is referred to as basic aid funds.

The District does receive state apportionment for categorical programs and partnership for
excellence. These allocations are based upon various financial and statistical information from the
current and previous years.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are assessed and levied by the County of Orange. Secured property taxes attach as an
enforceable lien on property as of January 1. These taxes are payable in two installments on
November 1 and February 1. Secured property taxes are considered delinquent after December 10
for the 1% installment and April 10 for the 2" installment. Unsecured property taxes are payable in
one installment on or before August 31 and are delinquent after August 31.

The District reports real and personal property tax revenues in the same manner in which the County
auditor records and reports actual property tax receipts to the Department of Education. This is
generally on a cash basis. A receivable has been accrued in these financial statements to reflect the
amount of property taxes receivable as of June 30, 2012.

On-Behalf Payments

GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other
Financial Assistance, requires that direct on-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries made
by one entity to a third party recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity be
recognized as revenue and expenditures by the employer government. The State of California makes
direct on-behalf payments for retirement benefits to the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Q.

On-Behalf Payments (continued)

on behalf of all Community Colleges in California. The amount of on-behalf payments made for the
District is estimated at $962,381 for STRS for the year ended June 30, 2012. This amount has been
reflected in the basic financial statements as a component of non-operating revenue and employee
benefit expense.

Classification of Revenues

The District has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according to the
following criteria:

Operating revenues: Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange
transactions, such as student fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, and most federal,
state and local grants and contracts.

Nonoperating revenues: Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of
nonexchange transactions, such as state apportionments, property taxes, state taxes, non-capital
federal grants and contracts, investment income, and other revenue sources.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of
scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
assets. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods
and services provided by the District, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties
making payments on the students' behalf. Certain governmental grants and other federal, state or
nongovernmental programs are recorded as operating revenues in the District's financial statements.
To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student
charges, the District has recorded a scholarship discount and allowance for the Board of Governors
(BOG) waivers.

Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2 - RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING NET ASSETS

The accompanying financial statement contains a restatement of beginning net assets at July 1, 2011. The
following table is a summary of the adjustment:

2011
Audited balance at July 1: $ 428,509,528
Adjustment:
Capital assets 8,016,957
Restated balance at July 1: $ 436,526,485

The restatement was the result of construction in progress from 2006 through 2011 related to the Irvine
Valley College Business and Technology Innovation Center and the Saddleback College Library remodel
project that were not capitalized.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be
returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. However, the
California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the
District's deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities
must equal 110 percent of an agency's deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure
an agency's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of an
agency's total deposits and collateral is considered to be held in the name of the District. As of June 30,
2012, the book balance of the District’s deposit of $3,857,712, including fiduciary accounts and
component units, were entirely insured and collateralized as described above.

Pooled Funds

Cash in County

In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the District maintains substantially all of its cash
in the Orange County Treasury as part of the common investment pool. The County Treasury is
sponsored and administered by the County of Orange and oversight is conducted by the County
Treasury Oversight Committee. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of
the pool shares. The Treasurer maintains the Pool for the County and other non-County entities for
the purpose of benefiting from economies of scale through pooled investment activities. At June 30,
2012, the District had $208,778,893 deposited with the County Treasury. The weighted average
maturity of investments in the Orange County Educational Pool was .94 years at June 30, 2012. The
Orange County Educational Pool does not maintain a credit rating.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Pooled Funds (continued)

The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code
Section 53648 et. seq. The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to
Section 53601 to invest in U.S. government securities, municipal debt, money market mutual funds,
asset-backed securities, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit,
medium-term notes, and repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The deposits maintained by
the County are either secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized. Interest earned is
deposited into participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in
the pool.

Investments

The District’s Board Policy 3102 authorizes the District and the Associated Student Government to
invest funds in accordance with California Government Code Section 53600, et seq., which includes
U.S. Treasury Obligations, federal agency securities, municipalities securities, asset-backed
securities, mortgage-backed securities, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper rated A-1 by
Standard and Poor’s Corporation (S&P) or P-1 by Moody’s, negotiable certificates of deposit,
medium-term notes, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, time deposits, shares of
beneficial interest of a Joint Powers Authority that invests in authorized securities, shares of
beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies known as money market mutual
funds (MMF), registered with SEC, and the State’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The
District and the Associated Student Government did not violate any provisions of the California
Government Code during the year ended June 30, 2012.

The District and the Associated Student Government are voluntary participants in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of
the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the District’s investment and the
Associated Student Government’s investment in this pool amounted to $25,801,286 and $77,662
respectively, as of June 30, 2012, which is based on the pro-rata share of the fair value provided by
LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio. The balance available for withdrawal is based on LAIF
accounting records, recorded on an amortized basis.

The total amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF as of June 30, 2012 was $21.9 billion.
LAIF is part of the California Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA), which at June 30, 2012
has a balance of $60.5 billion. The weighted average maturity of LAIF investments was .74 years as
of June 30, 2012. LAIF is unrated as to credit quality.

The Board of Authority of the Retiree Benefit (OPEB) Trust has established an investment policy
under provisions of California Government Code Sections 53216.1, 53216.5 and 53216.6 which
allows investment in any form or type of investment deemed prudent by the Board of Authority and
not otherwise expressly restricted by law.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

C. Investments (continued)
The investment policy authorizes the Trust to invest funds in certain types of investments including
publicly traded common stocks, American Depository Receipts (ADRs), SEC-registered open-end
mutual funds and Bank, Insurance Company or Trust Company commingled funds, closed-end SEC-
registered mutual funds, Exchange Traded Funds (ETF), obligations of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, bonds issued by U.S. Corporations or U.S. subsidiaries of foreign companies that are
incorporated within the U.S., certificates of deposit, money market funds, foreign bonds, asset-back
securities, and U.S. Agency mortgage-backed pass-through securities.
In addition, the component units’ investment policies authorize the component units to invest in
certain types of investments including publicly traded common stocks, SEC-registered open-end and
closed-end mutual funds, Exchange Traded Funds (ETF), obligations of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, bonds issued by U.S. Corporations or U.S. subsidiaries of foreign companies that are
incorporated within the U.S., certificates of deposit, money market funds, foreign bonds, asset-back
securities, U.S. Agency mortgage-backed pass-through securities, investment partnerships, and
future, options, puts, short sales, or other derivative investments.
Investments held by the Retiree Benefit (OPEB) Trust, Associated Student Government Funds and
the component units at June 30, 2012 are presented below:
Fair Interest Rate Maturity Weighted Average
Investment Type Value % Range Range Maturity (Years)
OPEB Trust
Equity mutual funds $ 31,097,970 N/A N/A N/A
Fixed income mutual funds 33,582,931 N/A N/A N/A
Total for OPEB Trust $ 64,680,901
Component Units
Common stock and options $ 1,827,265 N/A N/A N/A
Fixed income mutual funds 826,514 N/A N/A N/A
Equity mutual funds 3,270,633 N/A N/A N/A
Mortgage and asset backed securities 58994  3.5% - 5.50% 02/01/2036 - 02/01/2042 27.9
U.S. treasury notes 48846  0.625% - 3.00%  07/15/12-02/15/2022 6.1
Total for Component Units $ 6,032,252
Associated Student Government Funds
Certificates of deposit $ 46,620 0.40% 02/09/13 0.61
Total for Associated Student
Government Funds $ 46,620
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

C.

Investments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Equity mutual funds are not subject to interest rate risk. The Trust does not have a
formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

The component units’ investment guidelines limit the maximum average bond maturities to 10 years
and the maximum individual bond maturities to 30 years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Equity mutual funds are not subject to credit risk. The Trust investment policy
establishes minimum acceptable credit ratings for investments from any Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSROs).

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution for the securities with credit
exposure held by the component units and Associated Student Government Funds as of June 30,
2012:

Credit Ratings
Investment Type Fair Value AAA Not Rated Not applicable
OPEB Trust
Equity mutual funds $ 31,097,970 $ - - $ 31,097,970
Fixed income mutual funds 33,582,931 - 33,582,931 -
64680901
Component Unit
Common stock and options $ 1827265 $ - % - % 1,827,265
Equity mutual funds 826,514 - - 826,514
Fixed income mutual funds 3,270,633 3,270,633
Mortgage and asset-backed securities 58,994 58,994 - -
U.S. treasury notes 48,846 48,846 - -
6,032,252
Associated Student Government Funds
Certificate of deposit $ 46,620 $ - 8 46,620 $ -

29



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

C. Investments (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investment in a
single issuer. The Trust and component units’ investment policies limit investments to no more
than 5% of assets invested in any single equity security, any single debt security or investment in
any mutual fund that holds more than 5% of its portfolio in any single issue or issuer. The
foregoing limitation is not intended to apply to the percentage of assets invested in a single
diversified mutual fund, obligations of the U.S Government and its agencies, U.S. agency
mortgage-backed pass-through securities, or to a mutual fund that invests in such obligations or
securities. The Trust and the component units did not violate any provisions of the California
Government Code or its investment policy during the year ended June 30, 2012.

D. Investments with the Foundation for California Community Colleges

The component units have entered into a partnership arrangement with the California
Community Colleges Scholarship Endowment (Endowment) through the Foundation for
California Community Colleges (FCCC). The Endowment has been set up to provide matching
scholarship funds for California community colleges. The endowment was formed through a
generous $50 million matching commitment from the Bernard Osher Foundation and an initial
contribution of $25 million. The California Community Colleges and the FCCC had until June
2011 to raise an additional $50 million, for which the Osher Foundation provided a 50 percent
match up to $25 million. Beginning with the 2009-10 year, the Endowment distributed
scholarship funding from the initial $25 million gift to each participating community college.
The allocation is based on each colleges FTES and each scholarship is valued at maximum of
$1,000 per school year. The investments held with the FCCC amounts to $1,203,492 as of June
30, 2012.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables and payables result when the interfund transfer is transacted after the close of the
fiscal year. Interfund activity within the funds has been eliminated in the basic financial statements,
except for balances that are reflected between the business-type activity and fiduciary funds.

30



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following provides a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2012:

Capital assets, not depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not depreciated

Capital assets, depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Subtotal capital assets,
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Subtotal of accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets, depreciated

Total capital assets, net

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2012 is $11,268,095.

Balance
July 1, 2011, Balance
as restated Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

$ 41,762,154 - $ $ 41,762,154
55,299,495 19,953,582 (18,426,004) 56,827,073
97,061,649 19,953,582 (18,426,004) 98,589,227
240,200,087 18,426,004 (7,717,790) 250,908,301
17,044,814 1,598,520 (208,685) 18,434,649
257,244,901 20,024,524 (7,926,475) 269,342,950
99,212,663 9,392,687 (1,273,435) 107,331,915
10,980,154 1,875,408 (206,312) 12,649,250
110,192,817 11,268,095 (1,479,747) 119,981,165
147,052,084 8,756,429 (6,446,728) 149,361,785

$ 244,113,733 28,710,011 $ (24872,732) $ 247,951,012

The beginning balance at July 1, 2011 was restated to include construction in progress that had been
expensed in prior years. See Note 2 — Restatement of Beginning Net Assets for additional information.

31



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 6 - LEASES

A. Financing Lease Agreements

The District has financing agreements for the acquisition of cogeneration plants. Future minimum
lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Lease Payment
2013 $ 430,822
2014 437,682
2015 444,679
2016 451,817
2017 459,097
2018-2019 672,699
Total 2,896,796
Less amount representing interest (404,032)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 2,492,764

The net book value of the site improvements under the financing lease agreements at June 30, 2012
was $2,130,102.

B. Operating Leases
The District has entered into various operating leases for the rental of facilities and equipment with
lease terms in excess of one year. None of these agreements contain purchase options. Future

minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Lease Payment
2013 $ 80,523
2014 65,008
2015 34,908
2016 28,407
Total $ 208,846

Current year expenses for operating leases are approximately $306,045 The District will receive no
sublease rental revenues nor pay any contingent rentals for these facilities or equipment.
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NOTE 6 — LEASES (CONTINUED)

C. Sublease

In March 2004, the District entered into a sublease with the City of Tustin for lease of 30.71 acres of
the former Marine Corps Air Station (MCAS) Tustin. The property is being used for the Advanced
Technology Educational Campus. The lease will end on the earlier of December 31, 2050 or the
effective date of conveyance of that portion of the leased property to the District. Future minimum
lease payments under this agreement are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Lease Payment
2013 $ 6,600
2014 6,600
2015 6,600
2016 6,600
2017 6,600

2018-2022 33,000
2023-2027 33,000
2028-2032 33,000
2033-2037 33,000
2038-2042 33,000
2043-2047 33,000
2048-2051 23,100
Total $ 254,100

The base rent for this property consists of payment for all protection and maintenance for the leased
premises as well as the reimbursement of operating expenses. For the year ended June 30, 2012 the
District incurred expenses for the property in the amount of $6,600.

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A schedule of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2012 is shown below:

Balance Balance Amount Due in
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012 One Year
Financing lease agreements $ 2799031 $ - $ (306,267) $ 2,492,764 $ 236,214
Compensated ahsences 3,635,482 3,238,893 (3,187,645) 3,686,730 1,253,488
Early retirement incentive 5,412,719 - (1,082,544) 4,330,175 1,082,544
Claims liability 364,416 241,253 (280,626) 325,043 325,043
Net OPEB obligation - 1,489,523 - 1,489,523 -
Total $ 12211648 $ 4969669  $(4,857,082) $ 12324235 $ 2,897,289
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NOTE 8 - RENTAL INCOME

The District entered into a 55-year operating lease contract during 1985 to lease land owned by the
District to a construction partnership for the purpose of building apartments. Annual lease payments
through 2012 shall be adjusted by adding to the prior year's payment an increase of four and three-
quarters percent. Thereafter, commencing with the payment due 2013, the prior payment shall be adjusted
annually based upon the percentage change for the preceding calendar year as contained in the "Consumer
Price Index For All Urban Consumers Los Angeles, Long Beach, Anaheim, Metropolitan Area" published
by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States Department of Labor; provided; however, that there
shall be a minimum increase of three percent over the preceding annual rent and not more than six percent
over such preceding year. Minimum annual lease receipts for the next five years and afterward are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Lease Payment
2013 $ 2,351,244
2014 2,421,781
2015 2,494,435
2016 2,569,268
2017 2,646,346
2018-2022 14,471,303
2023-2027 16,776,206
2028-2032 19,448,221
2033-2037 22,545,819
2038-2040 15,216,447

Total $ 100,941,070

NOTE 9- EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by
agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement
System (STRS) and classified employees are members of the Public Employees' Retirement System
(PERS).

State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by STRS. The
plan provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. STRS
issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. Copies of the STRS annual financial report may be obtained from STRS, 100
Waterfront Place, West Sacramento, CA 95605.
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NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their salary and the District is required to
contribute a statutorily determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the
rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers' Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate
for fiscal year 2011-2012 was 8.25% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan
members are established and may be amended by State statute.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement
System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit
pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-
of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes required supplementary
information. Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS
Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814,

Funding Policy

Active plan members are required to contribute 7.0% of their salary. The District is required to contribute
an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are
those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution for fiscal
year 2011-12 was 10.923% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are
established and may be amended by State statute.

Contributions to STRS and PERS

The District's contributions to STRS and PERS for each of the last three fiscal years are as follows:

STRS PERS
Year Ended Required Percent Required Percent
June 30, Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed
2010 $ 4,509,082 100% $ 3,492,129 100%
2011 4,496,584 100% 3,985,469 100%
2012 4,164,341 100% 3,936,361 100%
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NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Early Retirement Incentive

In April 2011, the Board of Trustees approved an early retirement incentive plan for eligible academic
employees for the 2010-2011 academic year to be administered through the Public Agency Retirement
Systems (PARS). This program supplements STRS/PERS and qualifies under relevant sections of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. Four options were available for eligible employees which
are as follows:

Option 1 — a monthly cash payment for life.

Option 2 —a monthly reduced joint and survivor payment for the participant’s and beneficiary’s
lifetime.

Option 3 — a modified monthly cash payment paid for the greater of 10 years or the participant’s
lifetime.

Option 4 — higher, fixed period payments, based on the present value of the unmodified benefit, paid
monthly for a fixed number or years.

The plan provides an incentive equal to 85% of the participant’s annual base pay. Fifty two (52)
employees elected to participate in this early retirement incentive. The total cost of this benefit is
$5,412,719 and the District had elected to fund this benefit by purchasing an annuity insurance policies
payable over five years. The District paid $1,082,544 on July 1, 2011. The total liability outstanding as of
June 30, 2012 is $4,330,175.

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

Plan Description

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the Retiree Health Plan). The
plan provides health, dental and vision benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents in accordance
with provisions established through negotiations between the District and the bargaining unions
representing employees. Plan provisions are renegotiated each three-year bargaining period. The District
reports the financial activity of the plan as a trust fund in these financial statements and no separate
financial report is prepared.

Eligibility

The District currently provides retiree and dependent health benefits to eligible academic, classified,
classified leadership and administrators until retirees reach age 65. Eligibility requirements vary by
employee classification. All participants must have a minimum service of 10 years and minimum required
hours of 75% FTE. In addition, classified employees must be at least 60 years of age; and classified
leadership, administrators and academic employees must retire under PERS or STRS. The District also
pays for retiree only Medicare supplemental coverage for academic, classified leadership and
administrative retirees beyond age 65.

36



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2012.

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 286
Active plan members 797
Total 1,083
Funding Policy

The contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the District. The required
contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an annual adjustment to
fully fund the actuarially determined annual required contribution. For fiscal year 2011-12, the District
contributed $2,582,983 to the plan for current year premiums. The District pays for 100% of coverage.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of
the District's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed, and changes in the District's
net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 4,072,506
Interest on net OPEB obligation -

Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB Cost 4,072,506
Contributions made (2,582,983)
Changes in net OPEB obligation 1,489,523

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year -

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 1,489,523
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NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed, and the net OPEB
obligation was as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation (Asset)
6/30/2012 $ 4,072,506 63.42% $ 1,489,523
6/30/2011 7,522,217 100.47% -
6/30/2010 2,864,593 84.3% 35,145

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of February 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the funded ratio was 81.36%. The
actuarial value of assets was $69,037,662. The actuarial accrued liability was $84,858,604, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $15,820,942. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $72,475,138, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 21.83%. In June 2008 the District established the South Orange County Community College District
Retiree (OPEB) Trust. Irrevocable contributions to the trust of $53,040,168 were made as of June 30,
2008, fully funding the UAAL as of June 2008.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing benefit plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets, if any, is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits. The schedule of employer contributions also presented as required supplementary
information, presents trend information about the amounts contributed to the plan by employers in
comparison to the annual required contribution (ARC).

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time
of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, if any, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial cost method used in determining the benefit obligations is the Entry Age Normal Cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included a 7.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the
employers own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4.0 percent which included a 3.0 percent inflation assumption.

NOTE 11 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

The District participates in five joint powers agreement (JPA) entities: the Statewide Association of
Community Colleges (SWACC), the Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF), the Protected Insurance
Programs for Schools (PIPS), the Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC), and the Alameda County
School Insurance Group. The relationship between the District and the JPAs is such that none of the JPAs
are a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.

SWACC provides liability and property insurance for its member colleges. SWACC's membership
consists of two joint power authority (JPA) members (which represent 21 districts) and 25 individual
member districts for a total of 46 community college districts. A full Board of Directors comprised of one
representative from each member governs SWACC. Each Board Member is allocated a number of votes
determined by a weighted system that is based on the lottery average daily attendance (ADA) of each
member. The Board elects from its members a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. Each
member shares surpluses and deficits proportionately to its participation in SWACC.

SELF arranges for and provides a self-funded or additional insurance for excess liability fund for
members, elected alternates, and two ex-officio members. The board controls the operations of SELF,
including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by
the members beyond their representation on the board. Each member pays an annual contribution based
upon that calculated by SELF's board of directors and shares surpluses and deficits proportionately to its
participation in SELF.

PIPS provides workers' compensation reinsurance protection to its membership for public schools and
community colleges throughout California. SISC, Self Insured Schools of California, is a Joint Powers
Agreement administered by the Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office. SISC's focus is on
pooling resources to provide schools with a more stable long term insurance solution than purchasing
from commercial carriers. South Orange County Community College District has been a member since
August 2003.

South Orange County Community College District's dental and vision coverage is administered through
ACSIG, Alameda County School Insurance Group, which the District joined in July 2003. The program
offers both a fixed rate as well as a self-funded option for individual school districts or school JPA's
throughout California. There are presently over 300 school districts covering 70,000 employees
participating in the program. The large size of the group allows ACSIG to enjoy a very low
administration rate with Delta Dental which results in reduced costs for all members.
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NOTE 11 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (CONTINUED)

Condensed financial information for each JPA for the most current information available is as follows:

SWACC SELF PIPS SISC ACSIG

6/30/2011 6/30/2011 6/30/2011 9/30/2011 6/30/2011

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
Total assets $ 45,222,215 $ 174,774,000 $ 93,970,269 $ 268,938,894 $ 33,967,537
Total liabilities 21,819,352 141,524,000 71,211,379 122,138,431 48,934,138
Retained earnings $ 23,402,863 $ 33,250,000 $ 22,758,890 $ 146,800,463 $  (14,966,601)
Total revenues 11,051,395 9,165,000 6,895,722 1,161,865,492 131,226,829
Total expenses 12,249,899 12,425,000 14,184,665 1,168,327,424 130,235,318
Net increase/(decrease) in
retained earnings $ (1,198,504) $ (3,260,000) $ (7,288,943) $ (6,461,932) $ 991,511

NOTE 12 — SELF-INSURANCE

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters; and medical claims. The District is
self-insured for coverage up to a maximum of $25,000 for each general liability claim and $5,000 for
each property damage claim. In 1995, the District became fully insured for workers' compensation
benefits. The ending claims liabilities balance for workers compensation at June 30, 2012, represents
estimated liabilities incurred prior to 1995, both reported and unreported, which are actuarially
determined. The District participates in JPA's to provide excess insurance coverage above the self-insured
retention level for workers compensation and property and liability claims. Settled claims have not
exceeded the coverage provided by the JPA in any of the past three fiscal years.

At June 30, 2012, the District accrued the claims liability in accordance with GASB Statements No. 10
and No. 30, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the
financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The amount of liability is
estimated at $325,043. Changes in the reported liability for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are
shown below:

Beginning Current Year Ending Amount

Fiscal Year ~ Claims and Changes Claim Fiscal Year Due in
June 30, 2012 Liability in Estimates Payments Liability One year
Worker's Compensation ~ $ 100,473  $ 190,803 $ (163430) $ 127846 $ 127,846
Property and Liability 263,943 50,450 (117,196) 197,197 197,197
Total $ 364416 $ 241253 $ (280,626) $ 325043 $ 325,043
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NOTE 12 — SELF-INSURANCE (CONTINUED)

Beginning Current Year Ending Amount

Fiscal Year ~ Claims and Changes Claim Fiscal Year Due in
June 30, 2011 Liability in Estimates Payments Liability One year
Worker's Compensation ~ $ 24528  $ 83,060 $ (7,115) $ 100,473  $ 100,473
Property and Liability 234,615 99,070 (69,742) 263,943 263,943
Total $ 259,143 § 182,130  $ (76,857) $ 364,416 $ 364,416

NOTE 13— DEFICIT NET ASSETS

The Irvine Valley College Community Education Program ended the fiscal year with a deficit net assets
balance of $(56,957). This program is reported in the financial statements as part of the District’s

Business-Type Activity.

NOTE 14 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Supplies
Materials and

Employee Other Expenses Student
Salaries Benefits and Services Financial Aid Depreciation Total
Instructional Activities $ 62309965 $ 20591380 $ 4,694,187 $ - 8 $ 87,595,532
Academic Support 2,151,870 1,058,274 117,383 - 3,327,527
Student Services 10,042,766 3,202,782 1,441,546 14,687,094
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 5,878,093 3,058,893 4,727,524 13,664,510
Institutional Support Services 13,515,804 7,519,852 5,666,158 26,701,814
Community Services and Economic Development 2,517,296 836,009 875,293 4,228,598
Ancillary Services and Auxiliary Operations 4,827,159 1,857,709 796,028 - 7,480,896
Student Aid - - 7,265 24614477 24,621,742
Other Outgo 7,659,403 - 7,659,403
Depreciation Expense - - - 11,268,095 11,268,095
Total $ 101242953 $ 38124899 $ 25984787 $ 24614477 $ 11268095 $ 201,235210

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The District has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies, Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under

A. State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants
terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material.
B. Purchase Commitments

As of June 30, 2012, the District was committed under various capital expenditure purchase
agreements for construction and modernization projects totaling approximately $13.5 million,
projects will be funded by State funds and Basic Aid funds.
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NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

C. Litigation

The District is a defendant in various pending liability lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of
business. The outcome of the litigation is unknown at the present time; however, in the opinion of
management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
District's financial statements.

NOTE 16 — SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Board of Trustees, at its September 24, 2012 meeting, approved the recommendation to fully fund the
net OPEB obligation before June 30, 2013, and to have an experience study completed to determine local
rates of retirement which will be used for a new actuarial study.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS FUNDING PROGRESS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (Entry Age  Unfunded Actuarial UAAL as a
Valuation Actuarial Value Normal Cost Accrued Liability Funding Covered Percentage of
Date of Assets (AVA) Method) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
2/1/2008 $ - $ 51,228,360 $ 51,228,360 0.0% $ 62,858,006 81.5%
2/1/2010 56,250,666 61,189,900 4,939,234 91.9% 70,430,404 7.0%
2/1/2012 69,037,662 84,858,604 15,820,942 81.4% 72,475,138 21.8%

In June 2008, the District established the South Orange County Community College District Retiree (OPEB) Trust. Irrevocable
contributions to the trust of $53,040,168 were made as of June 30, 2008.

During fiscal year 2011, the District made an irrevocable contribution to the trust in the amount of $4,989,234.

See the accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Year Annual
Ended Required Percentage
June 30, Contribution Contributed
2010 $ 2,864,593 84.3%
2011 7,522,217 100.5%
2012 4,072,506 63.4%

See the accompanying note to required supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A. Schedule of Postemployment Healthcare Benefits Funding Progress

This schedule is prepared to show information for the two most recent actuarial valuations and in
future years, the information from the three most recent actuarial valuations in accordance with
Statement No. 45 of the Government Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The schedule is
intended to show trends about the funding progress of the District’s actuarially determined liability
for postemployment benefits other than pensions.

B. Schedule of Employer Contributions
This schedule is prepared in accordance with Statement No. 43 of the Government Accounting
Standards Board, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.

The schedule is intended to show trends about the percentage of the annual required contribution
made to the plan.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

The South Orange County Community College District was established in 1967. The District currently
operates two colleges; Saddleback College located in Mission Viejo and Irvine Valley College located in
Irvine; and a satellite location, Advanced Technology and Education Park (ATEP), located in Tustin.

Board of Trustees

Member Office Term Expiration
Ms. Nancy M. Padberg President December 2014
Mr. T.J. Prendergast, 111 Vice-President December 2014
Ms. Marcia Milchiker Clerk December 2014
Dr. William O. Jay Member December 2012
Mr. David B. Lang Member December 2012
Dr. Frank Meldau Member December 2012
James R. Wright Member December 2012

District Executive Officers

Name Title
Mr. Gary L. Poertner Chancellor
Dr. Tod A. Burnett President, Saddleback College
Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore President, Irvine Valley College
Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons Vice Chancellor, Business Services
Dr. Robert S. Bramucci Vice Chancellor, Technology and Learning Services
Dr. David P. Bugay Vice Chancellor of Human Resources and Employer/Employee
Relations
Dr. Randy W. Peebles Associate Vice Chancellor, Economic & Workforce Development
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Pass-Through

Federal Entity Total
Catalog Identifying Program
Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Direct Program
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 84.007 N/A 314,500
Federal Work Study Program 84.033 N/A 248,064
Federal Pell Grant 84.063 N/A 19,141,142
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A 4,514,012
Academic Competitiveness Grant 84.375 N/A 1,601
Subtotal Student Financial Assistance Cluster 24,219,319
Passed Through the California Department of Education
Perkins Title I-C 84.048 07-C01-062 502,009
CTE Transitions - Perkins IV, Saddleback 84.243 11-112-189 46,970
CTE Transitions - Perkins IV, Irvine Valley 84.243 11-112-189 46,968
Subtotal 84.243 93,938
Total U.S. Department of Education 24,815,266
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed Through the California Department of Education
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 6870-111-0001 51,316
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 51,316
U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through the Workforce Initiative Act of the State Chancellor's Olffice
Nursing and Allied Health Unit - Medical Lab Tech 17.258 09-115-026 145,682
Community Based Job Training Grant 17.259 CB205651060A6 180,908
Total Workforce Investment Act Cluster 326,590
Program of Competitive Grants for Worker Training and Placement in High Growth and
Emerging Industry Sectors 17.275 27-1501-4563 23,921
Total U.S. Department of Labor 350,511
National Science Foundation
Direct Program
National Science Foundation Rapid Technology 47.076 N/A 1,262,802
Passed through the Center for Occupational Research and Development (CORD)
Op-Tec: The National Center for Optics & Photonics Education 47.076 (D) 3,945
Subtotal 47.046 1,266,747
Total National Science Foundation 1,266,747
Total Federal Program Expenditures 26,483,840

(1) - Award does not have a pass-through entity ID number.

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE - GRANTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues Total
Cash Accounts Deferred Accounts Program
Program Name Received Receivable Income Payable Total Expenditures
State Categorical Aid Programs

Basic Skills 10/11 Allocation $ 203,140 $ -3 - $ - $ 203,140 $ 203,140
Basic Skills 11/12 Allocation 223,793 - 182,022 - 41,771 41,771
BFAP 712,645 - - - 712,645 712,645
CAL-B Student Grants 700,346 - 18,428 - 681,918 681,918
CAL-C Student Grants 16,992 - - - 16,992 16,992
CalWORKS 239,646 - - - 239,646 239,646
CalWORKS Regional Effort Allocation 10,000 - - 1,433 8,567 8,567
Community Collaborative Supplement 36,574 - - - 36,574 36,574
Cooperative Agencies Resources for Education (CARE) 74,236 - - - 74,236 74,236
Credit Matriculation 724,517 - - - 724,517 724,517
CTE Community Collaborative 10/11 400,000 - 125,168 - 274,832 274,832
CTE Community Collaborative 11/12 329,080 - 327,319 - 1,761 1,761
CTE Community Collaborative Supplemental 10/11 130,000 - 31,385 - 98,615 98,615
CTE Health Career Bootcamp 200,000 98,945 - 101,055 101,055
CTE Pathways Community Collaborative 09/10 92,837 - - - 92,837 92,837
CTE Professional Organizations 10/11 428,617 - - - 428,617 428,617
CTE Teacher Preparation Pipeline 11/12 96,000 - 93,424 - 2,576 2,576
CTE Work-based Learning 10/11 - 92,204 - - 92,204 92,204
Disabled Student Program Services (DSP&S) 1,365,383 - - - 1,365,383 1,365,383
Employment Training Fund 73,361 - - - 73,361 73,361
Enrollment Growth & Retention 142,369 37,710 - - 180,079 180,079
EWD - Faculty Entreprenuership 1,250 3,750 - - 5,000 5,000
Extended Opportunities Program and Services (EOPS) 981,040 - - - 981,040 981,040
Faculty Entrepreneurship (RSCCD) 3,080 9,238 - - 12,318 12,318
Foster and Kinship Care Education 150,792 89,674 - - 240,466 240,466
Health Information Technology 142,611 87,484 - - 230,095 230,095
Industry Driven Regional Collaborative 152,232 88,000 - - 240,232 240,232
Infrastructure Program (TTIP) 29,770 - 29,770 - - -
Instructional Equipment & Library Materials 102,741 - 27,974 - 74,767 74,767
New Media Multimedia & Entertainment 1 2,499 - - 2,500 2,500
Noncredit Matriculation 43,125 - - - 43,125 43,125
Part-time Faculty Compensation Fund 509,463 - - - 509,463 509,463
Responsive Training Fund (NOCCCD) 14,256 - 532 - 13,724 13,724
Staff Development 1,141 - - - 1,141 1,141
Staff Diversity 14,751 - - - 14,751 14,751
Teacher Preparation Pipeline Grant 10/11 42,837 - - - 42,837 42,837
Work-based Learning Linkages 400,335 - 400,335 - - -
Youth Entrepreneurship (RSCCD) 10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
Total State Programs $ 8,798,961 $ 410,559 § 1,335,302 $ 1,433 $ 7,872,785 $ 7,872,785

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF WORKLOAD MEASURES FOR STATE GENERAL APPORTIONMENT
ANNUAL (ACTUAL) ATTENDANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Factored FTES
Reported Audit Revised
Data Adjustment Data
A. Summer Intersession (Summer 2011 only)
1. Noncredit* 239.17 - 239.17
2. Credit 3,606.40 - 3,606.40
B. Summer Intersession (Summer 2012 - Prior to July 1, 2012)
1. Noncredit* N/A - N/A
2. Credit 298.51 - 298.51
C. Primary Terms (Exclusive of Summer Intersession)
1. Census Procedures Courses
(a) Weekly Census Contact Hours 16,028.04 - 16,028.04
(b) Daily Census Contact Hours 1,276.87 - 1,276.87
2. Actual Hours of Attendance Procedures Courses
(a) Noncredit™* 1,505.08 - 1,505.08
(b) Credit 1,663.73 - 1,663.73
3. Alternative Attendance Accounting Procedure
(a) Weekly Census Procedure Courses 1,222.23 - 1,222.23
(b) Daily Census Procedure Courses 1,988.18 - 1,988.18
(c) Noncredit Independent Study/Distance Education Courses N/A - N/A
D. Total FTES 27,828.21 - 27,828.21

Supplemental Information (subset of above information)
In-Service Training Courses (FTES) N/A

Basic Skills Courses and Immigrant Education

(a) Noncredit 214.03
(b) Credit 1,319.22
CCFS 320 Addendum
CDCP Noncredit FTES 160.23

* Including Career Development and College Preparation (CDCP) FTES
N/A - Workload Measure is not applicable.

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
RECONCILATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET
REPORT (CCFS-311) WITH DISTRICT ACCOUNTING RECORDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

June 30, 2012 Annual Financial and Budget Report (CCFS-311)
Fund Balance

Adjustments:
Overstatement of accounts receivable and local property taxes for fiscal year 2011

Understatement of accounts receivable and local property taxes for fiscal year 2012

Total Adjustments

June 30, 2012 Fund Balance per the District’s Accounting Records

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE ECS 84362 (50 PERCENT LAW) CALCULATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Activity (ECSA) ECS 84362 A
Instructional Salary Cost AC 0100-5900 &

Activity (ECSB) ECS 84362 B Total CEE

AC 6100 AC 0100-6799
Object /
TOP Reported Audit Reported Audit
Codes Data Adjustments [Revised Data Data Adjustments | Revised Data
Academic Salaries
Instructional Salaries
Contract or Regular 1100 26,040,592 - 26,040,592 26,040,592 - 26,040,592
Other 1300 20,502,631 - 20,502,631 20,502,631 - 20,502,631
Total Instructional Salaries 46,543,223 - 46,543,223 46,543,223 - 46,543,223
Non-Instructional Salaries
Contract or Regular 1200 - - - 7,849,513 - 7,849,513
Other 1400 - - - 2,412,470 - 2,412,470
Total Non-Instructional Salaries - - - 10,261,983 - 10,261,983
Total Academic Salaries 46,543,223 - 46,543,223 56,805,206 - 56,805,206
Classified Salaries
Non-Instructional Salaries
Regular Status 2100 - - - 25,189,269 - 25,189,269
Other 2300 - - - 1,692,973 - 1,692,973
Total Non-Instructional Salaries - - - 26,882,242 - 26,882,242
Instructional Aides
Regular Status 2200 3,089,419 - 3,089,419 3,089,419 - 3,089,419
Other 2400 806,280 - 806,280 806,280 - 806,280
Total Instructional Aides 3,895,699 - 3,895,699 3,895,699 - 3,895,699
Total Classified Salaries 3,895,699 - 3,895,699 30,777,941 - 30,777,941
Employee Benefits 3000 13,826,151 - 13,826,151 29,495,273 - 29,495,273
Supplies and Materials 4000 - - - 1,994,044 - 1,994,044
Other Operating Expenses 5000 532,776 - 532,776 10,652,583 - 10,652,583
Equipment Replacement 6420 - - - - - -
Total Expenditures Prior to Exclusions 64,797,849 - 64,797,849 | 129,725,047 - 129,725,047
Exclusions
Activities to Exclude
Instructional Staff-Retirees' Benefits and Retirement Incentives 5900 - - - - - -
Student Health Services Above Amount Collected 6441 - - - 1,174 - 1,174
Student Transportation 6491 - - - 443,091 - 443,091
Noninstructional Staff-Retirees' Benefits and Retirement Incentives 6740 - - - - - -
Object to Exclude -
Rents and Leases 5060 - - - 206,750 - 206,750
Lottery Expenditures - - - - - -
Academic Salaries 1000 - - - - - -
Classified Salaries 2000 - - - - - -
Employee Benefit 3000 - - - - - -
Supplies and Materials 4000 - - - - - -
Software 4100 - - - - - -
Books, magazines, & Periodicals 4200 - - - - - -
Instructional Supplies & Materials 4300 - - - - - -
Noninstructional, Supplies & materials 4400 - - - - - -
Total Supplies and Materials - - - - - -
Other Operating Expenses and Services 5000 - - - 3,765,821 - 3,765,821
Capital Outlay 6000 - - - - -
Library Books 6300 - - - - - -
Equipment 6400 - - - - - -
Equipment - Additional 6410 - - - - - -
Equipment - Replacement 6420 - - - - - -
Total Equipment 6420 - - - - - -
Total Capital Outlay - - - - - -
Other Outgo 7000 - - - - - -
Total Exclusions - - - 4,416,836 - 4,416,836
Total for ECS 84362, 50% Law 64,797,849 - 64,797,849 | 125,308,211 - 125,308,211
Percent of CEE (Instructional Salary Cost / Total CEE) 51.71% 0.00% 51.71% 100% 0.00% 100%
50% of Current Expense of Education 62,654,106

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budget (2013) 2012 2011 2010
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %
GENERAL FUND:
Revenues
Federal $ 2,703,442 1.38 $ 2,589,704 1.34 $ 2,427,180 1.26 $ 3,238,965 1.65
State 12,696,260 6.49 15,128,747 7.81 15,971,652 8.28 16,045,499 8.19
County and Local 180,176,013 92.13 175,952,750 90.85 174,611,403 90.46 177,278,292 90.46
Total Revenue 195,575,715 100.00 193,671,201 100.00 193,010,235 100.00 196,562,756 100.30
Expenditures
Academic Salaries 65,200,365 33.36 59,702,177 30.83 62,893,232 31.93 63,071,395 32.18
Classified Salaries 40,587,109 20.77 38,843,931 20.06 38,704,777 19.65 37,711,975 19.24
Employee Benefits 35,985,299 18.41 33,355,543 17.22 32,139,615 15.77 29,189,188 14.89
Supplies and Materials 5,228,645 2.68 2,718,398 1.40 2,721,640 1.38 2,806,359 1.43
Other Operating Expenses and Services 20,879,241 10.68 13,832,822 7.14 14,319,535 7.27 12,910,563 6.59
Capital Outlay 5,261,092 2.69 4,023,472 2.08 5,918,236 3.01 4,996,375 2.55
Other Uses 22,308,552 11.41 41,198,807 21.27 41,453,288 20.99 45,297,752 23.12
Total Expenditures 195,450,303 100.00 193,675,150 100.00 198,150,323 100.00 195,983,607 100.00
Change in Fund Balance $ 125,412 0.00 $ (3,949) 0.00 $ (5,140,088) 0.00 $ 579,149 0.30
Ending Fund Balance $ 30,938,654 15.83 $ 30,813,242 16.19 $ 30,817,191 16.19 $ 37,492,383 19.13
Full-Time Equivalent Students 26,523 27,497 27,879 26,162
Total Long-term Debt $ 12,324,235 $ 12,324,235 $ 12,211,648 $ 6,805,063

IMPORTANT NOTES:

The California Community Colleges Chancellor's Office has provided guidelines that recommend an ending fund balance of 3% of expenditures
as a minimum, with a prudent ending fund balance being 5% of expenditures.

Full-Time Equivalent Students (FTES) includes resident factored FTES.
All percentages are a total unrestricted and restricted expenditures combined.

The 2012 budget is the Plan and Budget adopted by the Board of Trustees on August 27, 2012.

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NOTE TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

A

Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance

The audit of the South Orange County Community College District (District) for the year ended June
30, 2012 was conducted in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 (A-133), which requires a
disclosure of the financial activities of all federally funded programs. To comply with A-133 and
state requirements, the Schedule of Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance
was prepared for the South Orange County Community College District on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

Schedule of Workload Measures for State General Apportionment

The Schedule of Workload Measures for State General Apportionment represents the basis of
apportionment of the District’s annual source of funding for many of its programs. The District is
unique in that its main source of funding is provided through property taxes rather than
apportionment as a Basic Aid district.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Fund Balances

This schedule reports any audit adjustments made to the fund balances of all funds as reported on the
Form CCFS-311.

Reconciliation of the ECS 84362 (50 percent Law) Calculation

This schedule reports any audit adjustments made to the reported data to ensure that a minimum of
50 percent of the District’s current expense of education be expended for salaries of classroom
instructors.

Schedule of General Fund Financial Trends and Analysis

This report is prepared to show financial trends of the General Fund over the past three fiscal years

as well as the current year budget. This schedule is intended to identify if the District faces potential
fiscal problems and if they have met the recommended available reserve percentages.
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LA/Century City
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Certified Public Accountants. 310.277.3373

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL Oakland
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS San Diego

Newport Beach

Seattle

Board of Trustees
South Orange County Community College District
Mission Viejo, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units and the fiduciary funds of South Orange County Community College
District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the District’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 9, 2012. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

www.mgocpa.com



This report is intended solely for the information and the use of the District’s management, the Board of
Trustees, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

ncians (i SO Comel! cer

Los Angeles, California
November 9, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN Oakland
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Walnut Creek

Newport Beach

Board of Trustees
South Orange County Community College District
Mission Viejo, California Seattle

San Diego

Compliance

We have audited the South Orange County Community College District’s (the District) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The District’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal program is the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2012. The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed other instances of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
as item 2012-01.

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

www.mgocpa.com



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

The District’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the District’s responses and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District’s management, the Board of Trustees,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

?ham ) (Toni 70M ees?

Los Angeles, California
November 9, 2012
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Certified Public Accountants. 310.277.3373

Sacramento

Walnut Creek

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Oakland
ON STATE COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

Board of Trustees

Newport Beach

San Diego

South Orange County Community College District

Mission Viejo, California

Seattle

We have audited the basic financial statements of the South Orange County Community College District (the
District) for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated November 9, 2012.

Our audit was made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and
such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In connection with our audit referred to above, we have selected and tested transactions and records to
determine the District’s compliance with the following state laws and regulations in accordance with Section
400 of the Chancellor’s Office’s California Community Colleges Contacted District Audit Manual (CDAM):

Program Area Tested
Salaries of Classroom Instructors

Apportionment for Instructional
Service Agreements/Contracts

State General Apportionment for
Funding System

Residency Determination for Credit
Courses

www.mgocpa.com

Compliance Requirement

Each District's salaries of classroom instructors shall equal or
exceed 50 percent of the District’s current expense of education in
accordance with Education Code Section 84362.

The District can claim FTES for classes given through instructional
service agreements/contracts provided certain requirements are met.

Each District shall have the ability to support timely, accurate and
complete information for the following workload measures used in
the calculation of State General Apportionment: Credit Full-Time
Equivalent Student (FTES) in weekly census, daily census, actual
hours of attendance and Apprenticeship courses and Noncredit
FTES in actual hour of attendance and distance education courses.

Districts internal fiscal controls should ensure the state
apportionment for credit courses is only claimed for student
attendance allowed by the State statute and regulation.



Program Area Tested
Students Actively Enrolled

Concurrent Enrollment of K-12
Students in Community College
Credit Courses

Gann Limit Calculation

CalWORKS

Open Enrollment

Student Fees — Instructional and
Other Materials

Student Fees — Health Fees and Use
of Health Fee Funds

Extended Opportunity Programs
And Services (EOPS) and
Cooperative Agencies Resources for
Education (CARE)

Compliance Requirement

Each District shall claim for apportionment purposes only the
attendance of students actively enrolled in a course section as of the
census date (if census procedures are used to record attendance in
the course section).

Districts may claim FTES for the attendance of K-12 pupils who
take courses offered by the District if certain requirements are met.

Each District’s adopted annual financial and budget report shall
include the appropriations limit and the total annual appropriations
subject to limitation as determined pursuant to Government Code
Division 9 (commencing with Section 7900).

Districts are required to expend CalWORKS Program State and
TANF funds to provide specialized student support services,
curriculum development, or instruction to eligible CalWORKS
students.

Districts shall adopt by resolution a policy related to open courses,
in addition a statement of this policy shall be published in the
official catalog, and/or schedule of classes, and addenda to the
schedules of classes for which full-time equivalent students is
reported for State apportionment.

Districts shall adopt policies or regulations regarding the authority
to require students to provide various types of instructional
materials.

Districts are authorized to charge a fee not to exceed certain limits
per semester, summer sessions or intersessions. Districts shall
adopt rules and regulations that exempt certain students from the
payment of health fees. The District should also ensure that the
existence of the two statutory exemptions is communicated to the
students so that they will be aware of potential applicable
exemptions.

Districts are required to expend EOPS funds to provide services
that are specifically designed to supplement the college’s existing
support programs and to help EOPS eligible students complete
their educational goal.
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Program Area Tested Compliance Requirement

Disabled Student Programs and Districts are required to expend DSPS funds to integrate the

Services (DSPS) disabled student into the general college program, provide
education intervention leading to vocational preparation, transfer,
or general education, and increase independence or referral of the
student to community resources most appropriate to their needs.

Curriculum and Instruction The Curriculum and Instruction Unit is responsible for
management, policy development and implementation in the areas
of instructional resources and academic standards.

To Be Arranged Hours (TBA) Districts are required to list TBA hours in the schedule of classes
and describe them in the course outline. Districts need to track TBA
hour student participation carefully and make sure that they do not
claim apportionment for TBA hours for students who have
documented zero hours as of the census point for the particular
course.

Management is responsible to the District’s compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the District’s compliance with specified
requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
year ended June 30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items 2012-02, 2012-03, and 2012-04.

The District’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the District’s responses and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District's management, the Board of Trustees,
and the District's state grantor agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Drcians (T S O Conndl! ccr

Los Angeles, California
November 9, 2012

61



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section | Summary of Auditor’s Results

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor’s report issued on the
basic financial statements of the District: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? No
¢ Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? None noted

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No

FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified? No

+ Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? None noted

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB
Circular A-133? Yes

Identification of major programs:

CFDA number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.007, 84.033, 84.063,8 4.268,
and 84.375 Student Financial Assistance Cluster

17.258, 17.259 Workforce Investment Act Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and
type B programs: $794,515

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section |1 Financial Statement Findings

None noted.

Section 111 Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
Reference Number: 2012-01

Federal Program Title: Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Federal Catalog Number: 84.007/84.003/84.063/84.375/84.268
Federal Agency: Department of Education

Category of Finding: Special Tests and Provisions

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

The Code of Federal Regulations, Title 34, Section 668.22 - Treatment of Title IV funds when student
withdraws, states that when a recipient of title IV grant or loan assistance withdraws from an institution
during a payment period or period of enrollment in which the recipient began attendance, the institution
must determine the amount of title IV grant or loan assistance that the student earned as of the student's
withdrawal date in accordance with regulations.

Condition:

Irvine Valley College

During our audit of the Special Tests and Provisions under Student Financial Assistance Programs,
Return to Title 1V (R2T4) at Irvine Valley College (College), we noted the out of the six (6) student files
reviewed, one (1) student’s withdrawal date per R2T4 Form did not agree with the College’s enrollment
history. The student’s withdrawal date determines how much of the student financial assistance is earned
and how much must be remitted back to the Department of Education.

Cause:
Oversight by the College while preparing the R2T4 form.

Effect:
The difference in withdrawal dates from that of the College’s system to the Return to Title IV form
resulted in an additional $58 to be returned to the Department of Education.

Questioned Costs:
$58 should be returned to the Department of Education.

Context:
Of six (6) student files reviewed, one (1) student’s withdrawal date per the R2T4 Form did not agree with
the College’s enrollment history.

Recommendation:

We recommend the College implement a more stringent review of withdrawal dates recorded in
enrollments programs and R2T4 forms in order to prevent errors when determining amounts to be
returned to federal programs.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Management’s Response:
For the 2011/2012 award cycle R2T4 corrections have been submitted to the Department of Education
and an additional $58.00 has been returned to the federal programs.

For the 2012/2013 award cycle Irvine Valley College Financial Aid will implement a more thorough
review to confirm that the college enrollment records withdrawal date matches the R2T4 Form
withdrawal date. Ensuring that these dates are correct will prevent reporting errors and miscalculations
from being submitted to the Department of Education.

Section IV State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Reference Number: 2012-02

State Compliance Test: Residency Determination for Credit Courses
State Compliance Number: 425

Fiscal Year: June 30, 2012

Criteria:

In accordance with California Code of Regulations (CCR), title 5, Sections 54000-54072, each
community college district is required to use a residence questionnaire in determining the correct
residency classification. This ensures that the District properly claimed the state apportionment for
applicable credit courses.

Condition:

Saddleback College

The admission application form for one (1) student out of the fifteen (15) students reviewed was not
provided. The admission application form contains a residence questionnaire used by the College in
determining the residency classification, our review of the paper application is instrumental in ensuring
that only attendance of California residents is claimed for State support for credit classes.

Cause:
The admission application form selected was misplaced and the College was unable to locate it.

Effect:
Lack of documentation demonstrating proof of residency of the students is a violation of CCR, title 5,
Section 54000-54072.

Questioned Cost:
There are no determinable questioned costs.

Recommendation
We recommend the College maintain safe custody of all residency determination forms.

Management’s Response:

All archived applications are kept in a secure area. The application in question was received in 1997.
Since 1999 we have been scanning the applications and the residency questionnaires. This has provided
us with a backup copy for each document.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Reference Number: 2012-03

State Compliance Test: Student Fees — Instructional Materials and Health Fees
State Compliance Number: 437

Fiscal Year June 30, 2012

Criteria:

In accordance with Education Code Section 76365, Districts may only require students to provide
instructional materials which are of a continuing value to the students outside of the classroom setting, is
tangible personal property that is owned or primarily controlled by the students, and the material must not
be solely or exclusively available from the district. Further, the policies and procedures established by the
South Orange County Community College District (District) states that any classes that require material
fees as a condition for registration should also obtain two outside quotes for the cost of the materials. The
material fees charged to the students cannot exceed the outside quotes.

Condition:

Saddleback College

During our test of State Compliance, Section 437 — Student Fees — Instructional Materials and Health
Fees, we noted one (1) out of the twenty-seven (27) classes reviewed that required material fees as a
condition for enroliment did not have the proper Instruction Materials Form (IMF) on file for review prior
to the audit. Without the IMF, we were unable to evaluate whether the class was in compliance with
Education code section 76365 and the District’s policies and procedures of securing two outside quotes.

Cause:
This is an oversight by the Saddleback College to maintain the proper IMF on file.

Effect:
Failure to maintain the proper IMF on file could result in noncompliance with Education Code Section
76365 and the District’s own policies and procedures.

Questioned Costs:
There are no determinable questioned costs.

Recommendation:
We recommend that the District enforce the current policies and procedures on material fees to ensure
compliance with the Education Code Section 76365.

Management Response:

Saddleback College has reviewed its procedures and practices to ensure that they are in compliance with
Education Code Section 76365. A meeting was held with each academic division dean present at which
the following protocol was established.

Prior to the start of each academic year, all division deans will identify the courses with instructional
material and verify that there is an IMF on file for each course. The IMF documentation will be
maintained in the division files for a 2 year period of time. The VP of Instruction will be responsible for
annually auditing the IMF files.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Reference Number: 2012-04

State Compliance Test: Extended Opportunity Programs and Services (EOPS) and
Cooperative Agencies Resources for Education (CARE)

State Compliance Number: 433

Fiscal Year June 30, 2012

Criteria:

In accordance with California Administration Code Title 5 Section 56208, Each EOPS program shall
have an Advisory Committee appointed by the president of the college upon recommendation of the
EOPS Director. The Advisory Committee shall meet at least once during each academic year.

In Accordance with the California Community College’s Chancellor’s Office Cooperative Agencies
Resources for Education program guidelines states each CARE program shall have an advisory committee
and/or interagency group meeting twice during each academic year.

To meet the requirements aforementioned, the College programs may establish a joint EOPS/CARE
advisory committee.

Condition:

Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College

During our test of State Compliance, Section 434 — Extended Opportunity Programs and Services and
Cooperative Agencies Resources for Education, we noted the following:

e Irvine Valley College’s EOPS/CARE advisory committee did not meet during the year ended
June 30, 2012, not fulfilling both the EOPS and CARE guidelines.

o Saddleback College’s EOPS/CARE advisory committee met once during the year ended June 30,
2012, not fulfilling the CARE guidelines.

Cause:

Last year was a transition year for Irvine Valley College’s Extended Opportunity Programs and Services,
including a change in the program’s Director. Saddleback College’s EOPS/CARE advisory committee
met once in compliance with California Administration Code Title 5 Section 56208, and with the
College’s Governance Policy.

Effect:

Failure to have the EOPS/CARE advisory committee meet as prescribed could result in nhoncompliance
with the California Administration Code Title 5 Section 56208, with the California Community College’s
Chancellor’s Office and the District’s own policies and procedures.

Questioned Costs:
There are no determinable questioned costs.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the District follow the board policy for the EOPS/CARE advisory committee noting
that the committee is required to meet twice during the fiscal year.
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Management Response:

In the 2012-2013 fiscal year Saddleback College will update the Saddleback College Governance Manual
to ensure compliance with the advisory committee meeting requirements as specified in Title 5 EOPS
regulations and CARE Program Guidelines. Both colleges will ensure that Title 5 regulations are
followed and procedures are implemented accordingly to ensure that the EOPS advisory meetings will
take place once yearly and the CARE advisory committee meetings will be held twice each academic

year.
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Reference Number: 2011-01

State Compliance Test: To Be Arranged Hours (TBA)

State Compliance Number: 479

Fiscal Year: June 30, 2011

Finding: Lack of evidence for tracking TBA hour student

participation
Criteria:
In accordance with the Contracted District Audit Manual for fiscal year 2010-2011, section 479, Legal
Advisory 08-02 dated October 1, 2008, TBA Hours Follow-up Memorandum dated January 26, 2009 and
Second TBA Hours Follow-up Memorandum dated June 10, 2009, “Districts need to track TBA hour
student participation carefully and make sure that they do not claim apportionment for TBA hours for
students who have documented zero hours as of the census point for the particular course.”

Condition:

During our testing of state compliance for TBA hours, Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College (the
Colleges), were unable to provide supporting documentation, such as the attendance roster, to determine
whether they were in compliance with claiming apportionment for TBA students.

Status:
Implemented.

Finding # 10-01 - Information Technology

The office of the Vice Chancellor of Technology and Learning Services has made significant progress in
addressing the information technology control needs of the District in the areas of governance and
computer operations. Through our audit procedures, we have identified some areas that could further
enhance the information technology control environment of the District.

Network and Application Passwords Need to be Defined and Enforced.

General computer controls require that access to the IT network and applications be properly controlled.
While the District has a draft User Control Policy, the Policy only applies to network access and not
application or database access. The Policy also does not specify a minimum password expiration period.

Additionally, the core financial management system, Escape, is not currently capable of enforcing a
minimum password expiration period or minimum password configuration standard. A password
complexity and expiration period requirement is also not enforced in the Student Information System
(SIS).

For CHRMS, the District Human Resources and Payroll application, passwords expire after 90 days and a
six character password is required. The application, however, is not capable of enforcing a strong
password complexity requirement.

Status: Completed, pending approval by the Board Policy/Administrative Regulation Advisory Council.
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System Acquisition, Development and Change Control Management Practices have not been Fully
Documented.

IT general controls over system acquisition, development and change control management require that
policies and procedures be implemented to ensure that all programs are sufficiently tested and application
changes are managed to ensure that the accuracy and integrity of the financial data is maintained.
Without this oversight, the District’s financial data is at increased risk of loss, lack of integrity, and
inaccurate processing. The District currently has developed a general draft policy and is working towards
finalizing it.

Status: Completed, pending approval by the Board Policy/Administrative Regulation Advisory Council.

The District has not yet Adopted a Disaster Recovery Plan or Business Continuity Plan.

General computer operations controls require that an agency have developed and implemented disaster
recovery and business continuity plans to provide contingency for unforeseeable events. The District is
still in the process of adopting formal plans for how the financial information and systems would be
recovered in the event of a disaster or how the District’s business functions would continue to operate
should the electronic data systems be unavailable for an extended period of time. The District’s Business
Continuity Planning Council currently plans to submit their draft plans to the District Board by February
2011.

Status: Completed, pending approval by the Board Policy/Administrative Regulation Advisory Council.

Periodic Reviews of Application Authorization Roles Should be Performed.

Controls to ensure application user accounts are configured with appropriate authorization roles help
agencies ensure that the electronic financial systems are enforcing a proper segregation of duties. The
District currently reviews user account listings to ensure they are up-to-date, but there are no procedure
established to ensure the user authorization roles are periodically reviewed and tested for appropriateness
and assurance that they are enforcing the segregation of duties that is needed. Without this assurance, the
District is at increased risk of fraud, waste and abuse.

Status: Completed, pending approval by the Board Policy/Administrative Regulation Advisory Council.

Policies and Procedures have not been Established to Ensure Remote Access to District 1T Assets is
Appropriately Controlled.

District College staff has the ability to install and use the application “GoToMyPC” to remotely access
their office computers. The installation of this or other types of remote access software is not controlled to
ensure that only authorized persons can remotely access the District’s network and financial applications.
This uncontrolled use of remote access software increases the risk of unauthorized persons gaining access
to District computer resources and information.

Status: Completed, pending approval by the Board Policy/Administrative Regulation Advisory Council.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 6.2
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Board Policy Revision: BP-3410: Nondiscrimination, BP-

5140: Disabled Students Programs and Services, BP-5505: Grade
Grievance Policy, BP-5150: Extended Opportunity Programs and
Services, BP-6110: Articulation of Courses and Programs, BP-1900-
Alcoholic Beverages, BP-3004: Public Records, BP-3005: Designation
of Authorized Signatures, BP-4073: Faculty Reassigned Time and
Stipends

ACTION: Review and Study

BACKGROUND

Board policies and administrative regulations are periodically reviewed to ensure
that they are satisfactory, meet the District's needs, and are in compliance with
current laws and regulations.

STATUS

Nine board policies are presented to the board for “Review and Study.” The new
language and amendments to the board policies were reviewed and revised by the
District’s Board Policy and Administrative Regulation Advisory Council and includes
collegial consultation with the Academic Senates, pursuant to Title 5 Section 53200
et. seq.

Legal counsel has been involved throughout the review process. The proposed

policies were presented to the Chancellor’s Council on November 8, 2012 for review
and recommendation to the Chancellor.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees accept for review and study
the board policies, as shown in Exhibit A through I.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
















































SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 6.3
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Board Policy Revision: BP-5300.5-Grade Changes, BP-

3517-Student Organizations at Off-Campus Locations

ACTION: Discussion/Approval

BACKGROUND

Board policies and administrative regulations are periodically reviewed to ensure
that they are satisfactory, meet the District's needs, and are in compliance with
current laws and regulations.

STATUS

Two board policies are presented to the board for “Discussion/Approval.” The new
language and amendments to the board policies were reviewed and revised by the
District’s Board Policy and Administrative Regulation Advisory Council and includes
collegial consultation with the Academic Senates, pursuant to Title 5 Section 53200
et. seq.

Legal counsel has been involved throughout the review process. The proposed
policies were presented to the Chancellor's Council on October 18, 2012 for review
and recommendation to the Chancellor and presented to the Board of Trustees for
review and study at the October 29, 2012 board meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees accept for
discussion/approval the board policies, as shown in Exhibit A through B.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services









SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 6.4
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Contract with Neudesic LLC for Software Development

ACTION: Approval

BACKGROUND

In order support the software projects for Fiscal Year 2012-13, the District is in need
of expertise in the area of software development and project management.
Neudesic LLC provides these services and is familiar with SOCCCD'’s systems and
development approach.

STATUS

The Awards Management System (AMS) and MySite Help System are two projects
approved for Basic Aid funding for the 2012/2013 fiscal year by the Basic Aid
Allocation Recommendation Committee. AMS will be a module of the Student
Information System which will assist in managing and tracking the awarding of
degrees, certificates, and transfer certifications. The MySite Help System project is
a proof of concept for context-sensitive assistance within the MySite student/staff
portal.

District IT is proposing that Neudesic LLC assist by providing software development
and project management services for the AMS and MySite Help projects.

Funding for these software development services is provided by the basic aid
allocation approved at the June 2012 board meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the contract for the
term of November 20, 2012 to December 31, 2013, and the rate schedule (Exhibit
A), with Neudesic, LLC in an amount not to exceed $500,000.

Item Submitted by: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
Dr. Robert Bramucci, Vice Chancellor, Technology & Learning Services
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CONSULTANT AGREEMENT
SPECIAL SOFTWARE ENGINEERING SERVICES

This AGREEMENT 1is hereby entered into between the South Orange County
Community College District, a public community college district of the state of California,
hereinafter referred to as (“DISTRICT”), and Neudesic LLC, a California limited liability
company located at 8105 Irvine Center Drive, Suite 1200, Irvine, California, 92618, telephone
800-805-1805, hereinafter referred to as (“CONSULTANT”).

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is authorized by Section 53060 of the California Government
Code to contract with and employ any persons for the furnishing of special services and advice in
financial, economic, accounting, engineering, legal or administrative matters, if such persons are
specially trained and experienced and competent to perform the special services required;

WHEREAS, DISTRICT is in need of such special services and advice; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained and experienced and competent to
perform the special services required by the DISTRICT, and such services are needed on a
limited basis;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1.
Scope Of Work.

A. Overview. CONSULTANT shall provide the professional services specified
herein for purposes of developing additional functionality for the District’s
Student Information System (SIS).

B. Services To Be Provided By CONSULTANT. Staff resource services, including
software engineering, project management, software architecture, business and
database analysis, and expert computer programming for the following software
development projects:

l. Awards Management System (AMS)
2. MySite Help System

C. CONSULTANT’s Staff. CONSULTANT shall submit for DISTRICT approval a
resume of each of individual CONSULTANT assigned to work on this
Agreement for prior written approval by the DISTRICT’s Directors of
Administrative/Academic Systems. CONSULTANT agrees to provide the
DISTRICT with the resumes (qualifications, experience and education) at least
two weeks prior to assigning the individual to work on this Agreement. The
DISTRICT may choose to interview individual CONSULTANTS prior to
approving them to work on this Agreement. CONSULTANTS’ Senior Project
Manager(s), Project Manager(s), Business Systems Analyst Lead(s), Senior
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Microsoft .NET Architect(s) and other lead positions need written approval from
the Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems prior to beginning work on
this Agreement. The DISTRICT shall not be responsible for payment to
CONSULTANT for the services of any individual who works on this Agreement
without the DISTRICT’s prior written consent.

D. Documentation. Functional and technical specification documentation shall be
developed by CONSULTANT and delivered to DISTRICT for acceptance by the
DISTRICT’s Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems. “Documentation”
means the documents, manual and written materials (including end-user and
technical manuals) developed pursuant to this Agreement. Formal review and
acceptance of all written user and technical documentation is required. The
documentation may be reviewed by the Directors of Administrative/Academic
Systems and designated DISTRICT IT staff and DISTRICT and College end
users.

E. Methodology. All work must be completed following documented industry
standard agile methodology, protocol and best practices and be previously
approved by the Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems. Methodology
documentation should include the following sections:

1. Methodology overview.

2. Scope and resource management.

3. Process for defining functional and technical specifications.

4. Functional (product backlog) and technical specification documentation.

5. Functional and technical specification review and sign-off by DISTRICT
stakeholders. These artifacts are to be consistent with an agile software
development methodology.  Stakeholders are identified DISTRICT
business experts, Education and Support Services and IT technical staff.

6. Code review by DISTRICT IT staff.

7. Unit testing of source code modifications.
8. Module and functionality specific business testing scenarios.
9. Formal user acceptance and sign-off.

F. Quality Assurance And Testing.

During software development, CONSULTANT shall include a phase for quality
assurance and testing of all Software. Quality assurance and testing must follow documented
industry standard methodology, protocol and best practices and be previously approved by an



EXHIBIT A
Page 3 of 23

appropriate District Director Administrative/Academic Systems. Quality assurance and testing
documentation should include the following:

1. Quality assurance and testing overview.
2. Module and functionality testing.
3. Modifications based upon quality control and quality assurance testing

results. The CONSULTANT, DISTRICT IT and designated DISTRICT
and college end users will conduct quality assurance testing.

4. Release Management:

Develop standards and practices for identifying and resolving billings for
software defects, including regression bugs (both pre-release and post-
release) and develop definitions of “mission critical” and “non-mission
critical” bugs and timelines required for consultant to fix each. These will
be developed by CONSULTANT and DISTRICT and included as
Exhibit “A” to this Agreement, which is hereby incorporated by reference
as if fully set out herein.

G. Deliverables And Modules.

Software Deliverables and Software Modules shall be as specified in writing by
CONSULTANT and approved in writing by one of the DISTRICT’s Directors of
Administrative/Academic Systems, as needed, based on decisions made during the design
process and in consultation with the DISTRICT. “Software Deliverables” are defined as
products, including, but not limited to, program source code, model/entity definitions, and
build/migration instructions. “Software Modules™ are defined as the functioning products of a
software development project (a list of such projects is included in Section L.B. of this
Agreement) as well as any and all functionality described in the As-Built Documentation
delivered by CONSULTANT prior to “Go-live Software release.”

Software documentation must be delivered and accepted by the DISTRICT prior to
acceptance of software source code. Below is a general description of each Software Module.
Additional functionality will be defined during the software development process, where such
functionality fits within the allocated budget and schedule, as agreed upon and formally
approved by one of the Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems and designated college
end users.
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ITEM NO. GENERAL DESCRIPTION
I. Awards The CONSULTANT will develop a new Awards
Management System Management System (AMS) module within the

(AMS)

Student Information System. This module will
assist in managing and tracking the awarding
of degrees, certificates, and transfer
certifications.

II. MpySite Help

System

The CONSULTANT will develop a proof-of-
concept for context-sensitive assistance for the
MySite portal.

H.

L

Progress Reports.

1.

Project Management Review. Formal review and approval of overall
project management resources and project management structure by
DISTRICT is required. CONSULTANT shall provide written progress
reports to the Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems on a
minimum of a quarterly basis, or more frequently if changes occur. One of
the Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems has authority to
approve such progress reports for the DISTRICT.

Quality Assurance & Testing Plan Review. Formal review and approval of
overall quality assurance and testing plans, approach and schedule by
DISTRICT is required. CONSULTANT shall provide written reports for
each module. The reports will be reviewed by the Directors of
Administrative/Academic ~ Systems. One of the Directors of
Administrative/Academic Systems has authority to approve such reports
for the DISTRICT.

Monthly Progress Reports. CONSULTANT shall submit to the Directors
of Administrative/Academic Systems a detailed written monthly progress
report describing the work performed during the reporting period.

Formal Progress Meetings.

CONSULTANT and DISTRICT shall conduct formal quarterly schedule of scope
management and risk assessment meetings with senior CONSULTANT management. These
meetings will involve CONSULTANT project manager(s) on site, other key CONSULTANT
staff on site, DISTRICT Directors of Administrative/Academic Systems. CONSULTANT shall
provide in writing the following minimum information at the progress meetings:
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— Complete and detailed account of the work completed (e.g., modules worked on,
functionality developed, documentation written and reviewed, testing and quality
assurance completed, involvement of DISTRICT IT staff, etc.) from the last
quarterly meeting, as appropriate.

— Cumulative CONSULTANT personnel hours expended by position and dollar
amount from the last quarterly meeting, as appropriate.

— Review of any issues and concerns that have arisen and approach to dealing with
them or assistance needed from the DISTRICT from the last quarterly meeting, as
appropriate.

— Written documentation for each module consistent with agile development
methodology management reporting (e.g., Product Backlog, Sprint Backlog and
Burndown Chart).

— Planning for the next quarter (e.g., project plan for next quarter software
development, any changes in CONSULTANT personnel).

Additional information may be required and will be agreed upon between
CONSULTANT and DISTRICT IT. These meetings shall occur at the Information Technology
Department of the DISTRICT.

II.
Term.

CONSULTANT shall commence providing services under this AGREEMENT on
November 20, 2012, and will diligently perform as required and complete performance including
all acceptance testing by December 31, 2013.

I11.
Compensation.

DISTRICT agrees to pay the CONSULTANT on an hourly basis according to the Rate
Schedule for services as defined above in I. Scope Of Work, section B, items 1 and 2
satisfactorily rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT, a fee not to exceed a total of Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars and no/100 ($500,000.00). CONSULTANT shall perform services
based on the hourly rates listed in the Rate Schedule. CONSULTANT shall invoice the
DISTRICT bi-weekly, for efforts expended in the prior two-week period and include with each
invoice a detailed description of services performed by each of CONSULTANT’s personnel and
subcontractors, if any. The DISTRICT shall have a fifteen (15) day period from the
DISTRICT’s receipt of each invoice in which to review, accept or dispute each invoice (“Invoice
Review Period”). The DISTRICT shall notify the CONSULTANT within the Invoice Review
Period of any concerns regarding the invoice in which case the Parties shall attempt to resolve
the dispute in accordance with Article XX VI Disputes. In case of a dispute, if the dispute relates
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to only specific item(s) within an invoice, that portion of the invoice will be withheld pending
attempt to resolve the dispute in accordance with Article XX VI Disputes; the rest of the invoice
will be processed for payment at the end of the respective Invoice Review Period. If the dispute
is about the invoice in its entirety, then payment on the entire invoice will be withheld pending
attempt to resolve the dispute in accordance with Article XXVI Disputes.

CONSULTANT shall submit an itemized invoice in duplicate indicating the Contract
Number and charges in accordance with the Deliverables. Invoices are to be rendered only if
the items or services have been furnished to and accepted by the DISTRICT. No payment will
be made in advance of work performed. The burden of proof regarding disputes as to the
accuracy of CONSULTANT invoices shall fall upon CONSULTANT.

The contract Rate Schedule is shown below.



Neudesic Audit Rate Schedule:

ROLE / REQUIRED EXPERIENCE

MC - Senior Project Manager

Experienced and proven senior project manager with at least 10 years experience
managing Information Technology projects. Plans, directs and controls projects
of 2,000 work-hours or larger. Capable of serving in the role of a Business
Systems Analyst, or working with a team of analysts to define project
requirements and drive an appropriate solution design. The Senior Project
Manager role requires a hands-on approach to managing, directing and controlling
successful Information Technology solutions.

EM - Project Manager

Experienced and proven project manager with at least 7 years experience
managing Information Technology projects. Plans, directs and controls projects
of 1,000 work-hours or larger. Capable of serving in the role of a Business
Systems Analyst, or working with a team of analysts to define project
requirements and drive an appropriate solution design. The Project Manager role
requires a hands-on approach to managing, directing and controlling successful
software development projects.

PCBSA - Business Systems Analyst — Lead

Responsible for maintaining the overall direction and coordination of the
requirements gathering efforts for the development process. Develops the
templates, approaches and methods used in the analysis and requirements
gathering process. Participates in hands-on sessions with end users and
organizational stakeholders. Responsible for the work products and quality
control of the Business Systems Analysts working beneath them. Familiar with a
variety of software development and requirements methodologies such as RUP,
MSF, Scrum and Agile. Minimum experience of 7 years in the software
requirements gathering space with at least the last 2 in an oversight role.
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HOURLY
RATE

$169

$159

$159



SCBSA - Business Systems Analyst

Responsible for interviewing users and stakeholders to gather functional
requirements of the software system. Records these interview sessions into
documents that are executed by the development team. Should have a solid
understanding of the organizational goals of the client as well as an understanding
of the high level capabilities of the chosen technology palette.  Strong
communication skills and an ability to work within several development
methodologies. Minimum of 3 years analysis and requirements gathering in the
Microsoft technology space.

ACDEYV - Senior Microsoft NET Architect /Technical Lead

Experienced and proven solutions architect and software engineer with at least 15
years experience designing and developing software solutions, and 6 or more
years focused on Microsoft .NET technology. Capable of designing software
architecture for enterprise-level software solutions, developing enterprise
architecture components, developing full lifecycle solutions, leading and directing
technology teams, mentoring technology teams. Responsible for the successful
application of best practices, design patterns, and innovative solutions to each
project they touch, the Architect/Technical Lead is expected to make well
informed technology decisions for the projects. An expert in several software
technology disciplines, this team member is also expected to participate in the
development of the solution, and to assist other team members to solve difficult
problems.

PRDEYV - Senior Microsoft NET Principal Lead

Experienced and proven solutions architect and software engineer with at least 12
years experience designing and developing software solutions, and 6 or more
years focused on Microsoft .NET technology. Capable of designing software
architecture for software solutions, developing architecture components,
developing full lifecycle solutions, leading and directing technology teams,
mentoring technology teams. Responsible for the successful application of best
practices, design patterns, and innovative solutions to each project they touch, the
Technical Lead is expected to make well informed technology decisions for the
projects. An expert in several software technology disciplines, this team member
is also expected to participate in the development of the solution, and to assist
other team members to solve difficult problems.
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$143

$169

$163



PCDEYV - Senior Microsoft NET Technical Lead

Experienced and proven solutions architect and software engineer with at least 10
years experience designing and developing software solutions, and 6 or more
years focused on Microsoft .NET technology. Capable of designing software
architecture for software solutions, developing architecture components,
developing full lifecycle solutions, leading and directing technology teams,
mentoring technology teams. Responsible for the successful application of best
practices, design patterns, and innovative solutions to each project they touch, the
Technical Lead is expected to make well informed technology decisions for the
projects. An expert in several software technology disciplines, this team member
is also expected to participate in the development of the solution, and to assist
other team members to solve difficult problems.

SCDEYV - Senior Microsoft NET Developer

Experienced and proven software engineer, with 6-10 years experience designing
and developing software and 3-5 years experience developing Microsoft .NET
applications for both Client/Server and web-based solutions. Capable of working
independently or in a team to develop strong technology solutions using
ASP.NET, WinForms, C#, VB.NET, and Transact-SQL, with a strong
understanding of .NET Framework internals.

CCDEYV - Microsoft NET Developer

Software engineer with 1-3 years experience in developing web based and thick
client applications within the Microsoft development stack. Knowledge of ASP
NET, c# .NET, and their interactions with HTML and SQL Server for business
applications.

CDWESB - Creative Director of Web Solutions

A proven and consistent creative force behind web solutions and rich media
projects. A Creative Director of Web Solutions provides the creative direction for
a project, according to the requirements of the users. The critical role of this
person on a web project is to create the design concept (sample comps and/or
animations) to define and refine the design of the overall user experience.

SDWEB - Senior Web Designer

Experienced designer of user experience through web media. Skilled and proven
in producing rich graphics, animation, and interactive media, consistently
following and extending concept designs developed by a Creative Director.
Experienced in working with web developers to integrate rich media with
program code.

EXHIBIT A
Page 9 of 23
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$143
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$159

$114



PCDBA - Senior Database Architect

A database architect and business intelligence specialist with at least 10 years
experience developing IT solutions. Capable of modeling enterprise databases,
architecting database access and security practices, designing high-availability
database and data warehouse solutions for the enterprise.

SCDBA - Database Architect & Developer

Creates application level functionality for the database elements of the application
suite such as stored procedures, views, indexes and triggers. Ensures that the data
elements are high performing and can accommodate the needs of the business
logic and user interface modules. 5+ years of developing technologies on
Microsoft SQL Server.

PCOA - OA Director

Responsible for creating, planning and directing the quality assurance effort of the
project. Works with the client to determine the needs of the user base and
anticipated demands on the system. Creates test harnesses (load and
functionality) and staging environments for the project. Oversees the defect
tracking and resolution process for the project. Involved in key areas of the QA
process in a hands-on role. 7+ years of QA work as a team member, with the last
2 in a managerial role.

PCOA — Senior QA Engineer Technical Lead

Responsible for creating, planning and directing the quality assurance effort of the
project. Works with the client to determine the needs of the user base and
anticipated demands on the system. Creates test harnesses (load and
functionality) and staging environments for the project. Oversees the defect
tracking and resolution process for the project. Involved in key areas of the QA
process in a hands-on role. 7+ years of QA work as a team member.

SCOA - Senior QA Engineer

Self-directed in planning, documenting and executing test cases based on direct
interaction with software developers, analysts and end-users. Able to create
automated tests (load and functionality) as necessary. Able to manually test a
software application according to project test plans and test scenarios. Able to
perform rigorous exploratory testing (heuristics-based attacks) with little or no
direction. Carries out the testing of the application on both a unit and integration
level. Reports defects found into the issue tracking system and re-tests as
remedies are deployed. Also responsible for carrying out the load tests for the
application. 5+ years in a QA role.
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$159

$143

$159

$134

$126
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CCOA - OA Engineer $104

Carries out the testing of the application on both a unit and integration level.
Reports defects found into the issue tracking system and re-tests as remedies are
deployed. Also responsible for carrying out the load tests for the application. 3+
years in a QA role.

IV.
Unapproved Expenses.

DISTRICT shall not be liable to CONSULTANT for any unapproved costs or expenses
paid or incurred by CONSULTANT in performing services for DISTRICT.

V.
Independent Contractor/Subcontractor Status.

CONSULTANT, in the performance of this AGREEMENT, shall be and act as an
independent contractor. CONSULTANT understands and agrees that he/she and all of his/her
employees shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of the DISTRICT, and are not
entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees of the DISTRICT and/or
to which DISTRICT's employees are normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State
Unemployment Compensation or Worker's Compensation. CONSULTANT assumes the full
responsibility for the acts and/or omissions of his/her employees or agents as they relate to the
services to be provided under this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall assume full
responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local taxes or contributions, including
unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes with respect to CONSULTANT's
employees.

CONSULTANT has prime contractor responsibility; subcontractors may be used, but the
CONSULTANT shall accept full responsibility for subcontractors’ performance. The
CONSULTANT shall identify all subcontractors, and describe the type of contractual
arrangement with all subcontractors. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for meeting all
terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. The DISTRICT reserves the right to
approve/disapprove all subcontractors. In the event the DISTRICT determines that an employee
of CONSULTANT or a subcontractor hired by CONSULTANT is unqualified, unruly, or in any
way endangering the project, CONSULTANT shall remove the employee/subcontractor at the
request of the DISTRICT. This provision shall apply to all CONSULTANT’s personnel
including the Senior Project Manager.

VI.
Expenses.

DISTRICT shall furnish, or reimburse CONSULTANT for DISTRICT approved
expenses incurred for materials, equipment, supplies, travel and other items necessary to
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complete the services to be provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT. Reimbursement of
expenses, including travel, will be subject to the DISTRICT’s rules and procedures.
CONSULTANT's services will be performed, findings obtained, reports and recommendations
prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted principles and practices of his/her
profession.

VII.
Originality Of Services.

CONSULTANT agrees that all technologies, formulae, procedures, processes, methods,
writings, ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, teleplays, and video productions prepared
for, written for, submitted to the DISTRICT and/or used in connection with this AGREEMENT,
shall be wholly original to CONSULTANT and shall not be copied in whole or in part from any
other source, except that submitted to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT as a basis for such
services, or otherwise licensed or publicly released materials suitable for purposes of reasonable
use in connection with services provided to DISTRICT by CONSULTANT pursuant to this
AGREEMENT.

VIII.
Copyright/Trademark/Patent.

All originals and copies of the Work Product, as well as intermediate versions and
working papers and all copyrights, trade secrets, know-how, patents, trademarks, and all other
intellectual property rights in the Work Product and all inventions embodied therein
(collectively, the “Proprietary Rights”) will be the exclusive property of DISTRICT and shall
constitute trade secrets owned exclusively by DISTRICT. CONSULTANT hereby assigns and
agrees to assign all Proprietary Rights to the DISTRICT, for no further consideration, and agrees
to require all its employees, agents, and independent contractors to assign all Proprietary Rights
to DISTRICT in a manner consistent with this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT agrees to assist
DISTRICT to register, enforce, and maintain any and all Proprietary Rights in any and all
countries considered relevant by DISTRICT in its discretion. CONSULTANT agrees to execute
and deliver all documents requested by DISTRICT in connection with such registration and
enforcement, and to perfect any such rights in DISTRICT, its licensees, successors, and assigns.
At no time, without the prior written consent of DISTRICT, will CONSULTANT use, copy,
disclose to any third party, license, transfer, or otherwise exploit the Proprietary Rights. Further
CONSULTANT will maintain the confidentiality of the fact that DISTRICT is pursuing
development of the Work Product. CONSULTANT will use and maintain appropriate security
measures to honor all of such obligations. CONSULTANT consents to the use of
CONSULTANT’s name in conjunction with the sale, use, performance and distribution of the
matters produced under this AGREEMENT, for any purpose and in any medium.

IX.
Warranty Of Conformity To Specifications.

CONSULTANT warrants that all Software Deliverables and Software Modules
developed by CONSULTANT hereunder shall conform to the specifications provided in this
Agreement (“Specifications”). During a period of six (6) months after final acceptance of each
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of the Software Deliverables and Software Modules by DISTRICT, CONSULTANT shall, at its
own expense, provide programming services to correct defects that caused the Software
Deliverables and/or Software Modules to fail to conform to the Specifications and that
significantly affect performance (as defined in Exhibit “A”) in accordance with those
Specifications, provided that DISTRICT has notified CONSULTANT thereof and, upon
inspection, CONSULTANT has found the Software Deliverables and/or Software Modules to be
nonconforming.

X.
Mutual Termination.

DISTRICT may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this AGREEMENT. If
DISTRICT terminates DISTRICT shall compensate CONSULTANT only for services
satisfactorily rendered to the date of termination. Written notice by DISTRICT shall be
sufficient to stop further performance of services by CONSULTANT. Notice shall be deemed
given when received by the either party or no later than three days after the day of mailing,
whichever is sooner.

DISTRICT or CONSULTANT may terminate this AGREEMENT upon giving of written
notice of intention to terminate for cause. Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this
AGREEMENT by either party; or (b) any act by either party exposing the other party to liability
to others for personal injury or property damage; or (c) Either party is adjudged a bankrupt, if
either party makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed on
account of either party’s insolvency. Written notice by either party shall contain the reasons for
such intention to terminate and unless within ten (10) days after service of such notice the
condition or violation shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be
made, this AGREEMENT shall upon the expiration of the ten (10) days cease and terminate.
The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other rights or remedies
available to DISTRICT. Written notice by either party shall be deemed given when received by
the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.

The rights and remedies provided in this Section shall not be exclusive and are in
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this AGREEMENT.

XI.
Hold Harmless.

CONSULTANT agrees to and does hereby indemnify, hold harmless and defend the
DISTRICT and its Board of Trustees, officers, employees and agents from every claim or
demand made and every liability, loss, damage or expense (including attorneys’ fees), of any
nature whatsoever, which may be incurred by reason of:

a. Any injury to or death of any person(s), or damage to or loss of
any property caused by any act, neglect, default, or omission of the
CONSULTANT, or any person, firm or corporation employed by
the CONSULTANT, either directly or by independent contract,
arising out of, or in any way connected with, the services covered
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by this AGREEMENT, whether said injury or damage occurs
either on or off DISTRICT's property, except for liability for
damages which result from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of the DISTRICT or its officers, employees or agents;
and/or

b. Any judgment or proceeding in which it is determined, or any
settlement Contract arising out of the allegations, that
CONSULTANT’s furnishing or supplying DISTRICT with goods,
components, programs, practices, or methods supplied by
CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT constitutes an
infringement of any patent, copyright, trademark, trade name, trade
secret or other proprietary or contractual right of any third party.
The foregoing shall not apply unless DISTRICT has informed
CONSULTANT as soon as practicable of the suit or action
alleging such infringement. CONSULTANT shall not settle such
suit or action without the consent of the DISTRICT. DISTRICT
retains the right to participate in the defense against any such suit
or action. The DISTRICT agrees to provide CONSULTANT with
prompt notice of any such claims and to permit CONSULTANT to
defend any claim or suit, and that it will cooperate fully in such
defense.

XI1.
Insurance.

CONSULTANT agrees to carry a comprehensive general and automobile liability
insurance with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence combined single
limit for bodily injury and property damage in a form mutually acceptable to both parties to
protect CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against liability or claims of liability which may arise
out of this AGREEMENT. In addition, CONSULTANT agrees to provide an endorsement to
this policy stating, "Such insurance as is afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any
insurance carried by DISTRICT shall be excess and noncontributory." No later than November
20, 2012 CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with certificates of insurance evidencing all
coverages and endorsements required hereunder including a thirty (30) day written notice of
cancellation or reduction in coverage. CONSULTANT agrees to name DISTRICT and its
officers, agents and employees as additional insured under said policy. Consultant agrees to
maintain workers’ compensation insurance as required under the laws of the state of California.

XIII.
Assignment.

This AGREEMENT and/or the obligations of the CONSULTANT pursuant to this
AGREEMENT shall not be assigned or otherwise transferred by the CONSULTANT, without
the prior written consent of DISTRICT. Any attempt to make such an assignment without
DISTRICT’s prior written consent shall be void.
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XIV.
Compliance With Applicable Laws.

The services completed herein must meet the approval of the DISTRICT and shall be
subject to the DISTRICT's general right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion
thereof. CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules,
regulations and ordinances that are now or may in the future become applicable to
CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT's business, equipment and personnel engaged in operations
covered by this AGREEMENT or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

XV.
Permits/Licenses.

CONSULTANT and all CONSULTANT's employees or agents shall secure and maintain
in force such permits and licenses as are required by law in connection with the furnishing of
services pursuant to this AGREEMENT.

XVI.
Employment With Public Agency.

CONSULTANT, if an employee of another public agency, agrees that CONSULTANT
will not receive salary or remuneration, other than vacation pay, as an employee of another

public agency for the actual time in which services are actually being performed pursuant to this
AGREEMENT.

XVII.
Entire Agreement/Amendment.

This AGREEMENT and any exhibits attached hereto constitute the entire agreement
among the parties to it and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous understanding or agreement
with respect to the services contemplated, and may be amended only by a written amendment
executed by both parties to the AGREEMENT.

XVIII.
Equal Opportunity Employment.

CONSULTANT agrees that it will not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment
of persons because of race, color, religious creed, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap,
medical condition, marital status, or sex of such persons.

XIX.
Non Waiver.

The failure of DISTRICT or CONSULTANT to seek redress for violation of, or to insist
upon, the strict performance of any term or condition of this AGREEMENT shall not be deemed
a waiver by that party of such term or condition, or prevent a subsequent similar act from again
constituting a violation of such term or condition.

15



EXHIBIT A
Page 16 of 23

XX.
Notice.

All notices or demands to be given under this AGREEMENT by either party to the other
shall be in writing and given either by: (a) personal service or (b) by U.S. Mail, mailed either by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid. Service shall be
considered given when received if personally served or if mailed on the third day after deposit in
any U.S. Post Office. The address to which notices or demands may be given by either party
may be changed by written notice given in accordance with the notice provisions of this section.
At the date of this AGREEMENT, the addresses of the parties are as follows:

DISTRICT: CONSULTANT:
South Orange County Community College District Neudesic, LLC
28000 Marguerite Parkway 8105 Irvine Center Dr., Suite 1200
Mission Viejo, CA 92692 Irvine, CA 92618
Attn: Robert Bramucci Attn: Jodi Schlessel
XXI.
Severability.

If any term, condition or provision of this AGREEMENT is held by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless
continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated in any way.

XXII.
Governing Law.

The terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the
State of California with venue in Orange County, California.

XXIII.
Force Majeure.

Notwithstanding any other terms and conditions hereof, in the event that a Party is
materially unable to perform any of its obligations hereunder because of severe weather, natural
disasters, riots, wars, acts of terrorism, governmental action or other event of force majeure
beyond such Party’s control, then such Party shall, upon written notice to the other Party thereof,
be relieved from its performance of such obligations to the extent, and for the duration, that such
performance is prevented by such events; provided that such Party shall at all times use its best
efforts to resume such performance.

XXIV.
Taxes.

CONSULTANT shall pay all contributions, taxes and premiums payable under federal,
state and local laws measured upon the payroll of employees engaged in the performance of
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work under this AGREEMENT, and all applicable sales, use, excise, transportation, privilege,
occupational and other taxes applicable to furnish the work performance hereunder and shall
save DISTRICT harmless from liability for any such contributions, premiums, and taxes for
CONSULTANT employees and sub-contractors, if applicable.

XXV.
Personnel Qualifications And Performance.

CONSULTANT shall furnish all personnel which may be required to perform the work
outlined within this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT is required to provide qualified personnel
and maintain the skill and experience levels of personnel through the AGREEMENT term. All
personnel assigned to this AGREEMENT shall be approved by the DISTRICT as specified in
Section 1 herein.

XXVI.
Disputes.

In the event of any disputes or disagreement between the DISTRICT and
CONSULTANT with respect to the interpretation of any provision of this AGREEMENT, or to
the performance of the parties under this AGREEMENT, each party shall appoint a designated
representative to meet, in good faith, to resolve the dispute or to negotiate an adjustment to any
provision of this AGREEMENT within two weeks from the date of the communicated dispute.
The representatives shall meet as often as the parties deem necessary in order to gather and
exchange all applicable information with respect to the matter in issue which the parties believe
appropriate to its resolution. No formal proceeding for the judicial resolution of any dispute or
disagreement may be commenced until the representatives conclude in good faith that an
amicable resolution of the matter in issue through continued negotiation does not appear likely.

XXVII.
Attorneys’ Fees And Interest

In any dispute between the Parties, whether or not resulting in litigation, the party
substantially prevailing shall be entitled to recover from the other party all reasonable costs,
including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees. In addition, such prevailing party shall
be entitled to interest at ten percent (10%) per year from the date any amount should have been
paid until the date such amount is paid.

XXVIII.
Records And Audit.

This AGREEMENT shall be subject to examination and audit for a period of one (1) year
after final payment under this AGREEMENT. The examination and audit shall be confined to
those matters connected with the performance of the AGREEMENT, including, but not limited
to, the costs of administering the AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall maintain books,
records, documents, and other evidence and accounting procedures and practices, sufficient to
reflect properly all costs of whatever nature claimed to have been incurred and anticipated to be
included in the performance of this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall preserve and make
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available records to the DISTRICT and/or other representative agencies having a pecuniary or
other bona fide interest in the AGREEMENT including designees of the interested parties for a
period of one (1) year from the date of expiration on this AGREEMENT or until released in
writing from this obligation by the DISTRICT.

XXIX.
Conflicts Of Interest.

CONSULTANT shall not hire any officer or employee of DISTRICT to perform any
service covered by this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT affirms to the best of their knowledge
that there exists no actual or potential conflict between CONSULTANT’s family, business, or
financial interest and the services provided under this AGREEMENT. In the event of change in
either private interests or service under this AGREEMENT, any question regarding possible
conflict of interest which may arise as a result of such change shall be raised with the
DISTRICT.

Security Of Existing District Information.

To preserve the security of campus automated information systems and confidentiality of
data pertaining to students, faculty and staff, CONSULTANT and any subcontractors must
exercise appropriate and adequate security precautions for such data and systems design
information that is made available for the performance of this Agreement.

XXXI.
Compliance With Statutes And Regulations.

CONSULTANT warrants and certifies that in the performance of this AGREEMENT, it shall
comply with all applicable statutes, rules and regulations and orders, including laws and regulations
pertaining to labor, wages, hours and other conditions of employment, and applicable price ceilings, if
any. Failure of the DISTRICT to insist on the strict performance of the terms, conditions, and
agreements herein contained or any of them shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver or
relinquishment of the DISTRICT’s right thereafter to enforce strict compliance with any such terms,
agreements or conditions, but the same shall continue in full force and effect.

XXXII.
Limitation of Liability.

Under no circumstances will NEUDESIC have any liability for any claim arising from or
relating to this Agreement in excess of the amount paid to NEUDESIC by Client pursuant to this
Agreement or received by NEUDESIC under any insurance policy required to be maintained herein.
Neither Party shall have any liability for consequential, incidental, special or indirect damages
(including loss of profit and business opportunities) regardless of whether the Party has been advised
of, or is aware of, the possibility of such damages.
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THIS AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO THIS DAY OF , 2010.

South Orange County Community College Neudesic, LL.C
District

By: By:
Signature Signature

Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Parsa Rohani, CEO
Vice Chancellor, Business Services

42-1528382
Social Security or Taxpayer
Identification Number

EXHIBIT A

Standards and practices for identifying and resolving billing rate schedules for Software
Deliverables and Module defects including regression bugs (both pre-release and post-
release) and definitions of “mission critical” and “non-mission critical” bugs and timelines

required for CONSULTANT to fix each.

The major intents of EXHIBIT A are:
1. To provide definitions, criteria and processes for reviewing and resolving two types of
post-production issues with software developed by CONSULTANT:
a. mission critical issues

b. non-mission critical, but important issues
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2. Establish acceptable levels of responsiveness by CONSULTANT to repair post-
production, mission critical software issues

3. To define a process and set of criteria for resolving claims for financial remuneration in
consideration of mission-critical defects in work product found within a limited time after

the work product is in full production release.

EXHIBIT A applies only when all of the following criteria are true:

e Software components and systems were designed, programmed and implemented by
CONSULTANT pursuant to this AGREEMENT.

e Defect in software identified by DISTRICT was caused by an agent of CONSULTANT.

e Both DISTRICT and CONSULTANT agree that the identified defect in software meets
the criteria stated herein for a “mission critical defect”.

e Defect in software was identified by DISTRICT more than 10 calendar days and less than
60 calendar days after the software was released to full production release.

e Defect in software is not explained by or caused by the requirements, business rules or

design guidance provided to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT.

Definitions and Examples

“Mission Critical Defect” shall mean any flaw in the software work product produced by
CONSULTANT pursuant to this AGREEMENT that vitally impairs ability for DISTRICT to
meet its operational mission as it relates to the intended purpose of said software, and whereupon
such flaw is not explained by or caused by the requirements, business rules or design guidance

provided to CONSULTANT by DISTRICT.
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“Full Production Release” shall mean the single event or moment in time when the software

system is made permanently available (and not in a pilot test) to all intended system users for

real use in real operation procedures and transactions.

Examples of mission critical defects might include:

SIS Student Accounts module failing to properly calculate account balance, leading to
inaccurate financial records for many students.

SIS Student Records module that corrupts or loses student grades, names, address,
residency status or other similarly critical data elements that are key to records

management and State or MIS Reporting requirements.

Examples of issues that are not mission critical defects might include:

SIS Student Grades module displaying typographical errors in the descriptive text shown
on the faculty grade submission web page.

SIS Student Accounts module failing to properly calculate account balance for one
student transaction during an academic term (e.g. 1 in 35,000).

A mismatched data value on a small percentage (< 1%) of the records between the new
SIS database and the clean records in the legacy ALPHA database, where that data value
does not affect State or MIS Reporting requirements, financial calculations, student
transcripts or student enrollment rules.

A web page that “does not look the way I would prefer”.

21



EXHIBIT A
Page 22 of 23

e A set of web pages that do not flow the way some users would prefer, but is capable of
performing the intended function, given the proper manual process and user willingness
to operate the software.

e Any feature that functions as specified by the appropriately designated design group, but

does not function according to inconsistent, changed or improved thinking.

Defect Escalation Process

DISTRICT will notify CONSULTANT in writing, and within two (2) business days of
discovery, of any post-release defects that DISTRICT considers to meet the criteria for
remuneration as set forth in EXHIBIT A. DISTRICT will present the necessary information to
CONSULTANT to assist in evaluating the defect for EXHIBIT A consideration. For the
purposes of repairing any identified post-release mission critical defect, CONSULTANT and
DISTRICT will proceed with the escalated defect repair processes without waiting for billing
resolution decisions ad CONSULTANT will respond to reported mission critical defects reported
within the first 60 days after full production release with CONSULTANT to begin investigation
and repair within 12 hours during the normal business week and within 24 hours on holidays and
weekends. For the purposes of determining any alterations in CONSULTANT billing, within 30
days of written escalation, DISTRICT and CONSULTANT will review and mutually decide
upon the disposition of any defect identified by DISTRICT to be a post-release mission critical

defect.

Timely Resolution
Once notified by DISTRICT of a post-release mission critical defect, CONSULTANT shall

either resolve the affected defect within five (5) business days from formal notification, or (in the
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event that said defect cannot be repaired in that time) provide a written justification for the delay
and advise DISTRICT of alternative measures that CONSULTANT and/or DISTRICT can take
in a more timely manner. If CONSULTANT fails to provide a resolution or an alternative
measure within this time window, CONSULTANT will discount contracted billing rate to 20%

for any efforts expended by CONSULTANT in connection with resolving the affected defect.

Billing Effects

For any defects that are escalated as described herein and are mutually disposed by DISTRICT
and CONSULTANT to meet the criteria described herein, and only if CONSULTANT fails to
provide a timely response, the following billing ramifications will take effect:

e CONSULTANT will discount the contracted hourly billing rate by 20% for any efforts
expended by CONSULTANT in connection with resolving the affected defect,
commencing from the date that CONSULTANT received notification from DISTRICT of
the Defect Escalation.

e CONSULTANT will provide to DISTRICT a report of time spent by CONSULTANT in

connection with resolving the affected defect.
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 6.5
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Academic Personnel Actions — Regular Iltems

ACTION: Approval/Ratification

BACKGROUND

In accordance with Education Code Section 70902(b)(4), all employee actions must
be approved or ratified by the Board of Trustees of each respective community
college district.

STATUS

Personnel are employed in the South Orange County Community College District for
the purpose of meeting the needs of students.

Those academic personnel actions shown in Exhibits A and B are presented to the

Board of Trustees for approval/ratification to be effective on the dates as shown on
the Exhibit.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve/ratify the academic
personnel actions as shown in Exhibits A and B.

Item Submitted By: David Bugay, Ph.D., Vice Chancellor, Human Resources &
Employer/Employee Relations
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
ACADEMIC PERSONNEL ACTIONS/RATIFICATIONS
A. NEW PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS
1. ACADEMIC TEMPORARY PART-TIME/SUBSTITUTE STAFF

Approx.

Salary
Applicant Highest Degree Assignment Placement  Start Date
Favre, Jeffrey MS/Journalism Journalism/SC /1 01/22/13
Gilbert, Annie MA/2" Lang. Ed. ESL/SC /1 01/22/13

EQUIVALENCY

As outlined in the Academic Hiring Policies, Division 1, Part 4, Section 3B, Review of
Equivalent Minimum Qualifications, members of the hiring committee, including faculty
with discipline expertise, have met and rendered an affirmative decision that each
recommended candidate possesses the educational background equivalent to the minimum
qualifications for each respective position. As such, the following individuals are submitted
for approval/ratification as part-time instructors under Equivalencies as outlined in the Title 5
Regulations and Minimum Qualifications, Article 2, Section 53430.

Approx.

Salary
Applicant Highest Degree Assignment Placement  Start Date
Bower, Karyn No Degree CTVT/SC I/1 01/22/13

Equivalency is based upon coursework completed in Cinema-Television-Radio at Saddleback
College and extensive professional experience in the field. Ms. Bower earned a Certificate in
Radio-Television-Film-Electronic Media from Saddleback College. She is currently an
advisory board member of the Cinema-Television -Radio Department at Saddleback College.
She is also serving on the board of director at the Lake Arrowhead Film Festival. Her
extensive experience as a professional journalist for twenty years, as well as her familiarity
with Saddleback will make her an asset to the college.

'Fitz-Maurice, T. MS/Education/Reading ESL/SC /8 01/22/13

Equivalency is based upon coursework completed for a TESOL Certificate from a respected
program at the University of California, Irvine in 2008, and a Master of Science degree in
Education with a specialization in Reading/Language Arts. Ms. Fitz-Maurice has ten years of
experience teaching Reading classes at Saddleback College and Chaffey College to English
language learners, as well as native speakers. In addition, she has experience with English
language learners in a lab setting in the Saddleback College Reading lab, creating contracts
and choosing curriculum and materials.

! Ms. Fitz-Maurice was approved by the Board of Trustees to teach English on November 20, 2001.
November 19, 2012
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A. NEW PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS - Continued

ACADEMIC TEMPORARY PART-TIME/SUBSTITUTE STAFFE - EQUIVALENCY

Approx.

Salary
Applicant Highest Degree Assignment Placement  Start Date
Takakura, Takeshi ~ MA/Foreign Lang. Ed. Japanese/IVC /1 01/22/13

Equivalency is based upon a Master of Art degree in Foreign Language Education, from New
York University, focusing on Japanese language and Japanese teaching methodology. Mr.
Takakura was awarded a California Preliminary Teaching Credential for Japanese Language
and Industrial Art and Technology. Additionally, he has taught beginning to intermediate
levels of Japanese at Artesia High School for two years, San Dieguito Academy for one year,
and at Passaic County Educational Services Commission Academy High School, Clifton,
New Jersey for six years.

ACADEMIC TEMPORARY PART-TIME/SUBSTITUTE STAFEF (Ratified - Pursuant to
Board Policy 4002.1)

Approx.

Salary
Applicant Highest Degree Assignment Placement  Start Date
Bell, Kimberly MS/Counseling(Rehab) Counselor/IVC /1 11/01/12

EQUIVALENCY

As outlined in the Academic Hiring Policies, Division 1, Part 4, Section 3B, Review of
Equivalent Minimum Qualifications, members of the hiring committee, including faculty
with discipline expertise, have met and rendered an affirmative decision that each
recommended candidate possesses the educational background equivalent to the minimum
qualifications for each respective position. As such, the following individuals are submitted
for approval/ratification as part-time instructors under Equivalencies as outlined in the Title 5
Regulations and Minimum Qualifications, Article 2, Section 53430.

Approx.

Salary
Applicant Highest Degree Assignment Placement  Start Date
Lee, Chia-Lun MS/Strategic Mgmt. Chinese/SC /1 11/05/12

Equivalency is based upon a Master’s degree in Strategic Management and Consulting from
University of Birmingham, United Kingdom (certified U.S. evaluation of foreign degree is

in progress) and a Master of Science degree in Organizational Psychology from National
Chengchi University, Taiwan. Mrs. Chia-Lun Lee has experience in teaching a Mandarin
Chinese immersion program, as well as Chinese phonetic, conversation and writing in
the USA. Mrs. Lee also has experience teaching English listening, speaking, reading
and writing in Taiwan; she is a native Chinese speaker with ample experience
teaching the language. Mrs. Lee has also volunteered in Assistant Professor Ho’s
Chinese classes.

November 19, 2012



B. ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION: GENERAL FUND

1.
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It is recommended that the following Irvine Valley College/Saddleback College faculty
members be compensated as indicated below for the 2012/2013 fiscal years.

Name

Aguilar, Amara
Bagwell, Janet
Bagwell, Janet
Barrows, Morgan
Bennett, Michael
Branch-Stewart, K.
Camelot, Allison
Cesareo-Silva, C.
Chattopadhyay, C.

Claflin, Christopher

Cosgrove, Bob
Cox, Barbara
Crabb, Kerry
Cubbage-Vega, A.
Delson, Cheryl
Delson, Cheryl
Duquette, Jan
Evancoe, Eugene
Even, Ryan
Farnsworth, Robert
Farthing, Scott
Fier, Scott

Forouzesh, Jennifer

Fox, Lindsay
Galbraith, Mark
Garant, Dorothy
Gialamas, Gus
Goodman, Richard

Grihalva, Lawrence

Haeri, Mitchell
Hardick, Randolph

Hernandez-Bravo, C
Hernandez-Bravo, C

Hewitt, Suzanne
Hoggatt, Michael
Hunt, Matthew
Huntley, Anthony
Jacobsen, Karen
Konishi, Hiromasa
Langrell, Jenny
Langrell, Jenny
Levin, Patricia

November 19, 2012

Activity

Dept. Chair, Journalism/SC

Dept. Co-Chair, Reading/SC
Co-Coord. Reading Lab/SC
Chair, Env. Studies/Ecology/SC
Chair, Adapted Kinesiology/SC
Chair, Human Services/SC

Chair, Sociology/SC

Chair, Anthro/Ehtnic Studies/SC
Co-Chair, Honors Program/SC
Chair, Graphic Comm./Design/SC
Mid-term Accreditation Rpts/SC
Chair, Business/SC

Chair, Athletics Program/SC
Chair, Women/Gender Studies/SC
SLO Coord. Add’l Fall Wk/IVC
SLO Coordinator/IVC

Chair, KN/Recreation Dept/SC
Chair, Electr./App. Comp Tech/SC
Chair, Photo Department/SC
Chair, Horticulture/LD/SC

Chair, Music Department/SC
Chair, Chemistry Department/SC
Chair, Nursing Program/SC
Chair, Fashion/SC

Athletic Teams Physicals/SC
Chair, Dance Department/SC
Athletic Teams Physicals/SC
Liaison HumSvcs&Drug Court/SC
Co-Chair EMS/Pgrm Director/SC
Co-Chair, Astro/Physics/Engin/SC
Co-Chair, EMS/Paramedic Dir/SC
Chair, Int’l Languages/SC
Coordinator, Language Lab/SC
Chair, FCS & Foods/Nutrition/SC
Chair, DSPS/SC

Coordinator, Writing Center/SC
Co-Chair, Biology Department/SC
Chair, Health Department/SC
Chair, CTVR Department/SC
Mid-term Accreditation Rpts/SC
Chair, Library Department/SC
Co-Chair, Art Department/SC

Not to Exceed

Amount ($)

Effective Date

1,721.00
1,721.00
860.50
2,581.50
3,442.00
3,442.00
2,800.00
3,600.00
10,326.00
1,721.00
3,442.00
4,681.12
2,000.00
1,300.00
1,200.00
2,000.00
6,884.00
1,721.00
1,376.00
1,721.00
1,721.00
2,581.50
3,442.00
1,721.00
1,000.00
2,000.00
1,000.00
1,376.80
860.50
860.50
2,856.86
4,474.60
1,721.00
1,721.00
2,237.00
1,721.00
1,290.75
1,000.00
860.50
3,442.00
3,442.00
860.50

01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
10/18/12-12/19/12
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/22/13-01/31/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/22/13-01/31/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13



B. ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION: GENERAL FUND - Continued

1.
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It is recommended that the following Irvine Valley College/Saddleback College faculty
members be compensated as indicated below for the 2012/2013 fiscal years.

Name

Lovett, Margot
Lovett, Margot
Lowe, Leslie
McFann, Kent
Meyer, Clifford
Meyer-Canales, K.
Myers, Charles
Obermeyer, V.
Ochoa, Heidi
Penland, Barbara
Pestolesi, Diane
Quade, Joyce
Quade, Joyce
Radden, Larry
Renault, Irene
Renault, Irene
Repka, James
Roostee, Larissa
Rousseau, Michele
Schermerhorn, B.
Smith, Basil
Smith, Christina
Smith, Jeanne
Smith, Maureen
Stankovich, K.
Stephens, Blake
Stephens, Blake
Stevens, Kay
Stevenson, William
Tamer, Rita
Tamilais, Barbara
Teh, Steve

Teng, Anthony
Teng, Anthony
Thomas, Arlene
Twicken, Lawrence
Walsh, Daniel
Wegenek, Amira
Welc, Martin
Willner, Karen
Wolff, Michele
Woodward, Ken
Ziehm, Carol

November 19, 2012

Activity

Mid-term Accreditation Rpts/SC
Chair, History Department/SC
Chair, Emeritus (Health)/SC
Chair, Theatre Department/SC
Chair, Automotive Department/SC
Co-Chair, Astro/Physics/Engin/SC
Co-Chair, CTVR Department/SC
Co-Chair, Art Department/SC
Co-Director/Coach, Forensics/SC
Co-Chair, EMS/Paramedic Dir/SC
Director, Asst Nursing Pgrm/SC
Chair, CIM Department/SC
Coodintator, CIM Lab/SC
Co-Director/Coach, Forensics/SC
Co-Chair, Reading Dept./SC
Co-Coordinator, Reading Lab/SC
Chair, Geology/Oceanography/SC
Chair, El (Kines/Gerontology)/SC
Chair, Computer Science Dept/SC
Co-Chair, Real Estate/SC

Chair, Humanities/Philosophy/SC
Chair, Education Department/SC
Chair, Mathematics Department/SC
Co-Chair, Geography Depart./SC
Chair, Speech Department/SC
Mid-term Accreditation Rpts/SC
Chair, Architecture/Drafting/SC
Chair, Medical Asst/Ins. Coding/Sc
Coordinator, English Comp./SC
Chair, Sign Language Pgrm/SC
Chair, Child Development Dept/SC
Co-Chair, Biology Department/SC
Mid-term Accreditation Repts/SC
Chair, Accounting Department/SC
Chair, Interior Design/Travel/SC
Chair, Political Science Dept/SC
Co-Chair, Geography Dept/SC
Chair, Psychology Department/SC
Chair, Real Estate Department/SC
Chair, Emeritus (Fine Arts)/SC
Coordinator, AHA Training Ctr/SC
Chair, Economics Department/SC
Mid-term Accreditation Rpts/SC

Not to Exceed

Amount ($)

Effective Date

3,442.00
4,900.00
2,294.60
1,376.00
1,721.00

860.50

860.50

860.50
5,163.00
1,411.22
3,442.00
4,405.76
5,713.72
5,163.00
1,721.00

860.50
1,721.00
2,294.60
1,721.00

964.00
1,721.00
1,700.00
6,884.00
1,440.00
1,721.00
3,442.00
1,721.00
1,721.00
3,442.00
3,442.00
3,600.00
1,290.75
3,442.00
4,681.12
1,721.00
2,600.00

960.00
3,900.00

964.00
2,294.60
1,135.86
3,200.00
2,306.00

01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/22/13-05/23/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/22/13-05/23/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/22/13-05/23/13
01/22/13-05/23/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
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C. ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION: CATEGORICAL/NON-GENERAL FUND

1.

It is recommended that the following Irvine Valley College/Saddleback College faculty
members be compensated as indicated below for 2012/2013 fiscal years.

Name
Alexander, Ariel
Bangerter, Renee
Bangerter, Renee
Beck, Rebecca
Beck, Rebecca
Bowman, Donald
Cosper, Scott
Fox, Lindsay
Haeri, Melanie
Haeri, Melanie
Haeri, Melanie
Haeri, Melanie
Hare, Matthew
Hughes, Luther
Karimi, Majid
Keyton, Kimberly
Serpas, Summer
Serpas, Summer
Stephens, Blake
Teng, Anthony
Wilson, Jeffrey
Wilson, Jeffrey

Activity

Entrepreneur Modules/Perkins/SC
English Prof. Lrng Council/BSI/SC
English Prof. Lrng Council/BSI/SC
Co-coordinator, Basic Skills/IVC
Co-coordinator, Basic Skills/IVC
Lab Tutor, Perkins/SC

Lab Tutor, Perkins/SC
Entrepreneur Modules/Perkins/SC
Eng/ESL/Reading Wkshops/IVC
Coord. Diagnostic Basic Skills/IVC
Eng/ESL/Reading Wkshops/IVC
Coord. Diagnostic Basic Skills/IVC
Symphony Orchestra Perform./SC
Faculty Concert/SC

Lab Tutor/Perkins/SC
Recycle/Resource Mgmt/CWE/IVC
Eng/ESL/Reading Wkshops/IVC
Eng/ESL/Reading Wkshops/IVC
Entrepreneur Modules/Perkins/SC
Lab Tutor, Perkins/SC
Co-coordinator, Basic Skills/IVC
Co-coordinator, Basic Skills/IVC

D. CHANCELLOR CONTRACT EXTENSION

Not to Exceed

Amount ($)

Effective Date

600.00
1,308.00
1,308.00

500.00

500.00
2,768.21

390.00

600.00

500.00

750.00

500.00

750.00

170.00

175.00

620.00
1,500.00

500.00

500.00

600.00
2,268.21

500.00

500.00

09/18/12-12/19/12
08/20/12-12/19/12
01/22/13-05/24/13
08/13/12-12/19/12
01/14/13-05/24/13
08/20/12-12/19/12
08/20/12-12/19/12
09/18/12-12/19/12
08/13/12-12/19/12
08/13/12-12/19/12
01/14/13-05/24/13
01/14/13-05/24/13
10/01/12-10/31/12
08/27/12-08/27/12
08/20/12-12/19/12
08/20/12-10/12/12
08/13/12-12/19/12
01/14/12-05/24/12
09/18/12-12/19/12
08/13/12-12/19/12
08/13/12-12/19/12
01/14/13-05/24/13

1. POERTNER, GARY, ID #10025, Chancellor, Pos #1693, Office of the Chancellor, District,
Contract of Employment entered into on November 17, 2010 and ending on June 30, 2014, is
to be extended through June 30, 2016. (See Exhibit B, Attachment 1)

E. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT

1. CHU, HENCELYN, ID #15952, Medical Lab Technician and Phlebotomy Instructor,
Division of Health Sciences and Human Services, Saddleback College, Pos #3812,
resignation effective December 31,2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time
off. (Start date: August 15, 2011)

HUANG, SENIYE MARGARET, ID #1019, Nursing Instructor, Division of Health Sciences
and Human Services, Saddleback College, Pos #1576, resignation effective December 19,
2012 and retirement effective December 20, 2012.
compensated time off. (Start date: December 27, 1976)

November 19, 2012

Payment is authorized for any
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AMENDMENT NO.1 TO CONTRACT FOR EMPLOYMENT OF CHANCELLOR
BETWEEN
THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
AND
MR. GARY POERTNER

This Amendment to the Contract of Employment originally entered into on November
17, 2010, and covering the period commencing December 1, 2010 and ending on June 30 2014
between the Board of Trustees of the South Orange County Community College District and Mr.
Gary Poertner is effective when signed by both parties and is dated, for reference only,
November 19, 2012.

l. Section 1 of the November 17, 2010 contract, entitled “Chancellor,” is amended to read
as follows:

1. Chancellor. The term of Mr. Poertner’s employment as
Chancellor is hereby extended through June 30, 2016. Mr. Poertner shall
also serve at no extra compensation in the role of the District’s chief
executive officer and secretary to the Board of Trustees. The position of
Chancellor is hereby designated as an educational administrative position
as defined in Education Code Section 87002(b).

1. Section 4 of the November 17, 2010 contract, entitled “Salary” is amended to read as
follows:

4. Salary.

A. The base salary for the 2012-2013 college year shall be
$281,930, effective July 1, 2012. The base salary shall be paid in 12 equal
monthly installments with proration for periods of less than a full year of
service. Such proration shall be based on the number of days in the work
year. Any adjustment in salary during the term of this Agreement shall
not be interpreted as a new agreement or operate as an extension or
renewal of this Agreement.

B. In addition to the base salary amount specified above, Mr.
Poertner shall receive a high performance incentive during the 2012-2013
college year in the gross amount of $10,000 which shall be paid in equal
monthly installments with proration for periods of less than a full year of
service.

C. For the 2013-2014 college year, Mr. Poertner’s base salary
shall be increased by five percent. Such increase will be calculated based
on Mr. Poertner’s 2012-2013 base salary and high performance incentive
specified above. Mr. Poertner’s base salary for the 2013-2014 college year
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shall be $306,526.50, and subject to payment on the same terms as set
forth in Section 4.A., above.

D. For years subsequent to the 2013-2014 college year, Mr.
Poertner’s base salary shall be increased by the same average percentage
increase provided to other academic administrators through COLA
increases. Such increase will be by way of a further amendment to this
Agreement by the Parties.

Il. Section 5 of the November 17, 2010 contract, entitled “Professional Schedule and
Vacation” is amended to read as follows:

5. Professional Schedule and Vacation.

A. Mr. Poertner shall be required to render 12 months of full
and regular service to the District during each annual period covered by
this Agreement.

B. Mr. Poertner shall accrue one day of sick leave for each full
month of employment during the term of this Agreement.

C. Mr. Poertner shall also accrue 2.42 (29 days per year) days
of vacation with pay for each full month of employment during the term of
this Agreement, exclusive of holidays provided in the California
Education Code and any additional local holidays granted by the Board of
Trustees to 12-month administrative employees. Mr. Poertner may accrue
vacation days up to a maximum of fifty-eight (58) days based on his
service as Chancellor pursuant to this Agreement. Once Mr. Poertner
reaches this maximum amount, he will cease to accrue additional vacation
benefits until his balance falls below the maximum amount. Upon
termination or expiration of this Agreement, Mr. Poertner shall be entitled
to compensation for unused and accrued vacation days at his then-current
base salary rate for no more than that amount of unused vacation that may
be accrued under this Agreement. All vacation time must be scheduled in
advance and approved by the Board’s president.

V. Section 7.B.1. of the November 17, 2010 contract, entitled “Expenses and Required
Membership” is amended to read as follows:

7. Expenses and Required Membership.

B. In addition to any reimbursement provided under Section
7.A above, the District will reimburse Mr. Poertner for actual expenses
incurred as follows:

1) Travel expenses outside the District shall be
reimbursed in accordance with District policies and procedures. The
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District shall provide Mr. Poertner with a monthly stipend of $1,200 to
cover use of a personal automobile within Orange County. The use of this
allowance shall be at Mr. Poertner’s discretion and shall not require any
documentation. This monthly allowance, retroactive to July 1, 2012, shall
be treated and considered as part of Mr. Poertner’s compensation/salary
for tax purposes and for purposes of the State Teachers Retirement System
Defined Benefit Plan to the maximum extent permitted by law. Use by
Mr. Poertner of his vehicle for travel outside of Orange County, if less
expensive than travel by other means, shall be reimbursed at the District’s
then current mileage reimbursement rate.

V. Section 9.B. and 9.C.1) of the November 17, 2010 contract, entitled “Amendment
Termination, or Non-Renewal” is amended to read as follows:

9. Amendment, Termination, or Non-Renewal.

B. No later than January 1, 2016, Mr. Poertner shall inform the
Board of Trustees in writing of the provisions of Education Code Section
72411. The Board of Trustees shall send to Mr. Poertner written notice of
non-renewal by March 15, 2016. Such renewal or non-renewal shall be at
the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees acting with or without cause.
Nothing in this Section shall nullify or supercede the provisions of
Sections 9.C. or 10, below. The failure of the Board to provide the notice
specified above shall result in the renewal of this Agreement for one
additional year only.

C. Termination of This Agreement Without Cause.

1) Section 9.C.2) shall not be operative until after
December 31, 2012.

2) Subject to Section 9.C.1), above, the Board shall
have the option to terminate this Agreement by providing Mr. Poertner
with a written notice of termination. If the Board elects to terminate this
Agreement during its term pursuant to this Section, Mr. Poertner shall
receive ninety (90) days written notice of such termination. If the Board
elects to terminate this Agreement during its term pursuant to this Section,
Mr. Poertner shall receive no more than an amount equivalent to eighteen
(18) months of salary and benefits or an amount equal to the salary and
benefits remaining on the contract, whichever is less. All other stipends
and reimbursements provided under this Agreement, or any amendment
thereto, shall cease to be paid at the end of the ninety notice period
described above. This Agreement incorporates by reference and is subject
to the provisions of California Government Code Sections 53243 et seq.,
and 53260.
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Except as expressly stated in this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the

Contract of Employment shall remain as stated in that document.

, 2012

Dated:
President, Governing Board of the
South Orange County Community
College District

Dated:

, 2012

Gary Poertner



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 6.6
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Classified Personnel Actions — Regular Items

ACTION: Approval/Ratification

BACKGROUND

In accordance with Education Code Section 70902(b)(4), all employee actions must
be approved or ratified by the Board of Trustees of each respective community
college district.

STATUS

Personnel are employed in the South Orange County Community College District for
the purpose of meeting the needs of students.

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor recommends that the Board of Trustees approve/ratify the classified
personnel actions as shown in Exhibit A and Exhibit B.

Item Submitted By: David Bugay, Ph.D., Vice Chancellor, Human Resources &
Employer/Employee Relations
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ACTIONS/RATIFICATIONS

A. NEW PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS

1. CLASSIFIED EMPLOYMENT (Information Items — Pursuant to Board Policy 4002.1)

a. ALTMAN, CHRISTINA is to be employed as Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos.
#3243, Division of Social and Behavioral Sciences, Saddleback College, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 1, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
effective November 1, 2012. This is a replacement position for Linda Hall, who received

a change in status.

b. *WILKINSON, CHRISTOPHER is to be employed as a manager, Interim Chief of
Police, Pos. #4525, Campus Safety and Security, Office of Administrative Services,
Saddleback College, Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary Schedule Range 16, Step
5, 40 hours per week, effective October 29, 2012. This is a replacement for Harry

Parmer, who retired.

2. The following individuals are to be employed as Substitutes in the classification noted
below, on an if-and-as-needed basis. (Information Items — Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of

the California Education Code)

Name Classification

Albert, Lora Health Office Assistant/SC

Buehler, Jennifer  Program Assistant, Categorical/SC
Downing, Chad Senior Laboratory Tech., Life/Phys. Sci./SC
Kaffer, Jana Health Center Nurse/SC

Lopez, Johanna Health Office Assistant/SC

Sebold, Margaret  Office Assistant/SC

Zavala, Mauricio  Groundskeeper/IVC

Range/Step Start Date

115/1  10/11/12
118/1  10/08/12
130/1  09/17/12
136/1  10/30/12
115/1  10/11/12
113/1  10/01/12
118/1  11/01/12

3. The following individuals are to be employed as Short-Term (Temporary) positions for the
2012/2013 academic year, on an if-and-as-needed basis, and shall work no more than 160
days in any fiscal year. (Information Items — Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of the California

Education Code)

Name Position Hourly Rate($) Start/End Date

?Aboga A, Kimverly Child Dev. Center Aide/SC 10.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Abrahams, Lawrence Coaching Aide/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Agortsas, Alexander Coaching Aide/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Aguilar Rivera, Margarita Project Specialist/SC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Aguilar, Catherine Project Specialist/SC 10.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Aldape, Timothy Adapt. Kines. Aide/SC 1150 01/01/13-06/30/13
Aldrich, David TMD Aide/IVC 10.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Alegre, Pedro TMD Aide/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13

! Retiree with CalPERS from Yuba Community College District.

2 stepdaughter of Wesley Thomas, Senior Child Development Center Specialist, Child Development Center, Saddleback

College.

November 19, 2012
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3. The following individuals are to be employed as Short-Term (Temporary) positions for the
2012/2013 academic year, on an if-and-as-needed basis, and shall work no more than 160
days in any fiscal year. (Information Items — Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of the California

Education Code)

Name
Alizadeh, Tara
Angstrom, Preston

®Anstadt, Cassandra

Arevalo, Sylvia
Argo, Albert
Arkell, Simon
Armstrong, Tracey
Artemov, Tatyana
Aviles, Denise
Baggs, Trudi
Baird, Daniel
Barnes, Justin
Barrientos, Belem
Bausch, Kathryn
Boklan, Ksenia
Borgeson, Andrew
Boutte, Rhonda
Bracken, Nancy
Brock, Eric
Brown, Darryl
Brown, Lucy
Brown, Megan
Buchea, Jason
Burkett, Austin
Butcher, Donald
Callaway, Nicholas
Callian, Ted
Campo, Enrique

Cappuccilli, Anthony

Caras, Amber
Carey, Barbara
Carey, Peter
Carpenter, Allison

Carter-Ortega, Mary

“Casillas, Meghan
Castro, Metztli

Position

Hourly Rate($) Start/End Date

Project Specialist/SC
Adapt. Kines. Aide/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist (IT)/Dist.
Coaching Aide/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Spec. Proj. Coord./SC
TMD Aide/SC

TMD Aide/SC

Project Specialist/SC
TMD Aide/SC

Project Specialist/SC
Coaching Aide/SC
TMD Aide/SC

TMD Aide/IVC
Coaching Aide/SC
Coaching Aide/SC
Clerk - Short Term/SC
TMD Aide/SC

Project Specialist/IVC
TMD Aide/SC
Coaching Aide/SC
Project Specialist/SC
ST Campus Sec. Off./IVC
Project Specialist/IVC
Coaching Aide/IVC
TMD Aide/SC

Project Specialist/SC
Coaching Aide/IVC
Project Specialist/IVC
Clerk - Short Term/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Outreach Aide/SC

12.00
11.50
11.50
20.00
12.00
15.00
10.50
20.00
20.00
35.00
18.00

8.50

9.50

8.50
15.00
15.00
11.50
20.00
15.00
15.00
15.00

9.50
16.00

8.50
15.00
15.00
18.00
16.00
15.00

9.50
12.50
15.00
13.00
11.50
18.00
11.50

10/11/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
10/01/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13

% Daughter of Mary Anstadt, Program Coordinator (CTE Grants), Division of Business Sciences/Vocation Education &

Economic Development, Saddleback College.

4 Daughter of Lurdes Casillas, Senior Administrative Assistant, Office of Admissions, Records & Enrollment Services,

Saddleback College.

November 19, 2012
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3. The following individuals are to be employed as Short-Term (Temporary) positions for the

2012/2013 academic year, on an if-and-as-needed basis, and shall work no more than 160
days in any fiscal year. (Information Items — Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of the California

Education Code)

Name

Catalano, Torri
Cataldo, Monica
Cervantes, Martha
Choe, Samuel
Choi, Katlin

Ciago, Ronald
Cinquegrani, Delores
Clemensen, David
Clemons, Gregory
Coleman, David
Collins, Linda
Concepcion, Alexandra
Conkey, Charles
Conway, Jason
Cooper, Alexandra
Copelan, Joshua
Cosmakos, Rachel
Cramer, Emily
Crocker, Jared
Cubillos Bezanilla, Sandra
Darby, Lucy
Davani, Farideh
Daze, Jonathan

De Rosas, David
Dean, Heather
Dhillon, Rajanpal
Dixon, Kathleen
Downing, Chad
Druzhinina, Vita
Ebrahimpoor Khorsa, Pegah
Eckel, Genevieve
Ellis, Reggie

Eser, Shelby
Farah, Jaclyn
Farrell, Nicholas
Fellner, John

Field, Van Anh
Fischman, Leah
Fletcher, Jenny
Flippin, Mark
Formaneck, Donald
Fox, Jill

November 19, 2012

Position

Hourly Rate($) Start/End Date

Coaching Aide/SC
Project Specialist/Dist.
Project Specialist/SC
Coaching Aide/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
TMD Aide/SC

Project Specialist/SC
Coaching Aide/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/IVC
Coaching Aide/SC
Project Specialist/SC
TMD Aide/IVC

TMD Aide/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Coaching Aide/SC
Project Specialist/SC
TMD Aide/SC

TMD Aide/IVC
Coaching Aide/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
Child Dev. Center Aide/SC
Project Specialist/SC
TMD Aide/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Coaching Aide/SC
TMD Aide/IVC

Child Dev. Center Aide/SC
Project Specialist/IVC
Project Specialist/SC
Project Specialist/SC
Child Dev. Center Aide/SC
Adapt. Kines. Aide/IVC
Coaching Aide/IVC
TMD Aide/IVC

Clerk - Short Term/SC

15.00
20.00
16.00
15.00
20.00
20.00
12.50
20.00
10.50
15.00
10.50
15.00
15.00
10.50

8.50
10.50
16.00
16.00
15.00
10.50

8.50

9.50
15.00
12.50
12.00
16.00
20.00
15.00
13.00
12.50
10.50
15.00
10.50
12.00
20.00

9.00
14.00
12.00

9.00
15.00
20.00
14.00

01/01/13-06/30/13
10/04/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
09/06/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
09/17/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
10/29/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
10/09/12-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
01/01/13-06/30/13
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A. NEW PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS - Continued

3. The following individuals are to be employed as Short-Term (Temporary) positions for the
2012/2013 academic year, on an if-and-as-needed basis, and shall work no more than 160
days in any fiscal year. (Information Items — Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of the California
Education Code)

Name Position Hourly Rate($) Start/End Date

Fuentes, Toni Project Specialist/Dist. 20.00 10/08/12-06/30/13
Galvan, Nicolas Project Specialist/SC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Garaud, Dimitri TMD Aide/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Garcia Carmona, Javier Project Specialist/SC 9.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Garey, Jason Coaching Aide/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Geier, Brian Adapt. Kines. Aide/SC 20.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Ghaffari, Azadeh Project Specialist/SC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Gibbs, Shannon Project Specialist/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Gibson, Patrick Project Specialist/SC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Gorgen, Garrett Project Specialist/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Goss, John Coaching Aide/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Gramling, Maria Cristina Child Dev. Center Aide/SC 12.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Graves, Darryl Project Specialist/SC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Gregory, Matthew TMD Aide/IVC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Groover, Michael TMD Aide/SC 9.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Gross, Rachel TMD Aide/SC 9.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Guadarrama, Edgar Project Specialist/IVC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Guzman, Jean Project Specialist/Dist. 16.00 10/08/12-06/30/13
Hambric, Sandra Project Specialist/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Han, Jackie Project Specialist/SC 20.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Harris, Ashleigh TMD Aide/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hartwell, Keith Outreach Aide/SC 1250 10/15/12-06/30/13
Hatter, Kelly Project Specialist/SC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Haynes, Genevieve Project Specialist/SC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hazavei, Ali TMD Aide/IVC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hellriegel, John Project Specialist/SC 18.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hernandez, Joany TMD Aide/SC 10.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hillenbrand, Nicholas TMD Aide/lVC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hodosh, Seth Adapt. Kines. Aide/SC 11.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hogan, Michael Coaching Aide/SC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hood, Ryan TMD Aide/IVC 12.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hoshall, Melanie Project Specialist/IVC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hughes, Jacob Adapt. Kines. Aide/SC 9.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Hutton, Marie Project Specialist/SC 10.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Huynh, Shaunna Project Specialist (IT)/Dist. 12.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Ibarra, Marleth Project Specialist/SC 10.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Irion, Jacob Coaching Aide/SC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Jahan, Adam TMD Aide/SC 9.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Jarema, Veronica TMD Aide/SC 9.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Johnson, Scott TMD Aide/IVC 10.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Jones, David Project Specialist/IVC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Jost, Donna Spec. Proj. Coord./SC 25.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Kemp, Leif Project Specialist/SC 1250 01/01/13-06/30/13

November 19, 2012
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A. NEW PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS - Continued

3. The following individuals are to be employed as Short-Term (Temporary) positions for the
2012/2013 academic year, on an if-and-as-needed basis, and shall work no more than 160
days in any fiscal year. (Information Items — Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of the California
Education Code)

Name Position Hourly Rate($) Start/End Date

Khabovets, Kristina Project Specialist/SC 18.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Klein, Marisa Project Specialist/SC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Klink, John Coaching Aide/SC 15.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Knopick, Eric Adapt. Kines. Aide/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Knori, Salina Project Specialist/IVC 12,50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Ko, Aaron Project Specialist/SC 1150 01/01/13-06/30/13
Kochanski, Jennifer Project Specialist/IVC 18.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Kohlhas, Paul Project Specialist/IVC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
*Kokesch, Aaron TMD Aide/IVC 20.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
®KoKesch, Joshua TMD Aide/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Kristjanson, Johann Project Specialist/SC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Kulkarni, Vaishali Project Specialist/SC 16.00 10/11/12-06/30/13
Kwan, Susan Project Specialist/Dist. 18.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Kwok, Anne Project Specialist/SC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
La Londe, Mia Child Dev. Center Aide/SC 10.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Lapinski, Zachary TMD Aide/SC 9.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Leider, Tamara Child Dev. Center Aide/SC 12.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Leigh, Alexander TMD Aide/SC 20.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Lennon, Nicholas Adapted Kines. Aide/SC 12.50 10/16/12-06/30/13
Levine, Samantha Child Dev. Center Aide/SC 10.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Liedholm, Christopher TMD Aide/SC 8.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Lindahl, Glenda Project Specialist/SC 16.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
®Looney, Tia Project Specialist/SC 12,50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Lopez, Maria Child Dev. Center Aide/SC 10.00 01/01/13-06/30/13
Lucas, Richard TMD Aide/IVC 12.50 01/01/13-06/30/13
Lye, Lain Project Specialist/IVC 14.00 01/01/13-06/30/13

4. The following individuals are to be employed as Student Help (Temporary), Irvine Valley
College and Saddleback College, on an if-and-as-needed-basis, for the 2012/2013 academic

year.
Name Start/End Date
Park, Yoona 10/05/12-06/30/13

® Aaron and Joshua KoKesch are brothers, TMD Aide, Fine Arts and Media Technology, Saddleback College.
® Daughter-in-law of Michael and Carol Looney, Police Officer and ST Campus Security Officer, Saddleback College. Wife
of Cameron Looney, Custodian, Irvine Valley College.

November 19, 2012
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A. NEW PERSONNEL APPOINTMENTS - Continued

5. The following individuals are to be employed on a temporary basis, as Professional Expert
(Community and Contract Education), Irvine Valley College and Saddleback College, as
defined in the California Education Code 88003, for the 2012/2013 academic year. Each
individual’s rate of pay not to exceed the amount as defined below. (Information Items —
Pursuant to Section 70902(d) of the California Education Code)

Name Position Not to Exceed Start/End Date

Dillon, Justin Clinical Skills Spec./SC 30.00/hr  10/16/12-06/30/13
Fotoohi, Kamran Tutor/IVC 12.00/hr  10/16/12-06/30/13
Hahn, Alexander Tutor/SC 12.00/hr 10/11/12-06/30/13
"Hosseini Qanatgazi, A. Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/11/12-06/30/13
Karimi, Maryam Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/09/12-06/30/13
Mirnia, Mojan Tutor/SC 12.00/hr 10/02/12-06/30/13
"Moradi Nargesi, Mahnaz  Tutor/SC 12.00/hr 10/18/12-06/30/13
Nguyen, Lam Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/04/12-06/30/13
Santignon, Angelica Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/09/12-06/30/13
Scanlan, Kevin Tutor/SC 12.00/hr 10/16/12-06/30/13
Skaron, Deborah Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/16/12-06/30/13
Soleymani, Rouzbeh Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/25/12-06/30/13
Thompson, Christine Tutor/IVC 12.00/hr 10/24/12-06/30/13
Vigil, Matt Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/16/12-06/30/13
Yang, Seunghoon Tutor/SC 12.00/hr  10/09/12-06/30/13
Zadmehr, Sara Tutor/SC 12.00/hr 10/02/12-06/30/13

B. AUTHORIZATION TO ESTABLISH AND ANNOUNCE A CLASSIFIED POSITION

1. DISPATCHER LEAD, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 123, Office of
Campus Safety and Security, Irvine Valley College seeks authorization to establish and
announce a full-time, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year position to its staff complement,
pursuant to reorganization as defined in Title V Education Regulation, Section (c),
Recruitment 53021, effective November 20, 2012. (Exhibit B, Attachment 1)

C. OUT OF CLASS ASSIGNMENTS

1. ARIAS, MAYRA, ID #14821, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3429, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
Fiscal Office, Office of Business Services, District, had been given a temporary change in
assignment to Acting Executive Assistant, Pos. #4569, Administrator/Manager Integrated
Salary Schedule Range 10, Step 1, 30% of full-time, Office of Business Services, District,
effective September 24, 2012 through October 9, 2012. This was a temporary reassignment
for Cheryl Dobbie, who was on leave.

" Sisters: Mehrdad Hosseini Moghadam, Tutor, School of Mathematics, Computer Sciences & Engineering, Irvine Valley
College and A. Hosseini Qanatqazi, Tutor, Online Education & Learning Resources, Saddleback College.

November 19, 2012
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C. OUT OF CLASS ASSIGNMENTS - Continued

2.

BUCKLEY, ANN, ID #18123, Human Resources Specialist, Pos. #3389, a temporary
assignment, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 127, Step 1, 40 hours per
week, Office of Human Resources, District, temporary assignment has ended effective
October 31, 2012 and returned to permanent assignment as Human Resources Assistant, Pos.
#3464, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 121, Step 2, 40 hours per week, 12
months per year, Office of Human Resources, District, effective November 1, 2012.

JAMES, MICHAEL, ID #5136, Acting Assistant Director of Facilities-Capital Outlay
Projects, Pos. #4535, a temporary assignment, Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary
Schedule Range 14, Step 8, 40 hours per week, Office of Physical Plant, Saddleback College,
temporary assignment has ended effective October 15, 2012 and returned to permanent
assignment as Assistant Director of Facilities, Pos. #4532, Administrator/Manager Integrated
Salary Schedule Range 14, Step 8, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Physical
Plant, Saddleback College, effective October 16, 2012.

MC DONALD, ANITA, ID #16094, Human Resources Specialist, Pos. #4510, a temporary
assignment, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 127, Step 2, 40 hours per
week, Office of Human Resources, District, temporary assignment has ended effective
October 31, 2012 and returned to permanent assignment as Human Resources Assistant, Pos.
#3669, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 121, Step 5, 40 hours per week, 12
months per year, Office of Human Resources, District, effective November 1, 2012.

PYLE, JAMES, ID #2188, Acting Chief of Police, Pos. #4543, a temporary assignment,
Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary Schedule Range 16, Step 6, 40 hours per week,
Safety and Security, Office of Administrative Services, Saddleback College, temporary
assignment has ended effective October 26, 2012 and returned to permanent assignment as
Deputy Chief of Police, Pos. #4544, Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary Schedule
Range 12, Step 8, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Safety and Security, Office of
Administrative Services, Saddleback College, effective October 29, 2012,

SEMBIAZZA, SANDI, ID #4688, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #4204, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 127, Step 5, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
Office of Economic Development, District, had been given a temporary change in assignment
to Acting Executive Assistant, Pos. #4569, Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary
Schedule Range 10, Step 1, 50% of full-time, Office of Business Services, District, effective
September 24, 2012 through October 9, 2012. This was a temporary reassignment for Cheryl
Dobbie, who was on leave.

SESSLER, LOUIS, ID #15061, Acting Assistant Director of Facilities, Pos. #4536, a
temporary assignment, Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary Schedule Range 14, Step 6,
40 hours per week, Office of Physical Plant, Saddleback College, temporary assignment has
ended effective October 15, 2012 and returned to permanent assignment as Facilities
Maintenance and Energy Project Manager, Pos. #4574, Administrator/Manager Integrated
Salary Schedule Range 12, Step 7, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Physical
Plant, Saddleback College, effective October 16, 2012.

November 19, 2012
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D. REQUEST TO RESCIND LAYOFF FOR CLASSIFIED POSITIONS

1. HSHS PROGRAM SPECIALIST, Categorical Funded, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary
Schedule Range 123, Pos. #4160, Division of Health Sciences and Human Services,
Saddleback College, seeks to rescind layoff of this full-time, 40 hours per week, 12 months
per year categorical funded position from its staff complement, pursuant to reinstatement of
the CTE Health Career Bootcamp Grant for one year effective January 1, 2013. (Position
appointed to Catherine Ayad, ID #14726)

2. PROGRAM SPECIALIST, Categorical Funded, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule
Range 118, Pos. #4305, Division of Health Sciences and Human Services, Saddleback
College, seeks to rescind layoff of this full-time, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year
categorical funded position from its staff complement, pursuant to reinstatement of the CTE
Health Career Bootcamp Grant for one year effective January 1, 2013. (Position appointed to
Ashley Mooney, ID #17924)

E. LEAVE OF ABSENCE

1. BARNAK, GARY, ID #18591, Director of Advanced Technology Projects, Rapid Tech,
Categorical, Pos. #4633, Administrator/Manager Integrated Salary Schedule Range 17, Step
3, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Instruction, Saddleback College has been
approved for a sixty (60) day leave of absence without pay, and without benefits effective
November 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012.

2. COWLEY, SCOTT, ID #1495, Lead Groundskeeper, Pos. #3449, Classified Bargaining Unit
Salary Range 124, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Facilities Maintenance,
Office of Physical Plant, Saddleback College has been approved for an additional three
month leave of absence without pay, but with benefits, effective October 18, 2012 through
January 17, 2013.

F. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT

1. BASHOR, LINDA, ID #2543, Curriculum Publications Specialist, Pos. #3272, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 132, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Instruction, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement
December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire
date: October 24, 1989)

2. BERES, CATHERINE, ID #15859, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3444, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Division
of Fine Arts and Media Technology, Saddleback College, resignation effective February 27,
2013 and retirement February 28, 2013. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: February 11, 2008)

3. BOQUET, MICHAEL, ID #4453, Lead Electrician, Pos. #3307, Classified Bargaining Unit
Salary Range 134, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Physical Plant,
Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29,
2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 23,
1991)

November 19, 2012
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F. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT - Continued

4,

10.

11.

CARTER, DARRYL, ID #11858, Custodian, Pos. #1427, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary
Range 113, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Physical Plant,
Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29,
2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: May 01,
2002)

CHO, NANCY, ID #15624, Program Assistant, Pos. #4421, Classified Bargaining Unit
Salary Range 118, Step 6, 25 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of College
Foundation, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement
December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire
date: July 16, 2007)

CRABTREE, JIMMY, ID #2546, Campus Police Office Assistant, Pos. #3450, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 115, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Safety and Security, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and
retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: October 24, 1989)

CURIEL, TONY, ID #8870, Warehouse Worker/Delivery Driver, Pos. #3451, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 114, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Facilities,
Planning and Purchasing, Office of Business Services, District, resignation effective
December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any
compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: October 21, 1997)

DICKSON, GARILYN, ID #5977, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3526, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Public
Information and Marketing, Office of the President, Irvine Valley College, resignation
effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for
any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 01, 1997)

ESTES, MICHAEL, ID #2149, Network System Technician Ill, Pos. #4103, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 140, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Instruction, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement
December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire
date: January 19, 1981)

FELLI, ALICE K., ID #6425, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3226, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, School of
Business Sciences, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and
retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: May 14, 1996)

FONG, KAREN, ID #16011, Graphic Designer, Pos. #3383, Classified Bargaining Unit
Salary Range 130, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of College
Publications, Saddleback College, resignation effective January 31, 2013 and retirement
February 1, 2013. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire
date: January 16, 2008)

November 19, 2012
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F. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT - Continued

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

GLENN, CINDY, ID #15005, Groundskeeper, Pos. #4639, Classified Bargaining Unit
Salary Range 118, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Physical Plant,
Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29,
2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 31,
2006)

HALL, LINDA, ID #2189, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3334, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Facilities
Planning and Purchasing, Office of Business Services, District, resignation effective
December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any
compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: February 03, 1986)

HAMMEL, SUZANNE, ID #2398, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3221, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Student Development, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective March 29, 2013 and
retirement March 30, 2013. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: March 01, 2000)

HINES, SUSAN, ID #2164, Campus Police Officer Assistant, Pos. #3393, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 115, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Safety and Security, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and
retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: August 01, 1984)

JONES, EVELYN, ID #9293, Child Development Specialist, Pos. #3441, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 122, Step 6, 27.5 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office
of Student Services, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and
retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: May 01, 2000)

KENNEDY, SHARON, ID #1972, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3527, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Special Programs and Services, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28,
2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time
off. (Permanent Hire date: December 12, 2007)

KESSLER, PRISCILLA, ID #4396, Senior Laboratory Technician, Consumer Sciences, Pos.
#3735, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Range 130, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 11 months
per year, Division of Advanced Technology and Applied Science, Saddleback College,
resignation effective December 29, 2012 and retirement December 30, 2012. Payment is
authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: March 12, 1991)

LEE, FLORENCE, ID #4326, Senior Laboratory Technician, Computers, Pos. #3312,
Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Range 130, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
Computer Learning Center, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012
and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: December 16, 1991)

November 19, 2012
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F. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT - Continued

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

MARTIN, LYNN, ID #1782, Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3361, Classified Bargaining
Unit Salary Range 121, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Financial
Aid, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 20, 2012 and retirement December
21, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date:
January 22, 1985)

MATTHEWS, DUANE, ID #1523, Senior Laboratory Technician, Fine Arts, Pos. #1431,
Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Range 130, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
Division of Fine Arts and Media Technology, Saddleback College, resignation effective
December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any
compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: February 28, 1978)

MUNDER, EARLENE, ID #10180, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3466, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
College Foundation, Office of President, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective
December 30, 2012 and retirement December 31, 2012. Payment is authorized for any
compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 06, 1999)

NASSER, JAN, ID #2286, Senior Health Office Assistant, Pos. #2821, Classified Bargaining
Unit Salary Range 124, Step 6, 33 hours per week, 12 months per year, Student Health
Center, Office of Student Services, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28,
2012 and retirement December 29 , 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time
off. (Permanent Hire date: December 01, 1981)

RENNE, LINDA, ID #3164, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #4030, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of
Instruction, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement
December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire
date: January 02, 1990)

ROCHA, ANNE, ID #7031, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3245, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Division
of Counseling Services and Special Program, Saddleback College, resignation effective
December 30, 2012 and retirement December 31, 2012. Payment is authorized for any
compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: May 09, 1995)

RUBENSTEIN, ELAINE, ID #1343, Senior Graphic Designer and Publications Editor, Pos.
#3258, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Range 136, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months
per year, Public Information and Marketing, Office of the President, Irvine Valley College,
resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is
authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: January 18, 1989)

SCHLICK, KATHLEEN, ID #4719, Executive Assistant, Pos. #3345, Classified Bargaining
Unit Salary Range 133, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Instruction,
Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29,
2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date:
September 03, 1991)

November 19, 2012
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F. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT - Continued

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

SMITH, JAMIE, ID #2204, Senior Laboratory Technician, Life/Physical Sciences, Pos.
#1245, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Range 130, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months
per year, School of Physical Science and Technology, Irvine Valley College, resignation
effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for
any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: October 11, 1988)

SNOWDEN, HARRY, ID #2387, Ticket Office Operation Manager, Pos. #3399, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 122, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Division
of Fine Arts and Media Technology, Saddleback College, resignation effective December
28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated
time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 26, 1988)

SUTCLIFFE, ERICA, ID #14276, Financial Aid Specialist, Pos. #4195, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 125, Step 4, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Financial
Aid, Office of Student Services, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective October 30,
2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: May 26,
2009)

TANG, PAUL, ID #9387, Alternate Media Specialist, Pos. #4077, Classified Bargaining Unit
Salary Range 140, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Innovative Technology
Center, Technology Services, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective November 30,
2012 and retirement December 1, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: February 04, 2002)

TAYLOR, ROLLAND, ID #7662, Plumber, Pos. #3499, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary
Range 128, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Office of Physical Plant, Irvine
Valley College, resignation effective May 1, 2013 and retirement May 2, 2013. Payment is
authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 23, 1996)

THOMAS, WESLEY, ID #5868, Senior Child Development Specialist, Pos. #3500,
Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Range 128, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
Child Development Center, Office of Student Services, Saddleback College, resignation
effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for
any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: May 02, 1994)

U’REN, LAURA, ID #1651, Career Placement Officer, Pos. #3504, Classified Bargaining
Unit Salary Rangel29, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, School of
Guidance/Counseling, Irvine Valley College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and
retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off.
(Permanent Hire date: August 25, 1980)

WEINTRAUB, EDNA, ID #14249, Senior Administrative Assistant, Pos. #3277, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 127, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year, Division
of Liberal Arts, Saddleback College, resignation effective December 28, 2012 and retirement
December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire
date: April 25, 2005)

November 19, 2012
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F. RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/CONCLUSION OF EMPLOYMENT - Continued

36. WOOD, LINDA, ID #2360, Community Education Program Specialist, Pos. #3533,
Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Rangel27, Step 6, 40 hours per week, 12 months per year,
Office of Community Education and Contract Services, Saddleback College, resignation
effective December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for
any compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: January 21, 1988)

37. WORTHINGTON, AMY, ID #4265, Instructional Assistant, Pos. #4323, Classified
Bargaining Unit Salary Range 122, Step 6, 20 hours per week, 12 months per year, Division
of Online Education and Learning Resources, Saddleback College, resignation effective
December 28, 2012 and retirement December 29, 2012. Payment is authorized for any
compensated time off. (Permanent Hire date: July 23, 1991)

G. VOLUNTEERS

1. The following individuals are to be approved as Volunteers for the 2012/2013 academic
years.

Business Sciences, Irvine Valley College
Clause, Jim Estrada, Sandra Ward, Jan

Veterans Office, Office of College Administrative Services, Saddleback College
Aslanian, John

Fine Arts and Media Technology, Saddleback College
Berkson, Brianna Berkson, Nancy Kelser, Micah
Wildfong, Derrick

Health, Kinesiology, and Athletics, Irvine Valley College
Bartz, Paul Directo, Brandon

Humanities & Languages, Irvine Valley College
Coulter, Chikako Kojima, Saori Sato, Shiho
Shalloway, Nancy

Kinesiology and Athletics, Saddleback College
Patton, Eric Williams, Adam

School of Library Services, Irvine Valley College

Xie, Huayang

Online Education and Learning Resources, Saddleback College

Bain, Olivia Haghi, Mehrshad Mahmood, Kasim
McConanghy, Richard Patton, Eric Proctor, Anny

Unger, Jason

School of Physical Sciences, Irvine Valley College
Gonzalez, Carlos

Social and Behavioral Sciences, Saddleback College
Mamich, Nick
November 19, 2012
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South Orange County Community College District
DISPATCHER LEAD - ID #, Classified Bargaining Unit Salary Schedule Range 123

Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by
employees in the class. Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job.

SUMMARY DESCRIPTION

Under direction from the Chief of Police or designee, leads, plans, and coordinates operations for police
department’s radio communications system, computer-aided dispatch and records management system,
fire and intrusion alarm systems, and records management; performs duties of a Dispatcher; and provides
administrative assistance as needed within the department.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS

This is the lead level class in the Dispatcher series. Positions at this level are distinguished from other
classes within the series by the level of responsibility assumed and the complexity of duties assigned. The
Dispatcher Lead functions as a dispatcher and is assigned additional responsibility for the
Communications Bureau, specialized functions of the police department that include the Police
Communications Center, computerized records management system, non-computerized law enforcement
records, emergency communications, and fire and intrusion alarm systems. Scope of responsibilities may
include District-wide dispatch and related services. The incumbent provides lead direction and oversees
the day to day activities of the Police Communications Center and alarm monitoring services correlating
all communication and emergency activities with police officers, parking and related support staff.

REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES

The following duties are typical for this classification. Incumbents may not perform all of the listed duties
and/or may be required to perform additional or different duties from those set forth below to address
business needs and changing business practices.

1. Lead, plan, coordinate, staff, control and organize assigned functions to accomplish department goals
and objectives; perform duties of a Dispatcher.

2. Develop and establish operating procedures and instructions; assign and transmit them to Bureau
staff.

3. Ensure dispatchers are fully trained and able to perform assigned functions; provide comprehensive
training to new dispatchers; coordinate, plan and provide in-service training on a regular basis to
ensure Bureau staff maintains skills necessary to effectively perform assigned duties.

4. Coordinate and oversee emergency communications operation which include Dispatchers; and
determine priority of needs.

5. Maintain liaison with local, State, and federal police communications networks for immediate
retrieval of criminal information.

6. Coordinate, review, and recommend the budget covering assigned communication activities.

7. Review reports, correspondence, information or other documents submitted by personnel for
accuracy, completeness, and appropriateness of actions taken and coordinate the entry of reports into
an effective computerized record-keeping system.

8. Recommend changes in operating policies and procedures; coordinate the scheduling and assignment
of personnel.

9. Keep College in compliance with local, State, and federal requirements pertaining to computerized
criminal records, radio communication, and fire and intrusion alarm systems; make recommendations
and implement changes to ensure compliance.

10. Attend a variety of meetings and conferences to correlate police communications activity operation
with all College personnel.
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REPRESENTATIVE DUTIES

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Maintain all records of police reports and activities in a computerized records management system
and prepare required reports.

Maintain records of College alarm system including reports of all alarm activity; coordinate alarm
activities with college schedules and prepare related reports.

Administer police department access to computerized criminal records systems through local, State,
and federal systems, providing training to all affected District personnel.

Act as the College's Automated Terminal Coordinator and assure the confidentiality of criminal
records accessed through the California Law Enforcement Telecommunications System.

Perform related duties as required.

QUALIFICATIONS

The following generally describes the knowledge and ability required to enter the job and/or be learned
within a short period of time in order to successfully perform the assigned duties.

Knowledge of:
Principles of police science, administration and organization as they relate to dispatching police

services.

Modern Community College police methods and procedures.

Local, State and federal communications laws.

Local, State and federal records laws.

Principles and practices of personnel management, lead supervision, and training.

Budget analysis and justification.

College organization, operations, rules, regulations, policies, procedures and objectives.

Oral and written communication systems, equipment and procedures.

Law enforcement agencies in Orange County.

Modern office procedures, methods and equipment including computers and applicable software
applications.

Fire and intrusion alarm monitoring systems and operations.

Emergency communications radio systems in correlation with other emergency agencies and federal
requirements.

Administration and operation of a 24-hour Police Communications Dispatch Center.

Computer networks that provide criminal information to the College police department such as
CLETS and NCIC.

Administration of department computer record-keeping and reporting requirements as prescribed by
law.

Report preparation and record-keeping techniques.

English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Ability to:

Perform the duties of a Dispatcher.

Lead, organize, and review the work of staff.

Plan, coordinate, and direct assigned functions effectively.

Exercise effective leadership, independent judgment and initiative.

Analyze emergency and non-emergency situations accurately and respond quickly and effectively.
Interpret and apply laws and department rules and regulations.

Understand and apply principles of effective community college police administration.

Analyze, develop and recommend changes in methods, systems policy and procedures related to
complex and sensitive issues and programs.
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QUALIFICATIONS

Ability to:

Prepare clear, concise and comprehensive written, verbal and statistical reports.

Recognize and resolve problems of a sensitive, political, organizational or administrative nature.
Work confidentially with discretion.

Establish and meet schedules and time lines.

Select, train, and oversee assigned personnel.

Work in a liaison capacity with various governmental agencies and the community.

Operate equipment used in a police records and communication center including supporting software
applications.

Adapt to changing technologies and learn functionality of new equipment and systems.

Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing.

Provide clear and concise verbal directions quickly and accurately.

Work with and exhibit sensitivity to and understanding of the varied racial, ethnic, cultural, sexual
orientation, academic, socio-economic, and disabled populations of community college students.
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work.

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE GUIDELINES - Any combination of education and experience that
would likely provide the required knowledge and abilities is qualifying. A typical way to obtain the
knowledge and abilities would be:

Education/Training:
Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth grade. College level course work in criminal justice,
records management, or other related program area is desirable.

Experience:
Five years experience as a P.O.S.T. certified Dispatcher.

LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE:

e A valid California driver’s license and proof of insurability may be required to drive a District or
personal vehicle to attend meetings or pick up/deliver documents or other materials.

e Possession of a P.O.S.T. Dispatcher certificate.

e Completion of P.O.S.T. Communications Training Officer and Records courses within one year.

TESTING AND BACKGROUND CHECK:

e Must submit to a thorough background investigation pursuant to standards established by the
Commission for P.O.S.T.

e Must undergo a medical examination as required by Commission for P.O.S.T.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT

The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions.
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PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORKING ENVIRONMENT

Environment:

Work is performed primarily in a campus police office setting. Duties are typically performed at a desk or
computer terminal; subject to noise from office equipment operation; frequent interruptions and contact in
person and on the telephone with students, staff, and others. At least minimal environmental controls are
in place to assure health and comfort.

Physical:
Primary functions require sufficient physical ability and mobility to work in an office setting; to stand or

sit for prolonged periods of time; to occasionally stoop, bend, kneel, crouch, reach, and twist; to lift,
carry, push, and/or pull light to moderate amounts of weight; to operate office equipment requiring
repetitive hand movement and fine coordination including use of a computer keyboard; to verbally
communicate to exchange information; and may occasionally travel to other offices or locations to attend
meetings or to pick up or deliver materials.

Vision:
See in the normal visual range with or without correction.

Hearing:
Hear in the normal audio range with or without correction.

Created by Forsberg Consulting Services, September 2012



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.1
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: List of Board Requested Reports

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

At a prior board meeting, members of the Board of Trustees asked for a listing of
reports requested by the board every six months. To ensure that follow up and
tracking takes place regarding the board requested reports, this item includes a table
providing status and includes date report is requested by the board, report topic,
name of trustee requesting report, requested due date, person responsible for
preparing the report and the date the report is scheduled to be submitted to the
board for their review. This report is intended to be a standing item on every board
agenda, when appropriate, with old information dropped off and new requests
added.

STATUS

The Board report listing (EXHIBIT A) is coordinated and prepared by the Office of
the Chancellor and Trustee Services.

This report is intended to provide status of board requested reports of the South
Orange County Community College District Board of Trustees. In the event
additional information would be useful or desired by the board, supplemental
information will be provided.

Item Submitted By: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor



Date
Report
Requested
2/27/12

3/19/12

9/24/12

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
LISTING OF BOARD REPORTS REQUESTED

Report Topic

Veterans’ Services at IVC and SC

Purchasing Possibility of an Olympic
Trials Pool for IVC

Implementation of Board of Governors
New Registration Priority Policies

Board Member
Requesting
Report

Nancy Padberg

T.J. Prendergast

Dave Lang

Report Due
Date

April 30, 2012

May 21, 2012

October 29, 2012

Report Submitted By:

Gary L. Poertner

Dr. Debra Fitzsimons

Dr. Tod Burnett
Dr. Glenn Roguemore

Date Submitted to
the Board of
Trustees

April 30, 2012

May 21, 2012

October 29, 2012
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.2
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: Saddleback College and Irvine Valley College: Speakers

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

Outside speakers may be invited by administrators, faculty members, or recognized
student groups to speak at events open to the public.

STATUS

Administrative Regulation 6140 requires that the Board of Trustees be notified, at
each board meeting, of speakers who have been invited to speak and/or who have
spoken at the colleges since the last board meeting. Exhibit A lists invited speakers
and other pertinent information.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Tod A. Burnett and Dr. Glenn R. Roquemore, Presidents



SPEAKERS APPROVED BY CHANCELLOR/COLLEGE PRESIDENT

SADDLEBACK COLLEGE

Exhibit A

Presentation Faculty

Date/Time Location Member Course Title/Activity Speaker Topic
10/23/12 BGS 119 Diane Intro to Fashion — FASH 101 | Jacquelyn Morell Merchandising & Design
1.00pm McGroarty
10/30/12 SSC 212 Audra Young Democrats Club Sukhee Kang Campaign for 45"
12:00pm DiPadova Congressional District
10/30/12 TAS 225 Morgan Green Living — ENV 202 Rachel Hulan Green Design
2:00pm Barrows
10/31/12 SSC 212 Audra California Nursing Students | Cori Black & Pediatric Neurosciences
11:30am DiPadova Association Kelly Thompson
11/6/12 BGS 119 Diane Intro to Fashion — FASH 101 | Larissa Bulls Buying & Merchandising
12:00pm McGroarty Sole Technology
11/13/12 BGS 254 Lisa Elston Aims — FASH 204 Scott Machock Apparel Manufacturing
6:00pm
11/14/12 TAS 116 Ken Lee Professional Practice — Angelia Woodside | Landscape Designer as
6:00pm HORT 201 Landscape Contractor
11/20/12 TAS 225 Morgan Green Living — ENV 202 Neal Shapiro Rainwater Harvesting
2:00pm Barrows

IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE

Presentation
Date/Time Location Faculty Course Title/Activity Speaker Topic
Member
11/6/12 BSTIC 212 Carolina Fast-Track Administrative Jim Clouse, Getting Hired in Today's
11:00am Kussoy Assistant Certificate Manpower Economy — Tips for Job
Program Searches, Resume
Development, Interviews
11/7/12 BSTIC 119 Cheryl Delson | Student Learning Outcomes | Lark Zunich Student Learning
4:00pm (SLO) Workshop, faculty flex Outcomes
activity

11/14/12 B304 Richard Resource Management for Laurence Jones Campus Recycling
2:00pm Anthony Communities — ENV 190 Programs
11/17/12 BSTIC 116 Irene Reynolds | Paralegal Studies Program & | Pam Cotton Litigation Depositions and
10:15am Ethics — LGL 201 the Paralegal’'s Role
2/01/13 PAC, Main Dr. Roopa Distinguished Academic Dr. Christian Glazer | NASA Dryden: “Is that it"?”
7:00pm Stage Mathur, Chair | Lecture Series (DALS)




Exhibit A

5/09/13
7:00pm

PAC, Main
Stage

Dr. Roopa
Mathur, Chair

Distinguished Academic
Lecture Series (DALS)

Dr. Michael
Shermer

The Believing Brain: From
Ghosts and Gods to
Politics and Conspiracies —
How We Construct Beliefs
and Reinforce Them as
Truths




SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.3
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Basic Aid Report

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

The Board of Trustees has requested regular information reports about projected
basic aid receipts and approved projects.

STATUS

EXHIBIT A shows FY 1999-2000 actual Basic Aid receipts since the District became
a Basic Aid District, as well as the projects that the Board of Trustees has approved
for funding with Basic Aid Funds.

As of October 31, 2012, Total Basic Aid Estimated Receipts of $472.7M less Total
Approved Projects in the amount of $455.1M leaves a $17.6M balance for
uncommitted Basic Aid Funds which includes approximately $16M to be committed
to OPEB retiree medical liability.

It should be noted that some of the approved projects are for state funded project
match. Although approved, these funds will not be needed until the projects are
approved by the State for funding.

There were no changes for the Basic Aid allocation from the October, 2012 report.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



November 19, 2012

South Orange County Community College District
Expenditure History for Approved Basic Aid Projects

Balance
Approved 1999/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Remaining

Project Description Amount Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual for 2012/13
CLOSED PROJECTS
CLOSED PROJECTS TOTAL 114,482,353 | 112,114,469 1,747,393 619,815 675 - -
CAPITAL PROJECTS
Campus Appearance Improvement IVC & SC (2009) 1,000,000 378,837 215,312 144,365 738 260,748
ATEP Building Demolition (2007) 7,000,000 61,693 12,192 1,439,404 781,124 4,705,587
ATEP Development (2008) 3,750,000 565,425 1,041,250 750,807 735,035 555,174 102,309
ATEP First Building Phase 3A (2011) 12,500,000 12,500,000
ATEP Operating Budget* (2006) 11,601,028 3,935,289 2,273,645 2,390,930 1,798,762 507,119 695,283
ATEP Renovation (2002) 7,964,191 7,192,625 103,660 450,213 153,872 29,990 33,831
ATEP Site Development (2012) 340,436 31,948 308,488
ATEP Site Development (2013) 2,100,000 2,100,000
ATEP Site Development Negotiations (2008) 4,265,883 899,132 1,080,568 592,509 618,846 322,921 751,907
ATEP Staffing, Equipment, Program Development (2007) 891,611 20,689 171,285 346,066 291,119 62,452
IVC A-400 Bldg Remodel (2011) 11,463,000 28,153 11,434,847
IVC Business & Technology Innovation Center (2002) 10,182,000 6,571,307 2,292,938 23,716 - (346) 1,294,385
IVC Design and Install Entrance from Barranca (2003) 2,850,000 9,950 - 41,576 45,644 143,803 2,609,026
IVC Fine Arts Building (2008) 8,897,115 61,163 115 - - 8,835,837
IVC Landscaping PAC & BSTIC (2009) 1,796,000 - 105,493 146,485 1,286,761 257,261
IVC Life Sciences Project (2004) 17,410,000 81,776 793,360 448,231 (1,169,892)| 17,256,525
IVC New Parking Lot (2013) 2,920,000 2,920,000
IVC Peforming Arts Center Waterproofing (2013) 470,000 470,000
IVC Repair Exteriors A100, A200, A300, A400, B100 (2010) 400,000 - 215,836 34,022 150,142
IVC Replace Main Water Valves (2010) 275,000 6,035 76,957 97,311 94,697
IVC Replace Natural Gas Piping A&B Quads (2010) 230,000 3,088 41,368 185,544
IVC Science Lab Addition & Remodel (2006) 6,980,000 362,837 2,373,462 2,024,161 412,531 - 1,807,009
IVC SSC HVAC System (2010) 800,000 1,346 19,668 732 778,254
IVC Upgrade Exterior & Entries to B300 (2013) 680,000 680,000
IVC Utility Service Project (2006) 416,000 346,223 - - - 69,777
SC Bridge Replacement (2010) 1,700,000 2,693 97,266 661,721 938,320
SC Building Repairs - Library Remodel (2003) 7,141,000 77,892 - 511,511 745,863 1,817,215 3,988,518
SC Building Repairs - LRC Comm Arts Renovation (2013) 2,622,000 - 2,622,000
SC Building Repairs - ATAS Building (2003) 14,733,313 152,376 1,048 - 13,800 94,380 14,471,709
SC Building Repairs - ATAS Swing Space Renov (2013) 5,806,687 5,806,687
SC Demolition and Upper Quad Remodel (2008) 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
SC Demolition of Lower Campus Buildings (2002) 1,719,000 1,718,545 - - 455
SC Fine Arts HVAC Renovation (2013) 1,000,000 1,000,000
SC Golf Driving Range Net Replacement (2005) 300,000 91,800 5,000 5,000 4,950 19,300 173,950
SC Health Sciences/DS Waterproofing (2013) 1,000,000 1,000,000
SC Loop Road (2008) 3,442,000 - 5,740 212,701 - 3,223,559
SC M/S/E Bldg, Solil, & Slab Repairs (2003) 128,710 128,595 115 - -
SC M/S/E Plaza Repairs (2008) 69,288 69,288 - -
SC M/S/E Renovation (2009) 39,000 39,000 - -
SC McKinney Theater Restroom remodel (2007) 2,542,000 267,956 2,023,613 72,862 121 8,244 169,204
SC New Gateway Building (2013) (Match) 1,545,115 1,545,115
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South Orange County Community College District
Expenditure History for Approved Basic Aid Projects
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Balance
Approved 1999/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Remaining
Project Description Amount Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual for 2012/13
SC Pool Deck Replacement (2010) 1,500,000 23 1,276,844 189,784 33,349
SC Roof Replace Tech & Applied Science, Village Bldg 3-8 (2010) 1,500,000 166,833 851,935 337,751 143,481
SC Sciences Building (M/S/E annex) (2003) 58,835,346 29,595 - - 258,563 1,840,003 56,707,184
SC Storm Drain Repairs (2013) 1,500,000 1,500,000
SC Temporary Classroom Facilities (2005) 7,269,285 7,176,367 450 300 - 92,168
SC Village Expansion (2009) 3,942,000 463,110 2,942,595 474,450 (33,574) 95,418
SC Village Remodel (2007) 4,130,000 244,229 2,014,945 1,311,975 124,943 13,762 420,147
SC Water Damages/Storm Drainage Issues (2013) 750,000 750,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS TOTAL 241,397,008 29,831,305 14,325,202 12,601,556 10,704,505 7,889,263 | 166,045,177
SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE
College Scheduled Maintenance Projects (2005) 1,000,000 965,319 7,765 2,630 - 24,285 0
College Scheduled Maintenance Projects (2006) 4,000,000 909,270 1,420,296 1,182,288 250,144 40,735 197,267
IVC Library Exterior (2013) 275,000 275,000
IVC Lighting & Walkways (2013) 475,000 475,000
IVC Sports Facilities (2012) 342,600 342,600
SC Central Plant (2013) 750,000 750,000
SC Energy Management System (2012) 657,400 323,678 333,722
SC PE Complex (2013) 500,000 500,000
SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE PROJECTS TOTAL 8,000,000 1,874,589 1,428,061 1,184,918 250,144 388,698 2,873,590
IT PROJECTS
Campus Desktop Refresh (2013) 750,000 750,000
SOCCCD Awards Management System (2013) 500,000 500,000
SOCCCD Blackboard Plug-ins (2013) 150,000 150,000
SOCCCD Degree Audit/MAP Upgrade (2013) 750,000 750,000
SOCCCD Document Management Solution (2011) 659,202 622,823 36,379
SOCCCD End-of-Life Core Network/Tech Refresh (2013) 2,500,000 2,500,000
SOCCCD Enterprise Content Mgmt Expansion (2013) 150,000 150,000
SOCCCD HR/Bus Svcs Integrated Software (2013) 3,000,000 16,131 2,983,869
HRIS Data Migration 20,000 20,000
IT Governance - TeamDymanixHE Software 50,000 50,000
TracDat Integration with SharePoint 35,000 35,000
DW Infrastructure Inventory System 75,000 75,000
MySite Help System 20,000 20,000
Unified Communications System 50,000 50,000
IT Contingency 277,855 277,855
SOCCCD IT Basic Aid Projects (2013) 527,855 - 527,855
SOCCCD IT Projects SC/IVC/ATEP Instruct & Student Svc (2010) 8,744,770 2,906,089 2,665,868 1,745,944 1,426,869
SOCCCD Matriculation SEP System (2013) 100,000 100,000
SOCCCD Predictive Analytics (2013) 250,000 250,000
SOCCCD Student Information System Enhancement (2013) 1,500,000 1,500,000
SOCCCD Student Information System Upgrade-Phase I/Phase Il (2006) 14,102,260 8,819,991 4,111,633 1,099,661 4,250 22,466 44,259
SOCCCD Technology Needs 2007/08 (2008) 8,036,477 1,668,384 3,815,348 1,197,263 923,579 392,177 39,726
IT PROJECTS TOTAL 41,720,564 10,488,375 7,926,981 5,203,013 3,593,697 2,799,541 11,708,957
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Expenditure History for Approved Basic Aid Projects

November 19, 2012

Balance
Approved 1999/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Remaining
Project Description Amount Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual for 2012/13
OTHER ALLOCATIONS |
College (SC) Instructional Equipment Needs (2005) 1,392,000 858,276 473,955 55,238 - 1,847 2,685
SOCCCD Consultant District Educational & Facilities Master Plan (2005) 735,010 370,010 - - 321,010 21,400 22,590
SOCCCD Design/Build Specialty Consultant (2013) 175,000 13,300 161,700
SOCCCD DSA Project Close Out (2013) 160,000 160,000
SOCCCD Facilities System (2013) 704,000 704,000
SOCCCD FPP, IPP, 5 Year Plans (2013) 100,000 100,000
SOCCCD Lease/Leaseback Consultant (2013) 175,000 175,000
SOCCCD Legislative Advocacy Services - Basic Aid (2004 - present) 435,000 102,000 34,354 13,140 117,900 167,606
SOCCCD Legal Counsel Facility Related Issues (2013) 300,000 300,000
SOCCCD Legal Defense for Invocation Complaint (2010) 1,208,817 1,208,817 -
SOCCCD Trustee Election/General Election Expense (2004 - present) 2,198,988 453,867 527,830 - 417,291 - 800,000
SOCCCD Additional 1% Contingency (2009) 1,278,101 - - 1,278,101 - -
SOCCCD Retiree Benefits (2001 - present) 40,617,938 24,417,938 500,000 2,500,000 8,000,000 2,600,000 2,600,000
OTHER ALLOCATIONS TOTAL 49,479,854 26,202,091 1,536,139 2,568,378 10,016,402 3,963,264 5,193,580
BASIC AID PROJECT TOTALS 455,079,779 | 180,510,829 26,963,776 22,177,681 24,565,424 15,040,766 | 185,821,304
Balance
1999/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 Remaining for
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 2012/13
Commitments 257,813,653 54,256,170 37,446,916 41,176,493 (9,951,045)| 74,337,592
Cumulative Commitments 257,813,653 | 312,069,823 | 349,516,739 | 390,693,233 380,742,187 | 455,079,779
Receipts 265,016,219 51,179,365 39,022,021 38,737,963 39,301,044 39,462,256
Cumulative Receipts 265,016,219 | 316,195,584 | 355,217,605 | 393,955,568 433,256,612 | 472,718,868
Cumulative Expenses 180,510,829 | 207,474,605 | 229,652,286 | 254,217,709 269,258,475 | 455,079,779
Uncommitted Basic Aid Funds 84,505,390 | 108,720,979 | 125,565,319 | 139,737,859 163,998,137 17,639,089

Change from October 2012 Report:

Approved
Amount

2012/13 and
Forward

Total Change
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SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.4
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Facilities Plan Status Report

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

On August 30, 2004, the Board of Trustees received a list of projects under
consideration for local funding and a report on the status of each project. The Board
requested to be kept informed about these and other facilities projects.

STATUS

EXHIBIT A provides an up-to-date report on the status of current construction
projects.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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FACILITIES PLAN STATUS REPORT
November 19, 2012
SADDLEBACK COLLEGE
1. JAMES B. UTT LIBRARY REMODEL
Original Revision Total
Project Budget: $21,124,000 $1,690,000  $22,814,000
State Match: $16,139,000 (5466,000)  $15,673,000
Basic Aid Allocation: $4,985,000 $2,156,000 $7,141,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 10/24/04 and 6/22/09.The state
approved 2011-2012 planning budget totaled $21,124,000. A lower-than-estimated bid
was received and the state reduced their match to $15,673,000. The Board reallocated a
portion of the state’s short fall using basic aid funding for a funded total of $22,814,000.
The state has reimbursed their match equal to $13,673,000 and this amount was returned
to the basic aid account. Equipment funding of $2,000,000 is still pending receipt from
the state.

Contractor delays result in extended costs for inspections, labor compliance, and project
management cost. Staff will seek reimbursement during settlement discussions with the
contractor.

Status: The contractor is seventeen months behind schedule. On March 5th, the Division
of Labor Standards Enforcement (DLSE) approved the district’s request for forfeiture by
the contractor of $529,459.14 associated with payroll irregularities. Parties agreed upon a
postponement and are waiting the scheduling of the DLSE hearing. Other payment
withholdings address stop notices filed by subcontractors and material suppliers. On
April 4th, the contractor preserved their rights to file a claim, formally rejected by the
Board in April, followed immediately by a public records request for all project
documents. Staff continues working with district legal counsel to address all related
matters.

In Progress: District counsel, staff and labor compliance consultant met with the
contractor, their counsel and the DSLE counsel for a settlement conference on October
26, 2012. A roadmap for potential settlement was outlined. The matter was continued by
mutual agreement and future settlement meetings have been scheduled. Project punch
list, building systems commissioning with M&O, close out documents and warranties
submittals, DSA close out.

Recently Completed: I.T. equipment installation and move-in is completed.

Focus: Complete final punch list. Legal issues and close out of outstanding change
orders.
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Project Start: October 2004

Scheduled Finish: January 2012

Projected Finish: September 2012

DSA Close Out: Pending

2. SCIENCES BUILDING

Project Budget:

State Match:

Basic Aid Allocation:
Unassigned:

Original Revision

Total

$52,234,000 $6,816,000  $59,050,000

$36,564,000  ($36,564,000)

$3,867,000 $54,968,000  $58,835,000

$11,803,000  ($11,588,000)

$215,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 8/26/08, 10/27/08, 4/27/09,
6/22/09, 5/24/10, 2/28/2011 and 8/24/2012. On February 28, 2011, the Board reassigned
$14,789,346 from other Saddleback College projects and applied $29,000,000 from basic
aid dollars to partially fund the Sciences building after three years running with no state
funding. On August 27, 2012, the Board approved $11,179,000 to fund the remainder of
the project budget. In August, the state chancellor’s office has escalated the project
budget to $59,050,000 resulting in the unassigned amount of $215,000.

Status: The project was submitted to Division of the State Architect (DSA) on June 5,
2012, with central plant submittal on August 1, 2012 and also currently under review.

In Progress: Review of the DSA construction documents is underway by the college and
district. Weekly follow up meetings will continue with the contractor and user group to

address cost reduction measures.

Recently Completed: Proposals were received on September 6, 2012. Preconstruction
Services Agreement Board approved and kick off meeting to begin cost reduction
meetings was held on Friday November 2, 2012.

Focus: Staff is continuing efforts on constructability reviews and cost reduction

measures.

Project Start: March 2011

Scheduled Finish: October 2014

Projected Finish: October 2014

DSA Close Out: Pending

3. LOOP ROAD

Project Budget:

State Match:

Basic Aid Allocation:
Unassigned:

Original Revision
$11,697,00 (52,699,417)

$3,442,000
$8,255,000 ($2,699,417)

Total
$8,997,583

$3,442,000
$5,555,583
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Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 3/24/08. During the discovery
phase and further defined through the Education and Facilities Master Plan (EFMP)
process, the architect determined the budget estimate to be $8,997,583. Environmental
impacts could increase the project estimate.

Status: Phase I planning is complete. Phase II work placed on hold. Environmental
impacts are expected to be influential in budget and schedule planning.

In Progress: Priority order for secondary effects is under consideration in relationship to
scheduled maintenance concerns.

Recently Completed: Focus on the Loop Road project is directed toward secondary
effects. The College anticipates removal or a lowered priority of the primary Loop Road
construction scope during the Education and Facilities Master Planning process
scheduled for 2015.

Focus: District and College staff and administration identified the secondary effects for
the Loop Road project, specific to parking lot/storm drainage improvements, as a high
priority. The current budget assignment will combine with scheduled maintenance budget
assignment for storm drainage to achieve economy of scale.

Project Start: Phase I-Feb 2010, Phase II- | Scheduled Finish: On Hold
Feb 2011

Projected Finish: On Hold DSA Close Out: On Hold

4. TAS RENOVATION PROJECT

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $8,755,055 $5,977,945  $14,733,000

State Match: - - -

Basic Aid Allocation: $1,956,000 $12,777,000  $14,733,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 2/28/11 and 8/27/2012. The
original basic aid assignment of $1,956,000 met design costs. The scope was revised to
include both the North and South wing of the building and the architect determined the
new budget estimate to be $14,733,000. On August 27, 2012, the Board approved
$12,777,000 to fully fund the project budget.

Status: The design is in the Design Development phase is underway. (Note: Design
phases: Programming, Schematic, Design Development, Construction Documents, DSA
Submittal)

In Progress: The architect and District are working with the user groups to further define
user needs in support of educational delivery.
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Recently Completed: A4 supplemental geotechnical investigation at North Wing was
conducted this month with report to follow. Surveying and utilities location mapping is
completed.

Focus: Design Development with end user participation.

Project Start: September 2011 Scheduled Finish: March 2015

Projected Finish: March 2015 DSA Close Out: Pending

5. TAS SWING SPACE PROJECT

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $5,807,000 $5,807,000

State Match: - - -

Basic Aid Allocation: $5,807,000 $5,807,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 8/27/2012. On August 27,
2012, the Board approved $5,807,000 to fund the original project budget.

Status: Design Development is underway.
In Progress: Two design meetings were held this month with end users. Village swing
space Design Development began for all remaining TAS Building programs. One meeting

was held with the user group to further refine layouts in Village swing space buildings.

Recently Completed: Programming and Schematic Design phases are complete.

Focus: Swing Space Design Development efforts.

Project Start: May 2012 Scheduled Finish: December 2014
Projected Finish: December 2014 DSA Close Out: Pending
IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE

1. PERFORMING ARTS CENTER AND PARKING LOT 5 EXTENSION

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $16,304,000 $17,309,000  $33,613,000

State Match: $14,472,000 - $14,472,000

Basic Aid Allocation: $1,832,000 $17,309,000 $19,141,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 4/30/2001, 10/28/2002,
1/20/2004, 2/23/2004, 12/13/2004, and 1/31/2006. Budget also reflects reporting as
shown on State Chancellor’s Office FUSION report fiscal year 03-04 and 07-08.
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Status: Construction complete and occupied. DSA Close Out underway. The final Notice
of Completion was filed on September 24, 2007.

In Progress: There were 69 change orders requiring DSA approval. Approximately 12
remain in “ Pending” status and must be closed to arrive at DSA close out.

Recently Completed:

Focus: Change order close-out.

Project Start: October 2003 Scheduled Finish:

Finish: Complete: July 2007 DSA Close Out: Underway

2. B-200 SCIENCE LAB ANNEX AND B-239 REMODEL

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $4,120,000 $2,860,000 $6,980,000

State Match: - - -

Basic Aid Allocation: $4,120,000 $2,860,000 $6,980,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board actions on 6/26/06 and 9/22/08.

Status: Construction complete and occupied. DSA close out underway.

In Progress: District staff and the architect continue coordination toward this DSA close
out effort. One change order remains to be resubmitted for DSA review.

Recently Completed: The Notice of Completion was filed on July 8, 2010. 7wo of three
remaining change orders have been approved.

Focus: DSA Close Out

Project Start: July 2006 Scheduled Finish: December 2009

Finish: May 2010 DSA Close Out: Underway

3. LIFE SCIENCES PROJECT

Original Revisions Total

Project Budget: $24,861,000 ($4,371,000)  $20,490,000

State Match: $17,393,000 ($3,825,000)  $13,568,000

Basic Aid Allocation: $1,113,000 $16,297,000 $17,410,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 6/22/2004, 5/23/2005,
3/24/2008, 4/27/2009, and 5/24/2010. The original budget totaled $24,861,000. The
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budget was reduced to $20,490,000 when a lower-than-estimated bid was received and
the state reduced their match to $13,568,000. The Board reallocated a portion of the
state’s short fall using basic aid funding for a funded total of $17,410,000. Since the last
basic aid allocation, the state has reimbursed the district $6,797,891 resulting in no need
for additional basic aid funding. Reallocation of overage to project budget (currently
$10,488,000 and subject to change as additional reimbursements are received) back to
basic aid funds will be considered in future allocation discussions. Approximately half of
the state’s contribution for construction funding and all equipment funding is pending.

Status: Work is once again underway with the mechanical and plumbing contractor
initiating subcontractor return.

In Progress: Contractor is establishing relationships with existing subcontractors when
possible and replacing others. Staff and end users are developing furniture, fixture and
equipment lists.

Recently Completed: Contractor’s mobilization efforts include addressing safety issues,
re-organizing lay down area and establishing four week look ahead schedule.

Focus: Providing back up information on subcontractor claims against previous
contractor. Determining which outstanding issues are to be negotiated between district
and new contractor. Ildentifying work in-place that requires perfecting.

Project Start: December 2008 Scheduled Finish: July 2012

Projected Finish: April 2013 DSA Close Out: Pending

4. FINE ARTS BUILDING

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $31,451,000 $3,541,000  $34,992,000
Anticipated State Match: $28,305,000 (83,715,000)  $24,590,000
Basic Aid Allocation: $3,200,000 $5,697,115 $8,897,115
Unallocated: ($54,000) 1,558,885 $1,504,885

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects reporting as shown on State Chancellor’s Office
FUSION report planning year 2014-15. Budget reflects Board agenda action on
3/24/2008 and 4/27/2009. On August 27, 2012, the Board approved an additional
$1,545,115 to fund the revised project budget.

Status: The District submitted a Final Project Proposal to the State Chancellor’s Office on
June 30, 2008. Funding was pushed back first to December, 2009, and again to
September, 2010. The District re-submitted once more with a shift of funding to the
2013-2014 fiscal year. Though final budget will be resolved after the State Chancellor’s
Office has completed the funding process.
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In Progress: The State Chancellor’s Office indicates a preference to roll the 2013-14
projects to 2014-15 which includes this project.

Recently Completed: On Hold

Focus: Awaiting State Chancellor’s Office funding approval.

Project Start: On Hold Scheduled Finish: On Hold

Projected Finish: On Hold DSA Close Out: Pending

5. BARRANCA ENTRANCE

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $2,850,000 - $2,850,000
Anticipated State Match: - - -
Basic Aid Allocation: $2,850,000 - $2,850,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 4/27/2009. The current basic
aid assignment of $2,850,000 is considered sufficient to meet project costs.

Status: The City of Irvine has provided meeting minutes from a 1996 City Council
meeting that, in the context of a land exchange between them and the Irvine Company,
included a description of an SOCCCD agreement to provide a pedestrian bridge creek
crossing in exchange for land use at the Barranca connection. District finds no evidence
of participating in this understanding. A meeting with the City is scheduled for early
November.

In Progress: Construction document review by various regulatory agencies.

Recently Completed:

Focus: Final review by City of Irvine, Southern California Edison and the DSA.

Project Start: March 2010 Scheduled Finish: Spring/Summer 2013

Projected Finish: Spring/Summer 2013 DSA Close Out: Pending

6. GREAT LAWN PROJECT

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $1,250,000 $546,000 $1,796,000
Anticipated State Match: - -

Basic Aid Allocation: $1,250,000 $546,000 $1,796,000
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Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 8/31/2009 and 5/24/2010. The
basic aid assignment of $1,796,000 was sufficient to meet project costs.

Status: Construction Complete.

In Progress: After Civil Engineer is satisfied that the parking lot signage is complete, all
Close Out documentation will be forwarded to DSA.

Recently Completed: Construction Complete.

Focus: DSA Close Out

Project Start: March 2009 Scheduled Finish: December 2011

Projected Finish: May 2012 DSA Close Out: Underway

7. A400 RENOVATION AND EXPANSION PROJECT

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $3,004,051 $8,458,949  $11,463,000
Anticipated State Match: - - -
Basic Aid Allocation: $1,000,000 $10,463,000  $11,463,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board agenda action on 2/28/2011 and 8/27/2012. On
August 27, 2012, the Board approved $10,463,000 additional to fund the project budget.
Staff analyzed the budget identified in the Education and Facilities Master Plan and
determined there was no allowance for equipment. Staff will recommend an increase in
the project budget to address the furniture, fixture and equipment expenditure during the
2012-2013 Basic Aid Allocation review process.

Status: The Board approved the use of Design-Build procurement. Criteria document and
programming efforts are complete.

In Progress: The Request for Proposals have been received by the three selected firms and
are under review by the selection committee. Site topographic and utility surveys are
underway.

Recently Completed: Geotechnical Analysis and Draft Report complete.

Focus: Design-Build Entity selection process.

Project Start: December 2012 Scheduled Finish: May 2016

Projected Finish: May 2016 DSA Close Out: Pending

ATEP
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1. ATEP BUILDING DEMOLITION
Original Revision Total
Project Budget: $7,000,000 - $7,000,000
Anticipated State Match: - - -
Basic Aid Allocation: $7,000,000 - $7,00,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board action on 4/22/2004.

Status: Notice of Completion for the last building is anticipated for the October Board
meeting.

In Progress: Minor comments for the Building foundations and infrastructure were
received from the City of Tustin with response and further plan development underway.

Recently Completed: Building 26 demolition.

Focus: Ensure that site is left in good condition to meet on-going maintenance needs.

Project Start: September 2010 Scheduled Finish: June 2012

Projected Finish: August 2012 DSA Close Out: N/A

2. ATEP MONUMENT SIGNAGE

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: - - -
Anticipated State Match: - -

Basic Aid Allocation: - - -

Budget Narrative: There is money in the ATEP Renovation/Temporary Buildings fund
should this project move forward.

Status: The Valencia Loop Road monument sign reflects the design of the City’s sign on
the opposite corner. Plan comments have been addressed and resubmitted to the City.

In Progress: On Hold and part of the current negotiations with the City of Tustin.

Recently Completed: On Hold

Focus: On Hold

Project Start: On Hold Scheduled Finish: On Hold

Projected Finish: On Hold DSA Close Out: On Hold
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3. ATEP FIRST BUILDINGS - PHASE 3A

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: - - -
Anticipated State Match: - - -
Basic Aid Allocation: $12,500,000 - $12,500,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board action on 2/28/2011. $12,500,000 has been
allocated to the Phase 3A project budget in anticipation of upcoming project budget
development.

Status: Board approved two 30,000 square feet buildings, one for Saddleback College and
one for Irvine Valley College. Board approved Design/Build as a delivery method for
these projects and Criteria Architect to begin developing the Criteria documents and
programming. Programming completed January 2012.

In Progress: Criteria Document development.

Recently Completed:

Focus: Development of RFP criteria documents underway with district and college
facilities department participation.

Project Start: January 2013 Scheduled Finish: June 2016
Projected Finish: June 2016 DSA Close Out: Pending
DISTRICT WIDE

1. 20 YEAR FACILITIES, RENOVATION AND SCHEDULED MAINTENANCE
FACILITIES SYSTEM

Original Revision Total

Project Budget: $704,000 - $704,000
Anticipated State Match: - - -
Basic Aid Allocation: $704,000 - $704,000

Budget Narrative: Budget reflects Board action on 6/25/2012.

Status: Progress meetings have been /eld monthly beginning in July.

In Progress: Data download for report development and review. Data reporting
coordination to test compatibility between SchoolDude software and State Chancellor
FUSION data base.
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Recently Completed: Condition Assessments for [IVC and Saddleback Student Services
complete for pilot assessment. Reviewed initial reporting and identified areas for
improvement.

Focus: Continued review of pilot efforts and course correction toward progress on
condition assessment completion.

Project updates for active projects may be viewed at:
http://socccd.edu/businessservices/ProjectUpdates.html.

Definitions:

Project Start: Month Architect is brought on board for design

Scheduled Finish: Assumed duration of project depends on variables, such as agency
review, that are outside of the control of District and consultants

Projected Finish: Identified finish at the time of the report

DSA Close Out: The process of sending required documents to DSA to obtain

project certification. Level of project complication dictates
timeframe for completing this scope of work.

Note: Project budgets reflect the allocated state match as reported in FUSION for the
planning year 2014-2015. (FUSION is the State Chancellor’s Office database for
Capital Outlay.)

The “Revisions” column for the State Match category includes changes due to
escalation and changes that may have occurred to the state’s percentage (i.e. going
from an 80% match down to a 70% match and so on as the economy changes)
from the original project approvals to current date.

The “Revisions” column for the Basic Aid Allocation will show a total variation to
date taking into account both increased and decreased basic aid allocations.

The Unassigned category identifies an underfunded budget.

The Budget Narrative paragraph for each project discusses the history of change to
all category amounts over the life of the project.


http://socccd.edu/businessservices/ProjectUpdates.html

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.5
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Retiree (OPEB) Trust Fund

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

In April 2008 the SOCCCD Board of Trustees authorized the establishment of an
irrevocable trust to comply with GASB No. 43 (Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions) and GASB No. 45
(Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pensions). The trust was established with the Benefit Trust Company
and is administered through the Futuris Public Entity Trust Program. It was funded
in June, 2008 with a deposit of $50,791,103. An additional deposit of $4,618,708
was made on January 10, 2011 for a total of $55,409,811.

STATUS

This report is for the period ending October 31, 2012 (Exhibit A). The portfolio is
comprised of 52.9% Fixed Funds (Bonds) and 47.1% Common Stocks (Domestic
and International). The fair market value at October 31, 2012 is $67,885,330 which
reflects an increase of 0.20% for the month. Since inception, the trust has earned a
5.12% annualized return. The annualized amount is down .06% from the prior
month. The annualized return is consistent with the market.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services
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Benefit Trust - Retiree (OPEB) Trust

Month - Year Month-End Values Contributions
June-08 $ 50,589,708 $ 50,791,103
June-09 $ 44,706,214 $ 50,791,103
June-10 $ 51,342,419 $ 50,791,103
July-10 $ 53,704,177 $ 50,791,103
August-10 $ 53,206,683 $ 50,791,103
September-10 $ 55,816,988 $ 50,791,103
October-10 $ 57,104,621 $ 50,791,103
November-10 $ 56,224,029 $ 50,791,103
December-10 $ 58,006,867 $ 50,791,103
January-11 $ 63,349,822 $ 55,409,811
February-11 $ 64,479,212 $ 55,409,811
March-11 $ 64,427,596 $ 55,409,811
April-11 $ 66,174,437 $ 55,409,811
May-11 $ 65,875,362 $ 55,409,811
June-11 $ 65,060,898 $ 55,409,811
July-11 $ 64,945,129 $ 55,409,811
August-11 $ 63,185567 $ 55,409,811
September-11 $ 59,495,123 $ 55,409,811
October-11 $ 63,076,658 $ 55,409,811
November-11 $ 61,958,358 $ 55,409,811
December-11 $ 61,922,567 $ 55,409,811
January-12 $ 64,741,289 $ 55,409,811
February-12 $ 66,183,867 $ 55,409,811
March-12 $ 66,171,932 $ 55,409,811
April-12 $ 66,175,447 $ 55,409,811
May-12 $ 63,042,614 $ 55,409,811
June-12 $ 64,788,984 $ 55,409,811
July-12 $ 65,563,930 $ 55,409,811
August-12 $ 66,464,346 $ 55,409,811
September-12 $ 67,752,206 $ 55,409,811
October-12 $ 67,885,330 $ 55,409,811

EXHIBIT A
Page 2 of 2



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.6
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Quarterly Investment Report

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

Senate Bill Number 564 added Government Code Section 53646 requiring the local
agencies in California, including educational institutions, to render a statement of
investment policy to their local governing Board on an annual basis. In addition, a
guarterly report in compliance with the investment policy is to be rendered to the
governing Board with respect to the agency’s investments. The Board approved
the District’s investment policy on September 16, 1996, and since then, quarterly
reports have been rendered for the Board’s information.

STATUS

This report is for the quarter ending on September 30, 2012. Our cash balances at
the end of September 30, 2012 were $176,407,492.79 in the Orange County
Investment Pool (OCIP) and $25,878,948.28 in the Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) Pooled Investment Account. The OCIP investment pool is yielding an
average of 0.45%, the same as the prior quarter, and the LAIF investment pool is
yielding an average of 0.35% compared to prior quarter of 0.36% for the fiscal
guarter ending September 30, 2012. Both pools are highly liquid, with overnight
wire transfers available upon request.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.7
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Monthly Financial Status Report

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

Monthly General Fund financial reports (EXHIBIT A) for the two colleges and the
District are provided to the Board of Trustees to keep members regularly
informed of current information and provide an alert to any significant changes in
the projected year ending balance.

STATUS
The reports display the adopted budget, revised budget and transactions through

October 31, 2012. A review of current revenues and expenditures for FY 2012-
2013 show they are in line with the budget and consistent with prior year trends.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
General Fund Income and Expenditure Summary

As of October 31, 2012

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

SOURCES OF FUNDS
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE:

REVENUES:
Federal Sources
State Sources
Local Sources
Total Revenue

INCOMING TRANSFERS
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS
USES OF FUNDS

EXPENDITURES:
Academic Salaries
Other Staff Salaries
Employee Benefits
Supplies & Materials
Services & Other Operating
Capital Outlay
Payments to Students

Total Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Debt Service
Inter Fund Transfers Out
Basic Aid Transfers Out
Intra Fund Transfers Out

Total Other Sources (Uses)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

ENDING FUND BALANCE

RESERVES

8100-8199
8600-8699
8800-8899

8980-8989

1000-1999
2000-2999
3000-3999
4000-4999
5000-5999
6000-6999
7500-7699

7100-7199
7300-7399
7300-7399
7400-7499

Reserve for Unrealized Tax Collections (Basic Aid)

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

College Reserves for Economic Uncertainties

TOTAL RESERVES

Exhibit A

Page 1 of 3
Actual Beg Bal
Adopted Revised & Receipts/ % Actual
Budget Budget Expenditures to Revised
28,459,232 28,459,232 28,459,232 100.00%
2,703,442 2,856,401 253,248 8.87%
12,696,260 12,836,043 4,050,754 31.56%
180,176,013 180,418,772 24,219,900 13.42%
195,575,715 196,111,216 28,523,902 14.54%
0 0 0
224,034,947 224,570,448 56,983,134 25.37%
65,200,365 65,396,349 19,480,668 29.79%
40,587,109 40,756,615 9,701,935 23.80%
35,985,299 36,007,508 11,346,251 31.51%
5,228,645 5,358,992 913,438 17.04%
20,879,241 20,620,676 6,257,007 30.34%
5,261,092 5,423,445 709,724 13.09%
258,595 372,262 116,233 31.22%
173,400,346 173,935,847 48,525,256 27.90%
435,000 435,000 57,960 13.32%
1,379,296 1,379,296 513,996 37.27%
20,235,661 20,235,661 1,000,000 4.94%
0 0 0 0.00%
22,049,957 22,049,957 1,571,956 7.13%
195,450,303 195,985,804 50,097,212 25.56%
28,584,644 28,584,644 6,885,922
17,639,088 17,639,088
10,345,556 10,345,556
600,000 600,000
28,584,644 28,584,644

NOTE: As of October 31, 2011, actual revenues to date were 25.20% and actual expenditures to date were 22.54% of the

revised budget to date.



Exhibit A

Page 2 of 3
SADDLEBACK COLLEGE
General Fund Income and Expenditure Summary
As of October 31, 2012
Beg Bal &
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES Adopted Revised Receipts/ % Actual
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE Budget Budget Expenditures to Revised
SOURCES OF FUNDS
LOCATION BEGINNING BALANCE $ 12,646,802 12,646,802 12,646,802 100.00%
REVENUES:
Unrestricted Budget Allocation $ 80,013,075 80,013,075 9,873,062 12.34%
Restricted Budget Allocation 9,595,863 10,127,864 3,583,743 35.38%
Total Revenue 89,608,938 90,140,939 13,456,805 14.93%
INCOMING TRANSFERS 8980-8989 0 0 0
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ 102,255,740 102,787,741 26,103,607 25.40%
USES OF FUNDS
EXPENDITURES:
Academic Salaries 1000-1999 $ 42,644,862 42,855,162 12,846,263 29.98%
Other Staff Salaries 2000-2999 20,520,147 20,567,684 4,882,461 23.74%
Employee Benefits 3000-3999 20,971,457 20,992,754 6,435,983 30.66%
Supplies & Materials 4000-4999 4,105,529 4,210,209 553,646 13.15%
Services & Other Operating 5000-5999 9,325,821 9,292,444 2,316,026 24.92%
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 3,703,458 3,751,487 556,852 14.84%
Payments to Students 7500-7699 84,466 218,001 40,014 18.35%
Total Expenditures $ 101,355,740 101,887,741 27,631,245 27.12%
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Debt Service 7100-7199 0 0 0
Transfers Out 7300-7399 % 400,000 400,000 255,100 63.78%
Other Transfers 7400-7499 0 0 0
Total Other Sources (Uses) 400,000 400,000 255,100 63.78%
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 101,755,740 102,287,741 27,886,345 27.26%
LOCATION OPERATING BALANCE $ 500,000 500,000 (1,782,738)
RESERVES
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties $ 500,000 500,000

NOTE: As of October 31, 2011, actual revenues to date were 24.75% and actual expenditures to date were 27.13%

of the revised budget to date.



IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE
General Fund Income and Expenditure Summary
As of October 31, 2012

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

SOURCES OF FUNDS
LOCATION BEGINNING BALANCE
REVENUES:
Unrestricted Budget Allocation

Restricted Budget Allocation
Total Revenue

INCOMING TRANSFERS 8980-8989
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS
USES OF FUNDS
EXPENDITURES:
Academic Salaries 1000-1999
Other Staff Salaries 2000-2999
Employee Benefits 3000-3999
Supplies & Materials 4000-4999
Services & Other Operating 5000-5999
Capital Outlay 6000-6999
Payments to Students 7500-7699

Total Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):

Debt Service 7100-7199
Transfers Out 7300-7399
Other Transfers 7400-7499

Total Other Sources (Uses)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

LOCATION OPERATING BALANCE

RESERVES
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties

Exhibit A
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Beg Bal &
Adopted Revised Receipts/ % Actual
Budget Budget Expenditures to Revised
2,870,165 2,870,165 2,870,165 100.00%
$ 44,737,646 44,737,646 6,243,973 13.96%
5,930,680 5,934,180 2,725,523 45.93%
50,668,326 50,671,826 8,969,496 17.70%
0 0 0
53,538,491 53,541,991 11,839,661 22.11%
20,833,232 20,818,916 6,233,684 29.94%
12,705,378 12,827,347 3,068,070 23.92%
11,155,591 11,156,503 3,767,726 33.77%
976,455 1,002,980 312,082 31.12%
5,243,953 5,042,258 1,513,832 30.02%
1,185,457 1,275,430 112,367 8.81%
174,129 154,261 76,219 49.41%
52,274,195 52,277,695 15,083,980 28.85%
435,000 435,000 57,960 13.32%
729,296 729,296 258,896 35.50%
0 0 0
1,164,296 1,164,296 316,856 27.21%
53,438,491 53,441,991 15,400,836 28.82%
100,000 100,000 (3,561,175)
100,000 100,000

NOTE: As of October 31, 2011, actual revenues to date were 21.37% and actual expenditures to date were 27.93%

of the revised budget to date.



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 7.8
DATE: 11/19/12

TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
RE: SOCCCD: Academic Year 2013-2014 Non-Resident Tuition Fees for

Foreign & Out-of-State Students

ACTION: Information

BACKGROUND

The Associated Student Governments requested they be given advance information
on the proposed fee, prior to the Board taking action to establish the fee for the next
academic year. As classes will not be in session when the agenda item is prepared
for Board approval in January 2013, this item is being submitted now as advance
information of the proposed fee.

The California Education Code, Section 76140, requires each community college
district of the state to establish a non-resident tuition fee no later than February 1
for the succeeding fiscal year. This rate is based on the expense of education per
unit of attendance (FTES) for the previous fiscal year, modified by the projected
increase in the U.S. Consumer Price Index for the current year and the year in which
the fee will be in effect. The District may also set this fee below the calculated fee,
but no less than the statewide average fee, or at a level not to exceed a contiguous
district’s established fee. The current fiscal year non-resident tuition fee is $179 per
unit.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 76141, a district may also charge nonresident
students a capital outlay fee. This portion of the Education Code was amended by
AB 947 (Chapter 377, statutes of 2009) to now charge this capital outlay fee to ANY
nonresident student — except for “AB 540" students, who will continue to be exempt
from this fee. AB 947 deleted the condition that a nonresident student capital fee will
be charged only to nonresidents that were citizens and residents of a foreign
country. Revenue derived from this fee shall be expended for purposes of capital
outlay, maintenance, and equipment. Any fee charged pursuant to this section is
limited by the following: 1) the amount that was expended by the district for capital
outlay in the preceding fiscal year divided by the total full-time equivalent students of
the district in the preceding year; OR 2) 50% of the 2011-2012 non-resident tuition
fee adopted pursuant to EC 76140. The current fiscal year capital outlay fee is $32
per semester unit.

In addition to the non-resident tuition fee, Chapter 170, Statutes of 1992, also added
Education Code Section 76142 for an application fee, which authorized districts to
charge non-resident applicants a processing fee not to exceed the lesser of: the
actual cost of processing an application and other documentation required by the
federal government, OR $100, which may be deducted from the tuition fee at the

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



time of enrollment. The fee is non-refundable if students fail to enroll subsequent to
making an application for enroliment. The current fiscal year application fee is $54.

STATUS

All of the factors necessary to establish these fees as required by Education Code
are not available at this time. The District Business Office staff has calculated an
estimate of the District non-resident related fees based on current information
(EXHIBIT A). This exhibit also includes a suggested set of fees for 2013-2014. A
recommendation will be submitted to the Board in January 2013, after comparison
data is received from the state.

Item Submitted By: Dr. Debra Fitzsimons, Vice Chancellor, Business Services



Estimated Current Expense of Education *
for 2013-2014 Non-Resident Tuition Rate

A. Expense of Education for Base Year
(2011-2012 CCFS 311, Pages 26-30, AC 0100-6700, Col. 1-3)

$140,256,208

B. Annual Attendance FTES 27,828
(2011-2012 Audit Report)
C. Expense of Education per FTES $ 5,040
(A1B)
D. US CPI (Consumer Price Index) Factor ** $ 1.038
E. Costs per FTES for Tuition Year $ 5,232
(CxD)
F. Estimated 2013-2014 Per unit non-resident tuition fee: $ 174
Semester system colleges (E/30)
2013-2014
Capital Outlay Fee Calculation
E.C.S. 76142
A. Total CapitalOutlay $ 28,779,708
B. FTES for 2011-2012 27,828
C. Foreign Student Charge per Academic Year $ 1,034
(A1B)
D. Estimated 2013-2014 Capital Outlay Fee, per unit $ 34
(C/30)
2013-2014
Application Fee Calculation
E.C.S. 76142
A. Admissions & Records Operating Expense
for 2011-2012 (per CCFS-311, A.C. 6200) $ 3,327,527
B. FTES for 2011-2012 27,828
C. Student cost per academic year $ 120
(A1B)
D. Estimated 2013-2014 Application fee, per semester $ 60
(C/2)
Comparison of Non-Resident Fees
2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013  2013-2014***
Non-Resident Tuition $ 183 $ 179 $ 179 $ 174
Capital Outlay Fee $ 25 $ 25 $ 32 $ 34
Application Fee $ 54 % 54 % 54 % 54

This portion of the Ed Code was amended by AB 947 (Chapter 377, statutes of 2009) to now charge this
capital outlay fee to ANY nonresident student - except for "AB 540" students, who will continue to be
exempt from this fee. AB 947 deleted the condition that a nonresident student capital fee will be charged
only to nonresidents that were citizens and residents of a foreign country.

* Based on estimates only, actual numbers will be provided by California Community College Chancellor's Office for final calculation.

** The USCPI is not available at this time. This is the same number used last year.

** POTENTIAL 2013/14 FEES

EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 1



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT ITEM: 8.0

TO:

FROM:

RE:

ACTION:

DATE: 11/19/12

Board of Trustees
Gary L. Poertner, Chancellor
Written Reports

None

Written Reports

Reports by the following individuals and groups should be written and
submitted through the docket process prior to distribution of the Board
agenda packet.

Saddleback College Academic Senate

Faculty Association

Irvine Valley College Academic Senate

Associate Vice Chancellor, Economic Development
President, Irvine Valley College

President, Saddleback College

Vice Chancellor, Technology & Learning Services
Vice Chancellor, Human Resources

Vice Chancellor, Business Services

Irvine Valley College Classified Senate

California School Employees Association
Saddleback College Classified Senate

Police Officers’ Association

Associated Student Government of SC
Associated Student Government of IVC



























Report to the SOCCCD Board of Trustees for November 19, 2012
Business Services Highlights - Vice Chancellor Dr. Debra L. Fitzsimons

Proposition 30 Update:

With the passage of Proposition 30, the District is prepared to earn 1% growth funds that will be
made available for FY 2012-2013. The colleges are prepared to earn the additional FTES
funding of an estimated $1.2 million or more which will be allocated through the DRAC model,
but the funds have restrictions and must be tracked separately and reported on. This new
funding source is not permanent as it's based on temporary sales taxes and personal income
taxes which expire in 2016 and 2019 respectively. The State Chancellor’s Office will be
providing clarification in the near future on both the restrictions and actual dollar amount. The
funds will be released to all districts in June 2013.

Annual audit:

The annual external audit is complete and we are pleased to report that the auditors have given
the district and college foundations an “unqualified opinion”. This audit also reflects no findings
related to the fiscal operations of the District. The auditors stated that the district-wide internal
controls are well documented and are followed, which provides reasonable assurance to the
auditors that our financial statements are accurate. The colleges and District Services Fiscal
Office work together to make this happen because they it's a collaborative effort to establish
appropriate procedures and internal controls.

There were operational findings (both federal and state) associated with student services and
instructional areas which the colleges will be required to address and can be found in the audit
report board item this month.

Mandated Costs Block Grant Update:

The District has received notification that the state has released the Mandated Costs Block
Grant funds. The District allocation is $779,586. The funds will be distributed through the DRAC
model allocation.

Saddleback College New Science Building Procurement:

Pre-Construction services for the lease/leaseback approach to the Saddleback New Sciences
building is in progress. The first kick off meeting was held with the contractor, the architect and
facilities representatives from the district and the college. Participants reviewed potential items
that could be considered for cost savings identifying some as requiring faculty involvement and
others specific to engineering considerations. Some of the faculty concerns will be first vetted
with the Laboratory consultant and with his approval will be taken to the faculty for
consideration. All present agreed that the LEED platinum effort must be reduced from platinum
to gold or silver. Weekly follow-up meetings are anticipated and through April/May 2013,
concurrent with efforts to obtain DSA approvals for any revisions.
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